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LEMON TREE HOTELS LIMITED

BOARD’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS
OF LEMON TREE HOTELS LIMITED

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Twenty Fifth Annual Report of the
Company together with audited statements of accounts for the financial year ended 31
March, 2017.

FINANCIAL RESULTS AND OPERATIONS

The financial performance on the basis of Standalone Financial Statements for the year
ended 31st March, 2017 is summarized below:
(Rupees in Lacs)

Particulars For the Year For the Year
Ended Ended
31.03.2017 31.03.2016
Total Income 22,543.28 19,462.11
Profit Before Depreciation, 2,909.92 434.67
amortisation & Tax
Less: Depreciation & Amortisation expenses 2,119.95 2,183.68
*Profit/(Loss) Before Tax 804.85 (1743.45)
Less :
**Current tax(MAT) 125.30 -
Adjustment of Tax for earlier periods 6.95 10.91
Less : Provision For Deferred Tax
*Profit/(Loss) After Tax 672.60 (1,754.36)
*Profit/(Loss) for the year 672.60 (1,754.36)

*includes comprehensive income
** includes tax on comprehensive income

PERFORMANCE REVIEW AND STATE OF COMPANY AFFAIRS

The revenue from the operations of the Company during the current year was
Rs. 21,842.80 Lacs increased from Rs. 19,328.32 Lacs in the previous year.

Lemon Tree Group is among the leading hotel companies in India (by number of rooms
under chain affiliation) in the Mid-priced segment. It is further informed that between
FY12 and FY17, demand growth for upper midscale and Midscale - Economy segments
exceeded supply growth, enabling less severe impact on ADR and positive RevPAR.
Upper midscale segment occupancy increased from 55.5% for FY12 to 63.6% for FY17,
while absorbing 10,800 new rooms. For the midscale —economy segment, occupancy
improved from 56% for FY12 to 65% for FY17, absorbing about 14,500 new rooms
during this period. This is an important indicator of the potential for Mid-priced sector
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hotels in India in India and we expect that demand for mid-priced sector hotels will
further increase during the course of time as demand for hotels is also increasing due to
various other reason viz. Business related travel, on transient and extended stay basis,
Leisure, Weddings and other social purposes, Diplomatic travel, Airline crew, Transit.

CAPITAL

During the year under review, the Authorised Share Capital of the Company remained at
Rs. 10,000,000,000/- (Rupees One Thousand Crores only), divided into 998,550,000
(Ninety Nine Crores Eighty Five Lacs Fifty Thousand) equity shares of Face value of
Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each and 145,000 (One Lac Forty Five Thousand), 5%
Cumulative Redeemable Preference Share of Rs. 100/- (Rupees One Hundred only) per
share.

During the year under review, the Issued and Paid up Share Capital of the Company was
increased to Rs. 781,27,40,650/- (Rupees Seventy Hundred Eight One Crore Twenty
Seven Lacs Forty Thousand Six Hundred and Fifty Only) divided into 78,12,74,065
(Seventy Eight Crore Twelve Lacs Seventy Four Thousand and Sixty Five) equity shares
of face value of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) per share by issuing further 31,71,902 equity
shares, out of which 3,00,000 equity shares were issued on preferential basis and
28,71,902 equity shares have been issued on exercise of employee stock options.

BORROWINGS FROM BANKS/ FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

The Company’s total long term borrowings from banks/ financial institutions decreased
from Rs. 34,107.15 Lacs in the previous year to Rs. 32,104.51 Lacs in the current year.

OPERATIONAL HOTELS AND UPCOMING PROJECTS

Lemon Tree Hotels Limited is a Company engaged in hotel business and there has been
no change in the nature of its business during the year under review.

During the financial year under review, Lemon Tree Group had thirty six (36) hotels
operating in 22 cities under its various brands i.e. ‘Lemon Tree Premier’, ‘Lemon Tree
Hotels’ and ‘Red Fox Hotels’ in the Company and its subsidiaries including the managed
hotel properties.

Out of the total, Six (6) hotel properties are being operated under the new upper upscale
“Lemon Tree Premier” brand at Bengaluru, Gurgaon including Lemon Tree Premier,
HITEC City-Hyderabad and Lemon Tree Premier, Delhi Aerocity operating in the
subsidiary companies, including addition of one new (1) property namely Lemon Tree
Premier, Leisure Valley 2, Gurgaon, under its subsidiary during the financial year under
review.
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Lemon Tree Group had Twelve (12) hotels operating under the brand “Lemon Tree Hotel”
at Ahmedabad, Aurangabad, Chennai, Chandigarh, Gurgaon, Indore, Pune including the
four hotel properties i.e. Lemon Tree Hotel, East Delhi Mall-Kaushambi, Lemon Tree
Hotel, Electronics City-Bengaluru, Lemon Tree Hotel, Whitefield-Bengaluru, Lemon Tree
Hotel, Gachi Bowli-Hyderabad in the subsidiary companies including the addition of one
(1) more property viz: Lemon Tree Hotel, Candolim Goa, under its subsidiary.

Three(3) resorts i.e. Lemon Tree Vembanad Lake Resort at Allepey, Kerala and Lemon
Tree Amarante Beach Resort, Goa including Lemon Tree Hotel, Wildlife Resort
Bandhavgarh, are also operating in the subsidiary companies.

During the financial year under review, the number of managed properties has been
increased from seven (7) to eleven (11) which are being operated under Lemon Tree
Premier, Lemon Tree Hotel & Red Fox Hotel Brand by the management arm of the Lemon
Tree Group i.e. Lemon Tree Premier, Jaipur, Lemon Tree Premier, The Atrium, Lemon
Tree Hotel, Shimona-Chennai, Lemon Tree Hotel-Dehradun, Lemon Tree Hotel-Vadodra,
Lemon Tree Hotel-Dahej, Lemon Tree Hotel-Tarudhan with an addition of Lemon Tree
Hotel, Katra, Red Fox Hotel-Trichy, Red Fox Hotel, Bhiwadi and Red Fox Hotel,
Chandigarh which have commenced their operations during the period under review.

Further, four (4) more hotel properties were operating under ‘Red Fox Hotel’ brand at
Hyderabad and Delhi Aerocity including Red Fox Hotel, East Delhi and Red Fox Hotel,
Jaipur operating in subsidiary companies.

Further, two new projects i.e Lemon Tree Hotel, Sector 60 and Red Fox Hotel, Sector 60,
Gurgaon under its subsidiary Company has been completed and has commenced its

operations during the current financial Year.

Further, several new hotel projects have been taken up by the Group at Kolkatta,
Mumbai, Udaipur, Pune and Shimla, which are at various stages of development.

AWARDS AND RECOGNITION

During the year under review, the Company has received various awards and recognition
as detailed herein below:

e Ranked 4™ in the list of India’s Best Companies to Work for, adjudged by the
Economic Times and the Great Place to Work Institute, India

e Ministry of Social Justice and Empowerment, Government of India: Best Employer —
National Award, 2011. Award received from the President of India

e Recognised by the Economic Times and the Great Place to Work Institute, India, for
being among the best in:

(i) the special category of utilizing analytics to drive a great place of place of work;
(i)the industry of hotels and resorts; and
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(iii) the special category of employer branding.
e Overall Winners World Responsible Tourism Award 2016 at WTM®, London

e Gold Winner-'Best Accommodation for Responsible Employment® category’
2016,WTM®, London

e HR Innovation Award for Excellence in Diversity and Inclusion,2016

e People Matters Total Rewards 2017: 'Best in Building Career' Award

BOARD OF DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP’S)

During the financial year under review, as on 31% March, 2017, there were nine (9)
Directors on the Board of the Company. The list of the Directors & KMP’s as on 31°%
March, 2017 is annexed as Annexure-‘1’ to the Board’s report.

Appointments

During the financial year under review, Mr. Rattan Keswani was re-appointed as Deputy
Managing Director for a period of 3 years commencing from 1 January, 2017 to 31%
December, 2019, which was approved by the members in their Extra-Ordinary General
Meeting held on 19" December, 2016.

During the financial year under review, the Board of Directors had appointed Mr. Nikhil
Sethi as Group Company Secretary & GM Legal (Key Managerial Personnel) of the
Company w.e.f 12" December, 2016.

Further, the Board of Directors at their meeting held on 15" June, 2017 has appointed
Mr. Pradeep Gupta, Mr. Ashish Guha, Mr. Arvind Singhania, Mr. Paramartha Saikia as
Additional Directors in the capacity of Non-Executive Independent Director and the Board
of Directors has also appointed Ms. Freyan Desai as Additional Director in the capacity of
Non-executive Women Independent Director and they hold office upto the ensuing
General Meeting.

In accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 and the Articles of Association of the
Company, one (1) of your Directors, viz. Mr. Aditya Madhav Keswani retires by rotation,
and being eligible, offers his candidature for re-appointment. Your approval for his re-
appointment as Director is being sought in the Notice convening the Annual General
meeting of the Company.

Resignations/Retirement/Cessation

During the financial year under review, Ms. Suman Singh resigned as AGM and Group
Company Secretary of the Company with effect from 30" June, 2016 to pursue her
professional interests elsewhere.
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Further, Mr. Sanjeev Kaul Duggal, Independent Director and Ms. lla Dubey, Women
Director of the Company has also resigned from the Board w.e.f 1st April, 2017 and 31%

May, 2017 respectively.

The Board wishes to place on record their sincere appreciation for the contributions made
by the outgoing directors/KMP during their tenure on the Board.

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

All the Independent Directors has given necessary declarations in terms of Section
149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 that they meet the criteria of independence as laid
down under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The Composition of the Board Committees as on 31 March, 2017 is as under:

Name of the | Name of the Member Category
Committee
Audit Committee | Mr. Gopal Sitaram Jiwarajka | Non-Executive Independent
(Re-constituted on | Chairman Director
18.09.2014) Mr. Sanjeev Kaul Duggal Non-Executive Independent
Director

Mr. Niten Malhan Non-Executive Director
Nomination and | Mr. Sanjeev Kaul Duggal | Non-Executive Independent
Remuneration Chairman Director
Committee Mr. Gopal Sitaram Jiwarajka Non-Executive Independent
(Re-constituted on Director
18.09.2014) Mr. Niten Malhan Non-Executive Director

Mr. Patanjali G. Keswani Chairman & Managing

Director

Corporate Social | Mr. Gopal Sitaram Jiwarajka | Non-Executive Independent
Responsibility Chairman Director
Committee Mr. Patanjali G. Keswani Chairman & Managing
(Constituted on Director
20.03.2014) Mr. Rattan Keswani Executive Director
Stakeholder’s Mr. Gopal Sitaram Jiwarjka | Non-Executive Independent
Relationship Chairman Director
Responsibility Mr. Patanjali G. Keswani Chairman & Managing
Committee(Constituted Director
on 17.03.2016) Mr. Rattan Keswani Executive Director

Mr. Sanjeev Kaul Duggal Non-Executive Independent

Director
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Apart from the above-mentioned committees, there are five more committees of the
Board i.e. Share Transfer Committee, Share Allotment Committee, Finance Committee,
IPO Committee and General Management Committee.

BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS HELD DURING THE YEAR

The details of the Board and Committee meetings held during the financial year under
review indicating number of meetings attended by each Director/Member is annexed as
Annexure-‘2’ to the Board’s report.

ANNUAL BOARD EVALUATION

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors has
carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance including its committees. The
performance of the Board was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from the
Directors on the basis of the criteria such as strategy, performance management, risk
management, core governance & compliance, organization health and talent
management.

The evaluation of all the Directors and the Board as a whole was conducted based on the
criteria and framework adopted by the Board. On the basis of the grading and ranking
filled in the evaluation questionnaire and discussion of the Board, the performance of the
Board and its committees and Individual Directors (including Independent Directors) has
been assessed as satisfactory.

POLICIES UNDER COMPANIES ACT, 2013

CODE OF CONDUCT AND VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Company has in place a mechanism for employees for reporting genuine concerns
from reprisal and victimization. The Company has a Code of Conduct and Vigil
Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy which has been disseminated to all the Directors,
Officers, Employees and Associates and they are free to report undesirable practices,
events, violations/suspected violations of the LTH Code in terms of the policy. The policy
is also available in the ‘Corporate Governance’ section on the Company’s website
www.lemontreehotels.com

During the year under review, no concerns have been received by the Company from any
of the Directors, Officers, Employees and Associates.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Company has in place Risk Management Policy formulated in accordance with the
provisions of Section 134(3)(n) of the Companies Act, 2013, which is also available on
the Company’s website in the ‘Corporate Governance’ section. There has been no change
in the policy during the financial year under review.
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The Company has a system in place for identification of elements of risk which are
associated with the accomplishment of objectives, operations, development, revenue and
regulations and appropriate measures are taken, wherever required, to mitigate such
risks beforehand.

The statutory auditors and the internal auditors report to the Audit Committee during
their audit and highlight risk(s), if any, associated with organization and also suggest the
appropriate measures, in consultation with the management and the Audit Committee,
which can be taken by the company in this regard. The statutory auditors also report to
the Committee of any instance of non-adherence to the procedures and manual which
may increase the risk of frauds in the organization.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Company has in place the Nomination & Remuneration Policy which lays down the
criteria for appointment, evaluation of performance of Directors and remuneration of
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, Senior Management Personnel and other employees
and there has been no change in the policy since the last financial year. The policy is
available on our website and is annexed as Annexure ‘3’ to the Board’s Report.

During the year under review, the Company has taken necessary
approval/recommendation, wherever required, from Nomination and Remuneration
Committee in terms of the policy.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Company has in place CSR policy, formulated in terms of provision of section 135(4)
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014. The policy is available in the ‘Corporate Governance’
section on the Company’s website.

In terms of the CSR policy, the Company plans to undertake any CSR
activities/projects/programs in the areas as specified in Schedule VII of the Act as
amended from time to time. However, due to un-availability of average net profit
calculated in terms of Section 198 of the Act, the Company has not spend any amount on
the CSR activities mentioned in the Schedule VII to the Act during the financial year
under review.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

During the financial year under review, your Company continues to remain the direct
holding company of Begonia Hotels Pvt. Ltd., Canary Hotels Pvt. Ltd., Dandelion Hotels
Pvt. Ltd., Lemon Tree Hotel Company Pvt. Ltd., Oriole Dr. Fresh Hotels Pvt. Ltd., Pelican
Facilities Management Pvt. Ltd., PSK Resorts & Hotels Pvt. Ltd., Red Fox Hotel Company
Pvt. Ltd., Sukhsagar Complexes Pvt. Ltd, Fleur Hotels Pvt. Ltd., Carnation Hotels Pvt.
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Ltd., Grey Fox Project Management Company Pvt. Ltd., Nightingale Hotels Pvt. Ltd. and
indirect holding company of Celsia Hotels Pvt. Ltd., Inovoa Hotels and Resorts Ltd., lora
Hotels Pvt. Ltd., Ophrys Hotels Pvt. Ltd., Hyacinth Hotels Pvt. Ltd., Manakin Resorts Pvt.
Ltd., Meringue Hotels Pvt. Ltd. and Valerian Management Services Pvt. Ltd with an
addition of a new company under group M/s Bandhav Resorts Private Limited.

In accordance with Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 Rule 8(1) of Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, the consolidated financial statements of the Company and all its
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures have been prepared by the Company and a
report on the performance and financial position of each of the subsidiaries, associates
and joint venture companies included in the consolidated financial statement is annexed
as Annexure-‘4’ to this Report.

EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION SCHEMES

The Company, during the financial year under review, has not granted options to the
employees of the Company and its subsidiaries in accordance with its Employee Stock
Option (ESOP) scheme. The other details related to options are annexed as Annexure-
‘5’ to this report.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The statement including the details of employees as required to be furnished in
accordance with the provisions of Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial personnel), Rules, 2014 are set out in Annexure-‘6’ to this
report.

DEPOSITS
The Company has not accepted any public deposits and as such, no amount on account
of principal or interest on public deposits was outstanding as on the date of the balance

sheet.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors, to the best of its
knowledge and ability, hereby confirm that:

0] in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards
had been followed with proper explanation relating to material departures;

(i) they have, selected such accounting policies in consultation with Statutory
Auditors and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the company at the end of the financial year 31° March, 2017 and of the
profit and loss of the company for the financial year;
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(iii) they have taken proper and sufficient care, to the best of their knowledge and
ability, for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;

(iv)  the annual accounts of the Company have been prepared on a going concern
basis.

) they had advised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

AUDITORS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT:

Statutory Auditors

M/s S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP (LLP No. AAB-4294) were appointed in the Annual General
Meeting held on 24.07.2014 to hold office till the conclusion of fourth Annual General
Meeting and their term is expiring on the conclusion of ensuing Annual General Meeting
of the Company.

It is being proposed to appoint M/s Deloitte Haskins & Sells, LLP(LLP No. AAB-7837) as
Statutory Auditors of the Company in the Annual General meeting in place of M/s S.R.
Batliboi & Co. LLP (LLP No. AAB-4294) in terms of provisions Section 139 of the
Companies Act, 2013 for a period of 5 years commencing from ensuing Annual General
Meeting upto 6™ consecutive Annual General Meeting of the Company, subject to
ratification of their appointment at every Annual General Meeting by the members of the
Company. M/s Deloitte Haskins & Sells, LLP(LLP No. AAB-7837) has furnished a
certificate to the effect that the proposed ratification, if made, would be in conformity
with the Companies Act, 2013. Your directors recommend the appointment of M/s
Deloitte Haskins & Sells, LLP (LLP No. AAB-7837), Chartered Accountants, as Auditors of
the Company.

The Statutory Auditors’ Report to the accounts has been duly examined, which is self-
explanatory. Clarifications, wherever necessary, have been included in the Notes to
Accounts section of the Annual Report and do not require any further
clarification/explanation.

Secretarial Auditor

The Board of Directors of the Company has appointed M/s Sanjay Grover & Associates,
Practicing Company Secretaries, to conduct the Secretarial Audit for the financial year
under review in accordance with Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Secretarial
Auditors have submitted their report, which is appended as Annexure-‘7’ to this Board’s
Report.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS

There are no significant or material orders passed by the regulators, courts or tribunals
having an impact on the future operations of the Company or its going concern status.
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PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186

The Company, being engaged in the hotel business, is classified as providing
infrastructure facilities in terms of the Schedule VI to the Act and is exempted from the
compliance for loans made, guarantees given and security provided in terms of Section
186 (11) of the Act, however, the details of Loans, guarantees and investments made by
the Company form part of the notes to the financial statements.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES
REFERRED TO IN SECTION 188

The particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in Section
188(1), as prescribed in Form AOC - 2 of the rules prescribed under Chapter IX relating
to Accounts of Companies under the Companies Act, 2013, is appended as Annexure-‘8’
to this Board Report.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

In terms of provisions of Section 92, 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Rule 12 of Companies (Management And Administration) Rules, 2014, the details forming
part of the extract of the Annual Return in form MGT 9 is annexed herewith as
Annexure-‘9’ to this Board Report.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY

There have been no material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial
position of the Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year of
the Company to which the financial statements relate and the date of the report.

PARTICULARS REGARDING CONSERVATION OF ENERGY ETC. UNDER SECTION
134(3)(m) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 AND RULES MADE THEREIN

As per the provisions of Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2013, the measures taken during the year under review for
conservation of energy and technology absorption by the Company in operation of its
hotels are as follows:

A. Conservation of Energy:

The rising energy cost has laid great emphasis on conservation of energy. The Company
has taken various measures, including regular monitoring of consumption, reduction of
losses and improved maintenance to increase the efficiency and reduce the power cost:

(@) Solar water heating systems are installed for generation of hot water in the hotel

kitchens and guest rooms.
(b) Extensive use of CFL Lights in the hotels to minimize electricity consumption.
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(©) Key Tag Energy Saver Systems are installed in all guest rooms to conserve energy
in the un-occupied rooms.

(d) All guest room windows are glazed with heat reflective films on the panes, which
reduces the load on the air conditioning system, as heat transfer from outside is
minimized.

(e) Timers/sensors are provided in the lighting systems (corridors, garden, building
illumination etc.) for saving energy. Ventilation fans are also put on timers to
avoid wasteful running.

) The water supply system in use is a state of the art Hydra-Pneumatic system,
which not only gives constant pressure but also reduces the load on the pump
automatically in case of low demand. This is achieved by using Pressure
Transducers and Variable Frequency Drives for pumps.

As alternate source of energy, the Company has been using wind power energy in few of
its hotels and it is also in talks for installation of rooftop solar power plants in some of its
hotels. Other than the capital investment required for the above measures, the Company
has not made any capital investments.

B. Technology Absorption, Research & Development (R&D):

Technology absorption:

The Company is in the service industry and operates and manages its hotels across
India. However, no knowhow and technology has been imported during the year.
However, efforts have been made to imbibe various new technologies like Green
Building, rain water harvesting, use of plumbing faucets, sewage treatment plants.

Research & Development:

The Company during the year 2016-17 has not carried out any activity which can be
construed as Research & Development and as of now there is no specific plan for
engaging into such activities. As such, there is nothing to report under this section.

C. Foreign exchange earnings and outgo:

The information regarding Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo is mentioned hereunder:
(Rupees in Lacs)

S. Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
No. 31°% March, 2017 | 31°* March, 2016
1. Earning in Foreign Currency 1,838.03 2,230.20
2. Outgo in Foreign Currency
-Value of Capital Goods Imported on 24.27 144.57
CIF basis
-Commission/ Advertisement and 313.15 244.11
business promaotion
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DIVIDEND ON EQUITY SHARES

Your Directors do not propose any dividend on the shares of the Company for the
financial year ended on 31°% March, 2017.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

No transfers to reserves were made, as no appropriations were required to be made
during the year.

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Company’s internal control systems are commensurate with the nature of its
business and the size and complexity of its operations. The statutory and the internal
auditors routinely conduct system checks and give their report after evaluation of the
efficacy and adequacy of internal control systems including controls with respect to the
financial statements, its compliance with operating systems, accounting procedures and
policies in the Company. Based on the report of Internal Audit, the departments
undertake corrective action in their respective areas and thereby strengthen the controls.
The significant audit observations and follow up actions thereon are reported to the Audit
Committee as well and further corrective action taken as per the inputs received from the
committee members and the auditors.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARRASHMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company has in place an Anti Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the
requirements of The Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. During the year under review, no compliant was
received by the Corporate Ethics Committee (CEC) formed in this regard.

APPRECIATION

Your Directors place on record their appreciation for the valuable support and
cooperation of the Company’s Bankers, Government Agencies, Customers, Suppliers,
Shareholders, Employees and other statutory authorities, who have reposed their
continued trust and confidence in the Company.

For & On behalf of the Board of Directors of
Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
DATE : 15.06.2017
PLACE: NEW DELHI Sd/s-
Patanjali G. Keswani
Chairman & Managing Director
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ANNEXURE(S) TO THE BOARD’S REPORT

ANNEXURE-‘1’: COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS & KMP’s OF THE
COMPANY AS ON 315" MARCH, 2017:

S. No Name of Directors/KMP’s Designation

1 Mr. Patanjali Govind Keswani Chairman & Managing Director

2 Mr. Rattan Keswani Deputy Managing Director

3 Mr. Niten Malhan Director

4 Mr. Sachin Doshi Director

5 Mr. Ravi Kant Jaipuria Director

6 Mr. Gopal Sitaram Jiwarjka Independent Director

7 Mr. Sanjeev Kaul Duggal Independent Director

8 Ms. lla Dubey Director

9 Mr. Aditya Madhav Keswani Director

10 Mr. Kapil Sharma Chief Financial Officer

11 Mr. Nikhil Sethi Group Company Secretary &
GM Legal
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ANNEXURE-2’: DETAILS OF BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS HELD DURING
THE YEAR UNDER REVIEW INDICATING THE NUMBER OF
MEETINGS ATTENDED BY EACH DIRECTOR/MEMBER IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENT OF SECRETARIAL
STANDARD

A) BOARD MEETINGS

During the financial year under review, four (4) Board meetings have been held on 21%
June, 2016, 7™ September, 2016, 12" December, 2016 and 29" March, 2017. The
maximum time gap between any two meetings of the Board was within the time period
of 120 days prescribed by the Companies Act, 2013.

Attendance of Directors for the year ended 31% March, 2017:

Name of the Director Designation No. of
Meetings
attended

Mr. Patanjali Govind Keswani Chairman & Managing Director 4

Mr. Rattan Keswani Deputy Managing Director 2

Mr. Niten Malhan Director 4

Mr. Sachin Doshi Director 2

Mr. Ravi Kant Jaipuria Director 2

Mr. Gopal Sitaram Jiwarajka Independent Director 3

Mr. Sanjeev Kaul Duggal Independent Director 3

Mrs. lla Dubey Director 1

Mr. Aditya Madhav Keswani Director 2

B) AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETINGS

During the financial year under review, Four (4) Audit Committee meetings have been
held on 21% June, 2016, 7" September, 2016, 12" December, 2016 and 29" March,
2017.

Attendance of Members for the year ended 31°% March, 2017:

Name of the Member Designation No. of
Meetings
attended

Mr. Gopal Sitaram Jiwarajka Chairman & Member 3

Mr. Sanjeev Kaul Duggal Member 3

Mr. Niten Malhan Member 4
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C) NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE MEETINGS

During the financial year under review, two (2) Nomination & Remuneration Committee
meetings have been held on 12" December, 2016 and 29" March, 2017.

Attendance of Members for the year ended 31°% March, 2017:

Name of the Member Designation No. of
Meetings
attended

Mr. Sanjeev Kaul Duggal Chairman & Member 1

Mr. Gopal Sitaram Jiwarajka Member -

Mr. Patanjali Govind Keswani Member 1

Mr. Niten Malhan Member 2

D) CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE MEETINGS

During the financial year under review, only one (1) meeting of Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee meeting has been held on 29" March, 2017.

Attendance of Members for the year ended 31°% March, 2017:

Name of the Member Designation No. of
Meetings
attended

Mr. Gopal Sitaram Jiwarjaka Chairman & Member -

Mr. Patanjali Govind Keswani Member 1

Mr. Rattan Keswani Member 1

E) EINANCE COMMITTEE MEETINGS

During the financial year under review, three (3) Finance Committee meeting have been
held on 12" May, 2016, 8" August, 2016 and 7™ October, 2016.

Attendance of Members for the year ended 31% March, 2017 :

Name of the Member Designation No. of
Meetings
Attended

Mr. Patanjali Govind Keswani Chairman & Member -

Mr. Rattan Keswani Member 3

Mr. Niten Malhan Member 3
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F) GENERAL MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE MEETINGS

During the financial year under review, five (5) General Management Committee
meetings have been held on 14" April, 2016, 13" July, 2016, 9" September, 2016, 19"
December, 2016 and 6" March, 2017.

Attendance of Members for the year ended 31°% March, 2017:

Name of the Member Designation No. of
Meetings
attended

Mr. Patanjali G. Keswani Chairman & Member 5

Mr. Rattan Keswani Member 5

G) SHARE ALLOTMENT COMMITTEE MEETINGS

During the financial year under review, only Two (2) Share Allotment Committee
meetings have been held on 19" July, 2016 and 24" October, 2016.

Attendance of Members for the year ended 31°% March, 2017:

Name of the Member Designation No. of
Meetings
attended

Mr. Patanjali G. Keswani Chairman & Member 2

Mr. Rattan Keswani Member 2

Mr. Niten Malhan Member 0
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H) SHARE TRANSFER COMMITTEE MEETINGS

During the financial year under review, only three (3) Share Transfer Committee
meetings have been held on 22" August, 2016, 24" October, 2016 and 31 March, 2017.

Attendance of Members for the year ended 31°% March, 2017:

Name of the Member Designation No. of
Meetings
attended

Mr. Rattan Keswani Chairman & Member 3

Mr. Patanjali G. Keswani Member 3

Mr. Niten Malhan Member 0

1) STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE MEETING & IPO COMMITTEE

The above mentioned committees have been constituted on 17" March, 2016, however
no meeting has been held during the financial year under review.
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ANNEXURE-‘3’: NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

INTRODUCTION

In terms of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with applicable rules and
regulations and in pursuance of the policy of Lemon Tree Hotels Limited (‘Company’) to
consider its human resources as its invaluable assets, the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee of the Company re-constituted on 18" September 2014 has formulated this
policy on nomination and remuneration of Directors, Key managerial personnel, senior
management personnel and other employees of the Company (hereinafter referred as
‘Policy’) and which has been adopted by the Board of Directors of the Company in its
meeting on 19.02.2015.

POLICY OBJECTIVE

The objective of this Policy is to determine the criteria for appointment, removal,
evaluation of performance of Directors and remuneration of Directors, key managerial
personnel, senior management personnel and other employees.

DEFINITIONS
In this Policy unless the context otherwise requires:

(a) “Act” means Companies Act, 2013 including the applicable Rules & regulations;

(b) “Board of Directors” or “Board”, in relation to the Company, means the collective
body of the directors of the Company and includes the committees of the Board;

(c) “Directors” means Directors of the Company appointed in terms of provisions of the
Act;

(d) “Independent Director” means a director referred to in Section 149 (6) of the Act;
(e) “Key Managerial Personnel” or “KMP” in relation to a company, means:
(i) Chief Executive Officer (‘CEO’) or the Managing Director (‘MD’) or the Manager;
(ii) Company Secretary;
(iii) Whole-time Director (‘WTD’);
(iv) Chief Financial Officer; and
(v) such other officer as may be prescribed;
() “NRC” means Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company as

constituted or reconstituted by the Board;
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“Rules & regulations” refers to and comprise of Companies Act, 2013, The
Companies (Meeting of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, The Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, The Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial personnel) Rules, 2014, and such
other rules and provisions as applicable to the matters dealt in by this Policy;

“Senior Management Personnel” for this purpose shall mean employees of the
company who are members of its core management team excluding Board of
Directors. It would comprise all members of management one level below the
executive director(s), including the functional / vertical heads.

Unless the context otherwise requires, words and expressions used in this policy and not
defined herein but defined in the Act as may be amended from time to time shall have

the

meaning respectively assigned to them therein.

. APPLICABILITY

This Policy is applicable to:

O

)
(iii)
(iv)

Directors viz. Executive, Non-executive and Independent
Key Managerial Personnel

Senior Management Personnel

Other Employees of the Company

. GENERAL

This Policy is divided in three parts:

Part-A covers the matters to be dealt with and recommended by the NRC to the Board
within Scope of Policy;

Part-B covers the appointment and nomination of Directors; and

Part-C covers remuneration etc for the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other
employees.

PART-A

. SCOPE

The matters to be dealt by NRC in terms of this Policy are as follows:

a.

Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and
independence of a director and identify persons who are qualified to become Directors
and persons who may be appointed in Key Managerial and Senior Management
Personnel, recommend to Board their appointment and removal;

Carry out evaluation of the performance of Directors, as well as Key Managerial and
Senior Management Personnel and to provide for reward(s) linked directly to their
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effort, performance, dedication and achievement relating to the Company’s
operations;

Determine remuneration based on the Company’s size and financial position and
trends and practices for remuneration prevailing in similar companies in the industry;

PART-B

7. APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

a.

The NRC shall identify and ascertain the positive attributes, integrity, independence,
qualification, expertise and experience of the person for appointment as Directors, or
Senior Management Personnel and recommend to the Board his / her appointment.

A person should possess adequate qualification, expertise and experience for the
position he / she is considered for appointment. The NRC has discretion to decide
whether qualification, expertise and experience possessed by a person are sufficient
for the concerned position.

A person shall be appointed as Independent Director subject to the compliance of
provisions of section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with schedule IV and rules
there under.

The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any person as
MD/WTD/Manager who is below the age of twenty one years or has attained the age
of seventy years. Provided that the appointment of a person who has attained the age
of seventy years may be appointed with the approval of shareholders by passing a
special resolution based on the explanatory statement annexed to the notice for such
motion indicating the justification for appointment of such person.

8. TERM/TENURE

a.

MD/ WTD/ Manager

Subject to the applicable provisions of the Act and the Memorandum and Articles of
Association of the Company, the Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its
MD/WTD/Manager for a term of maximum five (5) consecutive years at a time. No re-
appointment shall be made earlier than one (1) year before the expiry of term.

b.

O

Independent Director

Subject to the applicable provisions of the Act, an Independent Director shall hold
office for a maximum term of five (5) consecutive years on the Board of the
Company with the approval of the shareholders in general meeting and will be
eligible for re-appointment on passing of a special resolution by the shareholders of
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the Company for another term of maximum five (5) years and disclosure of such
appointment be made in the Board's report.

(i) Any Independent Director, who has completed his two consecutive terms, shall be
eligible for appointment after expiry of three (3) years of ceasing to become an
Independent Director. Provided that an Independent Director shall not, during the
said period of three years, be appointed in or be associated with the Company in
any other capacity, either directly or indirectly.

(iii) The Independent Director shall not be liable to retire by rotation.

DISQUALIFICATIONS FOR APPOINTMENT/RE-APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS

Any person who is disqualified for appointment/re-appointment as a director in terms of
Section 164 of the Act shall not be eligible for appointment/re-appointment, as the case
may be, as a Director of a company.

EVALUATION

The NRC shall carry out evaluation of performance of every Director and a statement
indicating the manner in which formal annual evaluation has been made by the Board of
its own performance and that of its committees and individual directors shall be disclosed
in the Board Report.

REMOVAL

The NRC may recommend, to the Board with reasons recorded in writing, removal of a
Director, KMP or Senior Management Personnel subject to the provisions of the Act.

RETIREMENT

The Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel shall retire/resign as per the
applicable provisions of the Act and the prevailing HR policy of the Company. The Board
will have the discretion to retain the Director, KMP, Senior Management Personnel in the
same position / remuneration or otherwise even after attaining the retirement age,
subject to compliance of applicable laws, for the benefit of the Company.

PART — C

MATTERS RELATING TO THE REMUNERATION & PERQUISITES

a. The NRC, while deciding the remuneration/compensation/profit-linked commission for
the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees, to ensure :
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(i) That the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to
attract, retain and motivate directors of the quality required to run the company
successfully;

(ii) That the relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets
appropriate performance benchmarks;

(iii) That the remuneration to directors, key managerial personnel and other
employees including senior management officials involves a balance between
fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives
appropriate to the working of the company and its goals;

b. The remuneration/ compensation/ profit-inked commission, etc. to the
MD/WTD/Manager, Directors and Independent Directors and increments thereto will
be determined by the NRC subject to the approval of the Board, shareholders of the
Company and Central Government, wherever required, in accordance with the
percentage / slabs / conditions in terms of the applicable provisions of the Act.

c. Where any insurance is taken by the Company on behalf of its Whole-time Director,
Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, the Company Secretary and any other
employees for indemnifying them against any liability, the premium paid on such
insurance shall not be treated as part of the remuneration payable to any such
personnel. Provided that if such person is proved to be guilty, the premium paid on
such insurance shall be treated as part of the remuneration.

d. Determination of remuneration and increments of KMP, Senior Management officials
and other employees shall be effected in terms of the HR policies of the Company.

14. REMUNERATION TO MD/WTD/MANAGER

a. Remuneration

Subject to Section 197 and Schedule V of the Act, the MD/WTD/Manager will be eligible
for remuneration either by way of a monthly payment or at a specified percentage of the
net profits of the company or partly by one way and partly by the other with the approval
of the Shareholders of the Company on the recommendation of the NRC and the Board.
The break-up of the pay scale, performance bonus and quantum of perquisites including,
employer’s contribution to P.F., pension scheme, medical expenses, club fees etc. shall
be decided and approved by the Board on the recommendation of the NRC and shall be
within the overall remuneration approved by the shareholders and Central Government,
wherever required in terms of the provisions of the Act.

b. Minimum Remuneration

If, in any financial year, the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the
Company shall pay remuneration to its MD/WTD/Manager in accordance with the Act and
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if it is not able to comply with such provisions, then with the previous approval of the
Central Government.

Provisions for excess remuneration

If any MD/WTD/Manager draws or receives, directly or indirectly by way of remuneration
any such sums in excess of the limits prescribed under the Act or without the prior
sanction of the Central Government, where required, he / she shall refund such sums to
the Company and until such sum is refunded, hold it in trust for the Company. The
Company shall not waive recovery of such sum refundable to it unless permitted by the
Central Government.

REMUNERATION TO NON-EXECUTIVE/ZINDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

Sitting Fees

The Non-executive Directors of the Company, whether Independent or not, may be paid
sitting fees within maximum limit prescribed by the Act from time to time for attending
meetings of the Board or Committees thereof. The quantum of sitting fees will be
determined as per the recommendation of NRC and approved by the Board of Directors of
the Company. The Company may make arrangement or reimburse the expenses incurred
by the Non-Executive/ Independent Director(s) for travelling, boarding and lodging for
participation in the Board or Committee meetings.

Commission

The Board, on recommendation of NRC, may consider the payment of profit based
commission to the Non-Executive/ Independent Directors and such commission may be
paid within the prescribed limits and subject to the Board approvals in terms of the
provisions of Act from time to time. The net profits for the purposes of calculation of
commission shall be computed in the manner referred to in section 198 of Act.

Stock Options

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, an Independent Director shall not be entitled to any
stock option of the Company. The officers or other employees of the Company and its
subsidiaries will be granted stock options in terms of the Company Employees Stock
Option policy subject to special resolution passed by company and such other conditions
as may be prescribed by the Act.

REMUNERATION TO KMP, SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL AND OTHER
EMPLOYEES

The KMP, Senior Management Personnel and other employees of the Company shall be
paid monthly remuneration, salary advance and loans etc. as per the Company’s HR
policies and / or as approved by the NRC. The break-up of the pay scale and quantum of
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perquisites including employer’s contribution to P.F., pension scheme, medical expenses,
club fees, etc. shall be as per the Company’s HR policies.

As and when required by the NRC, a presentation shall be given by the HR Head detailing
the performance bonus payouts as well as the proposed increments in any financial year.
The NRC shall peruse and give its suggestions, if any, on the process for giving
increments and performance bonus payouts for implementation by the Company.

This Policy shall apply to all future/continuing employment/engagement(s) with the
Company. In other respects, the Policy shall be of guidance for the Board. Any departure
from the Policy shall be recorded and reasoned in the NRC and Board meeting minutes.

The remuneration for KMP and Senior Managerial Personnel of the Company shall be
approved by the NRC based on the recommendation of the Chairman & Managing
Director and for other employees based on the recommendation of the HR Head in
consultation with the Heads of various Department/Hotels of the Company. In case any
of the relevant regulations require that remuneration of KMPs or any other officer is to be
specifically approved by the NRC and/or the Board of Directors/Shareholders, then such
approval will be accordingly obtained.

DISSEMINATION
The key features of the Policy shall be published on Company’s website and accordingly
will also be disclosed in the Annual Report as part of Board’s report therein.

MISCELLANEOUS

a. The NRC or the Board may review the Policy as and when it deems necessary.

b. The NRC may issue the guidelines, procedures, formats, reporting mechanism for
better implementation of this Policy, wherever it thinks necessary.

c. This Policy may be amended or substituted, in whole or in part, by the NRC or Board.

d. In case of any statutory change not being consistent with the provisions laid down
under this Policy, then such change shall prevail upon the provisions hereunder and
this Policy shall stand amended accordingly from the effective date as laid down under
such statutory change to the Act and the Compliance Officer of the Company shall
ensure that such amendment is disseminated on the website of the Company,
wherever required.
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ANNEXURE-"4: STATEMENT CONTAINING SALIENT FEATURES OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT OF SUBSIDIARIES/ASSOCIATE
COMPANIES/JOINT VENTURES
[Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 of Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014-

AOC1]
Part “A”: Subsidiaries
(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs )
Rs. in Lacs)

1 SI. No. 1 2 3 4 5 6

Name of the subsidiary Fleur Hotels Begonia Canary Carnation Dandelion Lemon Tree

P. Ltd. Hotels P. Hotels P. Hotels P. Ltd. | Hotels P. Hotel Company
Ltd. Ltd. Ltd. * P. Ltd. *

3 Date since when subsidiary was | 25.09.2009 20.11.2009 18.05.2012 18.01.2007 19.07.2007 24.01.2007

acquired
4 Reporting period for the N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.

subsidiary concerned, if

different from the holding

company’s reporting period
5 Reporting currency and N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.

Exchange rate as on the last

date of the relevant Financial

year in the case of foreign

subsidiaries.
6 #Share capital 5,928.63 146.46 59.45 9.35 1.00 3.50
7 Reserves & surplus 93,663.93 3,650.38 (780.87) (95.87) 1,062.59 (1.87)
8 Total assets 1,16,210.87 4,114.28 4,993.40 920.07 1,108.95 1.69
9 Total Liabilities 16,618.31 317.44 5,714.82 1,006.59 45.36 0.06
10 Investments™* - - - - -
11 Turnover 4,916.42 1,592.89 1,216.50 488.72 - -
12 Profit before taxation/ (Loss)# 828.29 536.93 (220.17) (108.36) 44.07 (0.19)
13 Provision for taxation# 267.60 171.81 - (41.69) - -

(includes current Tax, deferred

tax)
14 Profit after taxation/(Loss)# 560.69 365.12 (220.17) (66.68) 44.07 (0.19)
15 Proposed Dividend - - - - - -
16 %o of shareholding*>** 57.98% 74.11% 100% 100% 100% 100%
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(Rs. In Lacs)

1 SI. No. 7 8 9 10 11 12
2 Name of the subsidiary Manakin Meringue Nightingale Oriole Dr. Pelican PSK
Resorts P. Hotels P. Hotels P. Fresh Hotels Facilities Resorts &
Ltd. Ltd.*> Ltd. P. Ltd. Management | Hotels P.
P. Ltd.* Ltd.*>
3 Date since when | 13.02.2009 18.01.2007 10.01.2013 10.01.2013 10.01.2013 13.02.2009
subsidiary was acquired
4 Reporting period for the N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
subsidiary concerned, if
different from the
holding company’s
reporting period
5 Reporting currency and N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
Exchange rate as on the
last date of the relevant
Financial year in the
case of foreign
subsidiaries.
6 #Share capital 571.43 10.90 1,303.66 20.00 01.00 86.67
7 Reserves & surplus 866.19 9,694.09 4,552.76 178.16 (1.48) 2,222.72
8 Total assets 1,515.70 19,094.23 11,531.69 4,947.57 0.59 2,340.02
9 Total Liabilities 78.08 9,389.24 5,675.27 4,749.41 1.07 30.63
10 Investments™* - - - - - -
11 Turnover 437.84 - 2,349.64 833.62 - -
12 Profit before taxation/ 44.81 (5.86) (184.65) (45.15) (0.16) (1.08)
(Loss)
13 Provision for taxation - - 0.10 0.82 - -
14 | Profit after 44.81 (5.86) (184.75) (45.97) (0.16) (1.08)
taxation/(Loss)
15 Proposed Dividend - - - - - -
16 | % of shareholding*** 100% 80% 57.53% 100% 100% 100%
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(Rs. In Lacs)

1 SI. No. 13 14 15 16 17 18
2 Name of the subsidiary Sukhsagar Red Fox Grey Fox Valerian Celsia Hotels | Inovoa
Complexes P. | Hotel Project Management | P. Ltd. Hotels And
Ltd. Company P. Management | Services P. Resorts Ltd.
Ltd. * Company P. Ltd.
Ltd.
3 Date since when 10.01.2013 10.01.2013 28.09.2012 16.09.2013 29.03.2012 16.08.2013
subsidiary was acquired
4 Reporting period for the N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
subsidiary concerned, if
different from the
holding company’s
reporting period
5 Reporting currency and N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
Exchange rate as on the
last date of the relevant
Financial year in the
case of foreign
subsidiaries.
6 #Share capital 49.50 1.00 5.01 1.00 3.47 2,148.00
7 Reserves & surplus 76.52 (1.09) (91.24) (184.93) 5,647.18 94.60
8 Total assets 5,251.29 0.08 389.33 55.04 11,872.74 5,994.62
9 Total Liabilities 5,125.27 0.17 475.56 238.97 6,222.09 3,752.02
10 Investments™* - - - - - -
11 Turnover 1,165.74 - 303.92 97.67 2,630.97 1,670.39
12 Profit before taxation/ (154.08) (0.28) (32.69) (18.02) 219.25 (50.33)
(Loss)
13 Provision for taxation (0.62) 0.02 - - (5.64) (25.50)
14 Profit after (153.46) (0.30) (32.69) (18.02) 224.89 (24.83)
taxation/(Loss)
15 Proposed Dividend - - - - - -
16 %o of shareholding*>** 100% 100% 74.90% 74.90% 57.98% 57.98%

27



LEMON TREE HOTELS LIMITED

(Rs. In Lacs)

1 Sl. No. 19 20 21 22
Name of the subsidiary lora Hotels Ophrys Hyacinth Hotels P. | Bandhav
P. Ltd. * Hotels P. Ltd. Resorts
Ltd.* Private
Limited
3 Date since when subsidiary was 14.11.2013 10.01.2014 19.07.2007 13.05.2016
acquired
4 Reporting period for the subsidiary N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
concerned, if different from the holding
company’s reporting period
5 Reporting currency and Exchange rate N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
as on the last date of the relevant
Financial year in the case of foreign
subsidiaries.
6 #Share capital 450.00 2.50 71.00 23.11
7 Reserves & surplus 20,588.23 (1.41) 12,994.25 430.36
8 Total assets 22,411.78 1.15 22,014.58 541.64
9 Total Liabilities 1,373.55 0.06 8,949.33 88.17
10 Investments™* - - - -
11 Turnover - - 5,129.03 37.62
12 Profit before taxation/ (Loss) (0.37) (0.41) (493.59) (51.59)
13 Provision for taxation - - (2.75) -
14 Profit after taxation/ (Loss) (0.37) (0.41) (490.84) (51.59)
15 Proposed Dividend - - - -
16 %o of shareholding*>** 57.98% 57.98% 57.98% 57.98%
Notes:

* Subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations.

**x

Investments except investments in subsidiaries and non-current investments.

*** 0% of shareholding covers both direct and indirect shareholding in the subsidiaries.

#

Includes only equity share capital
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Part “B”’: Associates and Joint Ventures

LEMON TREE HOTELS LIMITED

Statement pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint ventures

Name of Associate/Joint Ventures

Name

Not Applicable
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ANNEXURE '5": DETAILS OF STOCK OPTIONS IN TERMS OF EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION

SCHEME

[Pursuant to Rule 12(9) of the Companies (Share Capital And Debentures) Rules, 2014)

Sr. No Description ESOP Scheme

a) Options Granted -
b) Options vested 23,41,593
C) Options Exercised 28,71,902
d) Total Number of Shares arising as a result of exercise of option 28,71,902
e) Options lapsed 3,83,394
f) The exercise price (On weighted average basis) 15.74
Q) Variation of terms of options None
h) Money realized by exercise of options 4,63,32,502
i) Total number of options in force 78,23,678
) Employee wise details for options granted to:-

(i) Key managerial Personnel:

a)Mr. Rattan Keswani (Deputy Managing Director)

b)Mr. Kapil Sharma (Chief Financial Officer)

¢) Mr. Nikhil Sethi(Group Company Secretary and GM Legal)

(ii) any other employee who received a grant of options in any
one year of option amounting to five percent of more of options
granted during that year

(iii) identified employees who were granted option, during any
one year, equal to or exceeding one percent of the issued
capital(Excluding outstanding warrants and conversions) of the
Company at the time of grant
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ANNEXURE '6": REMUNERATION TO EMPLOYEES
[Pursuant to Rule 5(2) & 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

LEMON TREE HOTELS LIMITED

Sr. Description DIRECTORS EMPLOYEES

No.

a) Name of the Employee Mr. Patanjali Mr. Kapil Mr. Vikramjit | Mr. Davander Mr. Ajai Ms. Aradhana Mr. Sareena

G. Keswani Sharma Singh Singh Tomar Kumar Lal Kochhar
@ @ (©)) Q) (©) ®) @

b) Designation of the Chairman & Executive Vice President & Chief | Executive Vice | Chief Vice President- Vice

employee Managing President-Chief Revenue Officer President- Information Sustainability President-
Director Financial Officer Corporate Officer Initiatives Housekeeping
Affairs

c) Remuneration 3,09,69,229/- 81,67,530/- 58,27,042/- 52,56,510/- 36,83,153/- 34,29,942/- 34,13,355/-
Received (In Rs.)

d) Nature of Employment, | Non-contractual | Non-contractual Non-contractual Non- Non- Non-contractual | Non-
whether contractual or contractual contractual contractual
not

e) Qualifications and B. Tech in Chartered Graduate from M.A & LLB B.Sc & MCA | MBA from IIM B.Sc (Home
experience of the Electrical Accountant Sri Ram College from Delhi from Madan | Ahmedabad Science) and
employee Engineering He has a of Commerce and | University and | Mohan and has over Diploma in

from IIT Delhi experience of a post graduate has a total Malaviya 23 years of Hotel
and PGDBM over 22 years in Hospitality experience of Engineering | experience in Management
(Financ.e and Mane.lg.emer?t and | over 35 years. College, Sales, with over 30
Marketing) from Administration Gorakhpur, Marketing, years .of .
IIM Kolkata. He from the experience in
. UP & 25 Corporate -
has a Taj Group L Hospitality
. years of Communication
experience of of Hotels and has .
over 31 years an experience of rich and
over 20 years experience Sustainability.
in his field
f) Date of 07.10.2002 01.12.2004 15.04.2014 25.09.2002 15.10.2010 01.06.2003 15.07.2006

commencement of
employment with
company
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) The age of such 58 Years 48 years 42 years 56 years 48 years 48 years 53 years
employee

h) The last employment Senior Partner Head-Finance and | He was an Area Security General Sales & Corporate
held by such employee A.T. Kearney Accounts, Leroy entrepreneur in Manager-Taj Manager- Operations Executive
before joining the Inc., India Somer (Emerson | Assam where he | Group of Hotels | Technology Manager at Housekeeper
Company Group) ran his own hotel with Lemon Hindustan with VLCC

Tree Hotels Lever Network Health Care.
Limited (formerly
known as
Aviance)

)] The percentage of 0.25% 0.17% 0.02% 0.03% 0.02% 0.23% 0.03%
equity shares held by
the employee in the
Company within the
meaning of Clause(iii)
of sub-rule (2) above

) Whether any such Mr. Aditya N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A
employee is a relative Madhav
of any director or Keswani,
manager of the Directors
Company and if so, the
name of such director
or manager

Note(s):

1. Gross remuneration includes basic salary, allowances, taxable value of perquisites and the Company’s contribution to Provident Fund, but excludes

provision for retiring gratuity and leave benefits for which separate figures are not available.
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ANNEXURE '6": REMUNERATION TO EMPLOYEES
[Pursuant to Rule 5(2) & 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

LEMON TREE HOTELS LIMITED

Sr. Description EMPLOYEES
No.
a) Name of the Employee Ms. Ritu Ranjan Mr. Rajiv Tyagi Mr. Prashant Mehrotra
@ ® 19
b) Designation of the employee Chief Design Officer Assistant Vice AVP & Chief Operating
President-Finance Officer
c) Remuneration Received 32,89,836/- 31,34,086/- Rs. 30,40,893
(In Rs.)
d) Nature of Employment, whether contractual or not | Non-contractual Non-contractual Non-contractual
e) Qualifications and experience of the employee B.A (Honors) in Philosophy He is commerce Diploma in Hotel
from Delhi University in the graduate from Delhi Management from Pusa,
year 1987 and having 16 years | University and have Delhi in the year 2004
of experience over 27 years of and having 16 years of
experience in his field experience
) Date of commencement of employment with 01.04.2014 15.07.2006 15.07.2006
company
) The age of such employee 51 years 55 years 37 years
h) The last employment held by such employee Self employed Area Credit Manager, Duty Manager at The
before joining the Company Taj Group of Hotels, Oberoi, Nariman Point,
New Delhi Mumbai
)} The percentage of equity shares held by the 0.03% 0.05% 0.02%
employee in the Company within the meaning of
Clause(iii) of sub-rule (2) above
) Whether any such employee is a relative of any N.A N.A N.A
director or manager of the Company and if so, the
name of such director or manager

Note(s):
Gross remuneration includes basic salary, allowances, taxable value of perquisites and the Company’s contribution to Provident Fund, but excludes
provision for retiring gratuity and leave benefits for which separate figures are not available.
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT!
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31* MARCH, 2017

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Lemon Tree Hotels Limited

(CIN: U74899DL1992PLC049022)
Asset No. 6, Aerocity Hospitality District,
New Delhi-110037

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Lemon Tree Hotels
Limited (hereinafter called the Company) which is an unlisted company. Secretarial
Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating
the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

We report that

a) Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records
based on our audit.

b) We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial
records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are
reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we
followed, provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

c) We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of the financial
statements of the Company.

d) Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the
compliances of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

e) The compliance of the provisions of the Corporate and other applicable laws,
rules, regulation, standards is the responsibility of the management. Our
examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

f) The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during
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the conduct of Secretarial Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company
has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31°%' March, 2017
(“Audit Period”) complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that
the Company has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to
the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the company for the financial year ended on 31 March,
2017 according to the provisions of:

() The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(i) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct
Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial
Standard on Meetings of the Board of Directors and on General Meetings issued by
the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, with which the Company has generally
complied with.

During the Audit Period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions
of the Act, Rules, Regulations and Guidelines, to the extent applicable, as mentioned
above.

(i) The Company is engaged in the Hotel Business and is running hotels at various
locations PAN India. Following are some of the laws specifically applicable to the
Company:

» The Legal Metrology Act, 2009 and rules made thereunder,
» Food Safety and Standards Act, 2006 and rules made thereunder;

We have checked the compliance management system of the Company to obtain
reasonable assurance about the adequacy of systems in place to ensure
compliance of specifically applicable laws and this verification was done on test
basis. We believe that the Audit evidence which we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. In our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to explanations given to us, we believe that
the compliance management system of the Company is satisfactory, which can
further be strengthened to ensure compliance of laws specifically applicable to the
Company.

We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted
with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and
Independent Directors. The changes in the Board of Directors that took place
during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions
of the Act.
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Adequate notice is given to all its directors to schedule the Board Meetings.
Agenda and detailed notes on agenda are sent in advance of the meetings and a
system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on
the agenda items before the meeting for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Board decisions are carried out with unanimous consent, as may be applicable,
and therefore, no dissenting views were required to be captured and recorded as
part of the minutes.

We further report that systems and processes in the Company are satisfactory,
which can further be strengthened commensurate with the size and operations of
the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period-

i) Members in their Annual General Meeting held on 30" September, 2016
approved:-

a) the contribution to any national, charitable, social, benevolent, public or
general and other funds/ institutions/ hospitals/ trustees/ entities not directly
relating to the business of the Company or the welfare of its employees of
any amounts the aggregate of which does not exceed Rs. 20,00,000/-
(Rupees Twenty Lacs only) in the financial year ending 31% March, 2017;
and

b) the increase in overall limit for the loans, investments, guarantees and
securities to be made/given which shall not exceed Rs. 2,500 Crore
(Rupees Two Thousand Five Hundred Crores), regardless that the
aggregate of the loans, guarantees, securities and investments may
exceed the percentages prescribed under Section 186 of the Act.

For Sanjay Grover & Associates
Company Secretaries
Firm Registration No.: P2001DE052900

Sd/-

Priyanka

15.06.2017 Partner
New Delhi CP No. 16187
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ANNEXURE '8’ :

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS/ARRANGEMENTS ENTERED WITH THE RELATED PARTIES

[Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014-A0C2]

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis.

Wildlife Resort,
Bandhavgarh

Incentive Fees:

(a) 4.0% of Gross Operating
Profit of the Hotel where
the AGOP Margin is less
than or equal to 50%; or
8.0% of Gross Operating
Profit of the Hotel where
the AGOP Margin is more
than 509%;
Reimbursements
Additional Services :
(i) all traveling, telephone,

(b)

for

telegraph, subsistence,
telex, postal, and other
expenses

(i) the fees and

reimbursable expenses

the Company and the Related
Party and is in compliance
with Section 188 and other
applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the
rules thereto.

Sl. No/ Name of the Nature of Duration of Salient terms of the Date of Amount Date on which special resolution was
Particula related party Contract/arrange Contract/arra Contracts/arrange approva paid as passed in General meeting u/first
rs and nature of ment and ngements/tra | ment or transaction | of the Advances, proviso to S.188
relationship transactions nsaction including the value Board if any (3)
@ (&) (©)) “ ®) (@)
NO SUCH CONTRACT/ARRANGEMENT/ TRANSACTION WHICH WAS NOT AT ARM'S LENGTH BASIS DURING THE YEAR
Sl. No/ | Name of the Nature of Duration of Salient terms of the Justification for entering Date of Amount Date of
Parti- related Contract/arran Contract/ Contracts/ arrangement or into contracts or approval paid as passing
culars party and gement and arrangements| transaction including the arrangements or of the Advances, resolution
nature of transactions /transaction value transaction Board if any u/Sec 188
relationship 2) 3) “4) 5) (6) @) of CA2013
@ @
Bandhav Hotel Operating 12 years w.e.f | Base Fees: The transaction for entering | 12.12.2016 | Nil 19.12.2016
Resorts Agreement for 1% October, 3.5 % of Gross Income of the | into agreement for
Private Operation of the 2016 Hotel on a calendar monthly | management and operation
Limited Lemon Tree basis; services is advantageous for
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Fleur Hotels Hotel Operating 12 years Base Fees: The transaction for entering | 12.12.2016 | Nil 19.12.2016
Private Agreement for 3.5 % of Gross Income of the | into agreement for
Limited rendering Hotel(s) on a calendar | management and operation
services for monthly basis; services is advantageous for
management Incentive Fees: the Company and the Related
and operation of (a) 4.0% of Gross Operating | Party and is in compliance
the Lemon Tree Profit of the Hotel(s) where | with Section 188 and other
Hotel, Candolim the AGOP Margin is less than | applicable provisions of the
Goa or equal to 50%; or Companies Act, 2013 and the
(b) 8.0% of Gross Operating | rules thereto.
Profit of the Hotel(s) where
the AGOP Margin is more than
50%;
Reimbursements for
Additional Services:
(i) all traveling, telephone,
telegraph, subsistence, telex,
postal, and other expenses
(ii) the fees and reimbursable
expenses
Fleur Hotels Hotel Operating 12 years Base Fees: The transaction for entering | 12.12.2016 | Nil 19.12.2016

Private
Limited

Agreement for
rendering
services for
management
and operation of
the Lemon Tree
Hotel, Sector 60,
Gurgaon

3.5 % of Gross Income of the
Hotel(s) on a calendar
monthly basis;

Incentive Fees:

(a) 4.0% of Gross Operating
Profit of the Hotel(s) where
the AGOP Margin is less than
or equal to 50%; or

(b) 8.0% of Gross Operating
Profit of the Hotel(s) where
the AGOP Margin is more than
50%;

Reimbursements for
Additional Services:

(i) all traveling, telephone,
telegraph, subsistence, telex,
postal, and other expenses

(ii) the fees and reimbursable
expenses

into agreement for
management and operation
services is advantageous for
the Company and the Related
Party and is in compliance
with Section 188 and other
applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the
rules thereto.
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Fleur Hotels Hotel Operating | 12 years Base Fees: The transaction for entering | 12.12.2016 | Nil 19.12.2016
Private Agreement for 3.5 % of Gross Income of the | into agreement for
Limited rendering Hotel(s) on a calendar | management and operation
services for monthly basis; services is advantageous for
management Incentive Fees: the Company and the Related
and operation of (a) 4.0% of Gross Operating | Party and is in compliance
the Red Fox Profit of the Hotel(s) where | with Section 188 and other
Hotel, Sector 60, the AGOP Margin is less than | applicable provisions of the
Gurgaon or equal to 50%; or Companies Act, 2013 and the
(b) 8.0% of Gross Operating | rules thereto.
Profit of the Hotel(s) where
the AGOP Margin is more than
50%;
Reimbursements for
Additional Services:
(i) all traveling, telephone,
telegraph, subsistence, telex,
postal, and other expenses
(ii) the fees and reimbursable
expenses
Bandhav Development Development The transaction for entering | 29.03.2017 | Nil 19.05.2017
Resorts Management Management Fee shall be | into agreement for providing
Private Agreement for 6% of the Total | services with its related
Limited rendering Development Cost of the | parties is on ‘arm’s length’
services to Project as defined below. basis and is advantageous for
related party for the Company considering the
managing the "Development Cost" means | experience of the related

development of
the Lemon Tree
Wildlife  Resort,
Bandhavgarh

(“Project”) till
the completion of
the Project.

the costs and fees and
expenses properly paid by the
Company in relation to the
development and/or
renovation of the Hotel Project
or Hotel Projects (as
appropriate) as appropriate or
as set out in the Development
Budget excluding Land Cost,
cost of financing and all fees
or payments made to the
Development Manager
(whether for  professional
services or otherwise)

The Company for providing
the development management

party and shall be in
compliance with Section 188
and other applicable
provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the rules
thereto.
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services may hire external
vendors and consultants,

without prior approval of
Bandhav Resorts Private
Limited, for architecture,
designing, interiors,
horticulture, other services,
and project management

services for the Projects.

Mrs. Service 3 years The fee for the said services | The transaction for entering | 29.03.2017 | N.A 19.05.2017
Sharanita Agreement, for for the remaining tenure shall | into service agreement is
Keswani availing her be paid within 15 days of | advantageous for the
Relative of professional receipt of the invoice and the | Company and the Related
Mr. Aditya services as total fee payable in a year | Party considering the
Madhav_ Marketing and shall not exceed Rs. 50.40 | expertise of the Related party
Keswani Brand Consultant Lacs for the financial year | in providing the services and
for the Company, 2017-18 to F.Y 2019-20 is in compliance with Section
for the remaining 188 and other applicable
tenure of 3 years provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the rules
thereto
Fleur Hotels | Addendum to the | Remaining The fees for the said services | Actual cost being incurred by | 29.03.2017 | N.A 19.05.2017
Private Hotel operating tenure of the | shall remain the same except | the Company is more than the
Limited Agreement dated | agreement the increase in the | cost reimbursed by the related

25.04.2012
executed on
29.03.2017 for
the property at
Hyderabad

reimbursement of the costs
incurred towards advertising,
call center’s, sales promotion,
public relations and personnel
training programmes, sales
and reservation networks and
facilities (such as web-sites,
reservations network, loyalty
programmes, etc.) which are
being administered by the
Company in the interest of the
Hotels.

The Related party will
reimburse the cost upto the
maximum of 3% of the Gross
Income of the Hotel on

party and accordingly the cost
has been increased, with the
mutual consent of the parties,
which is justifiable
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monthly basis. Such cost will
be trued up at the end of each
Financial year

Fleur Hotels | Addendum to the | Remaining The fees for the said services | Actual cost of re- | 29.03.2017 | Nil 19.05.2017
Private Hotel operating tenure of the | shall remain the same except | imbursements is expected to
Limited Agreement dated | agreement the increase in the | be more than what was
(Related 19.12.2016 reimbursement of the costs | envisaged at the time of
Party) executed on incurred towards advertising, | entering into contract.
29.03.2017, for call center’s, sales promotion,
services public relations and personnel
rendered for training programmes, sales
Lemon Tree and reservation networks and
Hotel, Candolim facilities (such as web-sites,
Goa reservations network, loyalty
programmes, etc.) which are
being administered by the
Company in the interest of the
Hotels.
The Related party will
reimburse the cost upto the
maximum of 3% of the Gross
Income of the Hotel on
monthly basis. Such cost will
be trued up at the end of each
Financial year
Celsia Hotels | Addendum to the | Remaining The fees for the said services | Actual cost being incurred by | 29.03.2017 19.05.2017
Private Hotel operating tenure of the | shall remain the same except | the Company is more than the
Limited Agreement dated | agreement the increase in the | cost reimbursed by the related
(Related 29.06.2012 reimbursement of the costs | party and accordingly the cost
Party) executed on incurred towards advertising, | has been increased which is

29.03.2017 for
Lemon Tree
Hotel, Bangalore

call center’s, sales promotion,
public relations and personnel
training programmes, sales
and reservation networks and
facilities (such as web-sites,
reservations network, loyalty

justifiable
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programmes, etc.) which are
being administered by the
Company in the interest of the
Hotels.

The Related party will
reimburse the cost upto the
maximum of 3% of the Gross
Income of the Hotel on
monthly basis. Such cost will
be trued up at the end of each
Financial year

10

Inovoa Hotels
and Resorts
Limited
(Related
Party)

Addendum to the
Hotel operating
Agreement dated

30.09.2013
executed on
29.03.2017 for
Lemon Tree
Hotel, Whitefield.
Bangalore

Remaining
tenure of the
agreement

The fees for the said services
shall remain the same except
the increase in the
reimbursement of the costs
incurred towards advertising,
call center’s, sales promotion,
public relations and personnel
training programmes, sales
and reservation networks and
facilities (such as web-sites,
reservations network, loyalty
programmes, etc.) which are
being administered by the
Company in the interest of the
Hotels.

The Related party will
reimburse the cost upto the
maximum of 3% of the Gross
Income of the Hotel on
monthly basis. Such cost will
be trued up at the end of each
Financial year

Actual cost being incurred by
the Company is more than the
cost reimbursed by the related
party and accordingly the cost
has been increased which is
justifiable

29.03.2017

19.05.2017
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11 Nightingale Addendum to the | Remaining The fees for the said services | Actual cost being incurred by | 29.03.2017 | Nil 19.05.2017
Hotels Private | Hotel operating tenure of the | shall remain the same except | the Company is more than the
Limited Agreement dated | agreement the increase in the | cost reimbursed by the related
(Related 01.03.2015 reimbursement of the costs | party and accordingly the cost
Party) executed on incurred towards advertising, | has been increased which is

29.03.2017 for call center’s, sales promotion, | justifiable
Lemon Tree public relations and personnel
Hotel, training programmes, sales
Gachibowli, and reservation networks and
Hyderabad facilities (such as web-sites,
reservations network, loyalty
programmes, etc.) which are
being administered by the
Company in the interest of the
Hotels.
The Related party will
reimburse the cost upto the
maximum of 3% of the Gross
Income of the Hotel on
monthly basis. Such cost will
be trued up at the end of each
Financial year

12 Begonia Addendum to the | Remaining The fees for the said services | Actual cost being incurred by | 29.03.2017 19.05.2017
Hotels Private | Hotel operating tenure of the | shall remain the same except | the Company is more than the
Limited Agreement dated | agreement the increase in the | cost reimbursed by the related

(Related
Party)

01.08.2015
executed on
29.03.2017 for
Lemon Tree
Amarante Beach
Resort, Goa

reimbursement of the costs
incurred towards advertising,
call center’s, sales promotion,
public relations and personnel
training programmes, sales
and reservation networks and
facilities (such as web-sites,
reservations network, loyalty
programmes, etc.) which are
being administered by the
Company in the interest of the
Hotels.

party and accordingly the cost
has been increased which is
justifiable
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The Related party will
reimburse the cost upto the
maximum of 3% of the Gross
Income of the Hotel on
monthly basis. Such cost will
be trued up at the end of each
Financial year

13

Hyacinth
Hotels Private
Limited
(Related
Party)

Addendum to the
Hotel operating
Agreement dated
22.09.2014
executed on
29.03.2017 for
Lemon Tree
Premier, Delhi
Aerocity

Remaining
tenure of the
agreement

The fees for the said services
shall remain the same except
the increase in the
reimbursement of the costs
incurred towards advertising,
call center’s, sales promotion,
public relations and personnel
training programmes, sales
and reservation networks and
facilities (such as web-sites,
reservations network, loyalty
programmes, etc.) which are
being administered by the
Company in the interest of the
Hotels.

The Related party will
reimburse the cost upto the
maximum of 3% of the Gross
Income of the Hotel on
monthly basis. Such cost will
be trued up at the end of each
Financial year

Actual cost being incurred by
the Company is more than the
cost reimbursed by the related
party and accordingly the cost
has been increased which is
justifiable

29.03.2017

19.05.2017

14

Bandhav
Resorts
Private
Limited
(Related
Party)

Addendum to the
Hotel operating
Agreement
dated19.12.2016
executed on
29.03.2017 for
Lemon Tree
Wildlife Resort,

Remaining
tenure of the
agreement

The fees for the said services
shall remain the same except
the increase in the
reimbursement of the costs
incurred towards advertising,
call center’s, sales promotion,
public relations and personnel
training programmes, sales

Actual cost of re-
imbursements is expected to
be more than what was
envisaged at the time of
entering into contract.

29.03.2017

19.05.2017
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Bandhavgarh

and reservation networks and
facilities (such as web-sites,
reservations network, loyalty
programmes, etc.) which are
being administered by the
Company in the interest of the
Hotels.

The Related party will
reimburse the cost upto the
maximum of 3% of the Gross
Income of the Hotel on
monthly basis. Such cost will
be trued up at the end of each
Financial year

15

Fleur Hotels
Private
Limited
(Related
Party)

Addendum to the
Hotel operating
Agreement dated
09.01.2017
executed on
29.03.2017 for
management
and operation of
the Red Fox
Hotel, Sector 60,
Gurgaon

Remaining
tenure of the
agreement

The fees for the said services
shall remain the same except
the increase in the
reimbursement of the costs
incurred towards advertising,
call center’s, sales promotion,
public relations and personnel
training programmes, sales
and reservation networks and
facilities (such as web-sites,
reservations network, loyalty
programmes, etc.) which are
being administered by the
Company in the interest of the
Hotels.

The Related party will
reimburse the cost upto the
maximum of 3% of the Gross
Income of the Hotel on
monthly basis. Such cost will
be trued up at the end of each
Financial year

Actual cost of re-
imbursements is expected to
be more than what was
envisaged at the time of
entering into contract.

29.03.2017

Nil

19.05.2017
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16 Fleur Hotels | Addendum to the | Remaining The fees for the said services | Actual cost of re- | 29.03.2017 | Nil 19.05.2017
Private Hotel operating tenure of the | shall remain the same except | imbursements is expected to
Limited Agreement dated | agreement the increase in the | be more than what was
(Related 20.01.2017 reimbursement of the costs | envisaged at the time of
Party) executed on incurred towards advertising, | entering into contract.

29.03.2017 for call center’s, sales promotion,
Lemon Tree public relations and personnel
Hotel, Sector 60, training programmes, sales
Gurgaon and reservation networks and
facilities (such as web-sites,
reservations network, loyalty
programmes, etc.) which are
being administered by the
Company in the interest of the
Hotels.
The Related party will
reimburse the cost upto the
maximum of 3% of the Gross
Income of the Hotel on
monthly basis. Such cost will
be trued up at the end of each
Financial year

17 Fleur Hotels | License Term of 3 A fee of 1.75% (One Point | The transaction for entering | 12.12.2016 | N.A N.A
Private Agreement for months w.e.f | Seven Five Percent) of the | into service agreement is
Limited grant of use of 1st Gross Revenue of the Hotel | advantageous for the

trademarks of November, (as defined under Article 1.1 | Company and the Related
the Company for | 2016 which of the HOA) which shall be | Party considering the
Lemon Tree may be charged and accounted as | expertise of the Related party
Premier, Leisure extended as follows: (a) marketing fee of | in providing the services and
Valley 2, mutually 1.5% (One Point Five Percent) | is in compliance with Section
Gurgaon agreed of Gross Revenue and (b) a | 188 and other applicable
between the Royalty Fee of 0.25% (One- | provisions of the Companies
parties. Quarter Percent) of Gross | Act, 2013 and the rules
Revenue. thereto
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ANNEXURE '9': EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

FORM NO. MGT 9
(AS ON FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31.03.2017)

[Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Company (Management &
Administration) Rules, 2014].

I REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

i CIN U74899DL1992PLC049022
ii Registration Date 2nd June, 1992
iii Name of the Company Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
iv Category/Sub-category of the Company Public Limited Company/Company having share capital
\% Address of the Registered office Asset No. 6, Aerocity Hospitality District, New Delhi-
& contact details 110037

Contact: 011-46050101

Vi Whether listed company Unlisted Company
Vii Name, Address & contact details of the Karvy Computershare Private Limited, Karvy Selenium,
Registrar & Transfer Agent, if any. Tower-B,

Plot No 31 & 32, Financial District,
Nanakramguda, Serilingampally Mandal,
Hyderabad-500032

T+91 040 67161603
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PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated

SL | Name & Description of main NIC Code %b to total turnover
No | products/services of the of the company
Product
/service
1 Hotel Business 55101 100%
111 | PARTICULARS OF HOLDING , SUBSIDIARY & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
Sl Name of the Address CIN/GLN HOLDING/ %o OF
No | Company SUBSIDIAR SHARES
Y/ HELD #
ASSOCIATE
1 Begonia Hotels Private | B-6/17, Safdarjung | U55101DL2009PTC189339 | Subsidiary 74.11%
Limited Enclave, New Delhi-
110029
2 Carnation Hotels | B-6/17, Safdarjung | U55101DL2002PTC118180 | Wholly 100%
Private Limited Enclave, New Delhi- Owned
110029 Subsidiary
3 Dandelion Hotels | B-6/17, Safdarjung | U55101DL2007PTC166044 | Wholly 100%
Private Limited Enclave, New Delhi- Owned
110029 Subsidiary
4 Lemon Tree Hotel | B-6/17, Safdarjung | U55101DL2007PTC158376 | Wholly 100%
Company Private | Enclave, New Delhi- Owned
Limited 110029 Subsidiary
5 Meringue Hotels | B-6/17, Safdarjung | U55101DL2006PTC144533 | Indirect 80%
Private Limited Enclave, New Delhi- Subsidiary
110029
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6 Nightingale Hotels | B-6/17, Safdarjung | U55101DL2007PTC158178 | Subsidiary 57.53%
Private Limited Enclave, New Delhi-
110029
7 Oriole Dr. Fresh | B-6/17, Safdarjung | U85110DL2004PTC128937 | Wholly 100%
Hotels Private Limited | Enclave, New Delhi- Owned
110029 Subsidiary
8 Pelican Facilities | B-6/17, Safdarjung | U74140DL2009PTC195209 | Wholly 100%
Management Private | Enclave, New Delhi- Owned
Limited 110029 Subsidiary
9 Canary Hotels Private | B-6/17, Safdarjung | U55101DL2006PTC144532 | Wholly 100%
Limited Enclave, New Delhi- Owned
110029 Subsidiary
10 | Sukhsagar Complexes | B-6/17, Safdarjung | U70101DL1993PTC172878 | Wholly 100%
Private Limited Enclave, New Delhi- Owned
110029 Subsidiary
11 | Red Fox Hotel | B-6/17, Safdarjung | U55204DL2007PTC157848 | Wholly 100%
Company Private | Enclave, New Delhi- Owned
Limited 110029 Subsidiary
12 Grey Fox Project | B-6/17, Safdarjung | U74140DL2012PTC238272 | Subsidiary 74.90%
Management Enclave, New Delhi-
Company Private | 110029
Limited
13 | Valerian Management | B-6/17, Safdarjung | U20296DL2007PTC169518 | Indirect 74.90%
Services Private | Enclave, New Delhi- Subsidiary
Limited 110029
14 | PSK Resorts & Hotels | B-6/17, Safdarjung | U74140DL2007PTC169861 | Wholly 100%
Private Limited Enclave, New Delhi- Owned
110029 Subsidiary
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Umaria MP 484665

15 | Manakin Resorts | B-6/17, Safdarjung | U55101DL2005PTC212230 | Indirect 100%
Private Limited Enclave, New Delhi- Subsidiary
110029
16 | Fleur Hotels Private | Asset No. 6, Aerocity | U55101DL2003PTC207912 | Subsidiary 57.98%
Limited Hospitality District,
New Delhi-110037
17 | Celsia Hotels Private | B-6/17, Safdarjung | U45201DL2003PTC191326 | Indirect 57.98%
Limited Enclave, New Delhi- Subsidiary
110029
18 Hyacinth Hotels | B-6/17, Safdarjung | U55204DL2007PTC166050 | Indirect 57.98%
Private Limited Enclave, New Delhi- Subsidiary
110029
19 Inovoa Hotels & | Asset No. 6, Aerocity | U65921DL1995PLC067686 | Indirect 57.98%
Resorts Limited Hospitality District, Subsidiary
New Delhi-110037
20 lora Hotels Private | B-6/17, Safdarjung | U55101DL2009PTC192981 | Indirect 57.98%
Limited Enclave, New Delhi- Subsidiary
110029
21 | Ophrys Hotels Private | B-6/17, Safdarjung | U55101DL2007PTC166020 | Indirect 57.98%
Limited Enclave, New Delhi- Subsidiary
110029
22 Bandhav Resorts | Khasra No 3/1 Village | U55100MP2008PTC021259 | Indirect 57.98%
Private Limited Bijuria Tehsil Manpur Subsidiary

# % of shares mentions both direct and indirect, as the case may be, shareholding in subsidiaries.
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v SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share capital Break up as 26 to total Equity)
0] Category-wise Share holding

Category of No. of Shares held at the beginning of No. of Shares held at the end of the year % change

Shareholders the year during

_ Demat| Physical Total %% of| Demat Physical Total 2% of Total the year
Total Shares
Shares

A. Promoters* :
(&D) Indian ,
a) Individual/ 0 18,05,468 18,05,468 0.23 0 19,17,628 19,17,628 0.25 0.02
HUF
b) Central Govt. 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
or
State Govt.
¢) Bodies 0| 18,01,22,627| 18,01,22,627| 23.15 0| 18,01,22,627 18,01,22,627 23.05 -0.10
Corporates
d) Bank/FI 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
e) Any other 0 0 ] 0.00 ] ] ] 0.00 0.00
SUBTOTAL 0 [18,19,28,095(18,19,28,095 | 23.38 0| 18,20,40,255 | 18,20,40,255 23.30 -0.08
@
(2) Foreign
a) NRI- 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
Individuals
b) Other 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
Individuals
¢) Bodies Corp. 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
d) Banks/FI 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
e) Any other... 0 0 ] 0.00 ] ] ] 0.00 0.00
SUB TOTAL (A) 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

>
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Total Share- 0 18,19,28,095(18,19,28,095 | 23.38 0 | 18,20,40,255 | 18,20,40,255 23.30 -0.08
holding of

Promoters

A=A

+(A3)

B.PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING:

(D Institutions

a) Mutual Funds 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
b) Banks/FI 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
¢) Central Govt. 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
d) State Govt. 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
e) Venture 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
Capital Fund

f) Insurance 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
Companies

g) FlIS 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
h) Foreign 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
Venture

Capital Funds

i) Others 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
(specify)

SUB TOTAL 0] 0] 0] 0.00 0] 0] 0] 0.00 0.00
B)A):
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Category of
Share-
holders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the

year

No. of Shares held at the end of the year

Demat

Physical

Total

%0 of
Total
Shares

Demat

Physical

Total

%0 of
Total
Shares

% change
during the
year

(2) Non Institutions

a) Bodies
corporates

i) #Indian

15,71,57,054

15,71,57,054

20.20

15,70,32,054

15,70,32,054

20.10

-0.10

i) Overseas

(a)Foreign
Body
Corporates

36,94,62,520

36,94,62,520

47.48

38,39,26,270

38,39,26,270

49.14

1.66

(b) OCB

- Repat Basis

1,36,76,250

1,36,76,250

1.75

-1.75

- Non-Repat
Basis

7,87,500

7,87,500

0.10

-0.10

b)
Individuals

i) Individual
shareholders
holding
nominal share
capital upto
Rs.1 lakhs

67,548

67,548

0.01

70,512

70,512

0.01

0.00

i) ##Individuals
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital in
excess of Rs. 1

3,73,42,234

3,73,42,234

4.80

4,05,24,012

4,05,24,012

5.19

0.39
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lakhs

c) Others
(specify)

HUF

0

1,42,42,692

1,42,42,692

1.83

1,42,42,692

1,42,42,692

1.82

-0.01

Trust

0

61,032

61,032

0.01

61,032

61,032

0.01

0.00

Non-Resident Individuals (NRI’S)

-Repat Basis

0

8,23,200

8,23,200

0.11

8,23,200

8,23,200

0.11

0.00

-Non-repat
Basis

0

25,54,038

25,54,038

0.33

25,54,038

25,54,038

0.33

0.00

SUB TOTAL
B)(2):

(0]

59,61,74,068

59,61,74,068

76.62

59,92,33,810

59,02,33,810

76.70

0.08

Total Public
Share-
holding
@®)=B)1)
+(B)(2)

59,61,74,068

59,61,74,068

76.62

59,92,33,810

59,02,33,810

76.70

0.08

C. Shares
held by
Custodian
for GDRs &
ADRs
Grand Total
(A+B+C)

(0]

77,81,02,163

77,81,02,163

0.00

100.00

(0]

78,12,74,065

78,12,74,065

0.00

100.00

0.00

(0]

* Earlier, the shareholding of promoters and promoters group was shown in the Annual Return, however Mr. Patanjali Govind Keswani and Spank Management Services Private

Limited are the ‘Promoters’ of the Company on the basis of definition of the term “Promoter” under the under the Companies Act, 2013, as amended.
# Includes shareholding aggregating to 7.25% as on 31.03.2016 and 7.22% as on 31.03.2017, of three body corporate namely Aster Hotels & Resorts Pvt Ltd, PRN Management
Services Private Limited and HeadStart Institute Private Limited, forming part of promoter’s group.
## Includes shareholding aggregating to 0.43% as on 31.03.2016 and 0.42% as on 31.03.2017, of two individuals namely Ms. lla Dubey and Ms. Lillette Dubey, forming part of

promoter’s group
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(i) SHAREHOLDING OF PROMOTERS

Shareholding at the Shareholding at the % change
beginning of the year end of the year in share
holding
during the
year
Sl Shareholders Name No. of %o of total | %% of shares No. of %o of %o of shares
No. shares shares pledged/ shares total pledged/
of the encumbered shares |encumbered to
company to total of the total shares
shares company
1 | Spank Management 180,122,627 23.15 9.84 | 180,122,627 23.05 10.78 -0.10
Services Pvt. Ltd.
2 | Patanjali G Keswani 1,805,468 0.23 - 19,17,628 0.25 - 0.02
Total 18,19,28,095 23.38 9.84 |18,20,40,255 23.30 10.78 0.08

* Earlier, the shareholding of promoters and promoters group was shown in the Annual Return, however Mr. Patanjali Govind Keswani and Spank Management Services Private
Limited are the ‘Promoters’ of the Company on the basis of definition of the term “Promoter” under the under the Companies Act, 2013, as amended.
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iii) CHANGE IN PROMOTERS® SHAREHOLDING ( SPECIFY IF THERE IS NO CHANGE)

Sl. | Name of the |No of Share ag %6 of Date Increase/ Reason Cumulative Share holding
No. Promoter at total Decrease during the year
01.04.2016/ | shares in No of %o of total
31.03.2017 of the shareholdi shares shares of
company ng Company
1 |Mr. Patanjali 18,05,468 0.23 01.04.2016
G. Keswani 22.08.2016 86,454 | Purchase 18,91,922 0.24
31.03.2017 25,706 Purchase 19,17,628 0.25
19,17,628 0.25 31.03.2017

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters & Holders of GDRs & ADRSs)

Sl Name of the |No of Shares| %o of Date Increase/ | Reason Cumulative Share holding
No. Share- as at total Decrease in during the year
holders 01.04.2016/ shares of share- No of %o of total shares
31.03.2017 Company holding shares of Company
1 [Maplewood 19,29,08,118 24.79 | 01.04.2016 Nil | No Change
Investment 19,29,08,118 | 24.69 | 31.03.2017
Ltd. (Non-
Resident
Company)
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APG Strategic
Real Estate
Pool N.V.
(Non-Resident
Company)

11,87,30,914

15.26

01.04.2016

Nil

No Change

11,87,30,914

15.20

31.03.2016

RJ Corp Ltd.
(Formerly
Arctic Drinks
Ltd)

7,87,48,368

10.12

01.04.2016

Nil

No Change

7,87,48,368

10.08

31.03.2017

Palms
International
Investments
Ltd. (Non-
Resident
Company)

2,38,56,072

3.07

01.04.2016

19.07.2016

*1,44,63,750

Through Merger
of Dianmo
Holdings with
Palms
International

3,83,19,822

4.90

3,83,19,822

4.90

31.03.2017

Aster Hotels
and Resorts
Private
Limited

3,40,30,542

4.37

01.04.2016

Nil

No Change

3,40,30,542

4.36

31.03.2017

Five Star
Hospitality
Investment
Ltd. (Non-
Resident
Company)

2,36,49,816

3.04

01.04.2016

Nil

No Change

2,36,49,816

3.03

31.03.2017
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7 | PRN 1,51,13,996 1.94 01.04.2016| Nil No Change
Management
Services P 1,51,13,996 1.93 31.03.2017
Ltd.
8 R K Jaipuria, 1,39,99,416 1.80 01.04.2016 Nil | No Change
Karta-M/s. R K | 1,39,99,416 1.79 31.03.2017
Jaipuria &
Sons (HUF)
9 Whispering 1,04,79,270 1.35 01.04.2016 Nil | No Change
Resorts Pvt.
Ltd.
1,04,79,270 1.34 31.03.2017
10 (Citron Ltd. 1,03,17,600 1.33 01.04.2016 Nil | No Change
(Non-Resident
Company)
1,03,17,600 1.32 31.03.2017

* Includes 7,87,500 shares being held on Repat Basis.
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(v) Shareholding of Directors & KMP

LEMON TREE HOTELS LIMITED

SI. Name of the No of % of Date Increase/| Reason Cumulative Share holding
No. |Directors/KMP’gShare as at| total Decrease during the year
01.04.2016|shares in share- No of % of total shares
31.03.2017| of holding shares of Company
Compa
ny
1. | Mr. Patanjali 18,05,468 0.23 01.04.2016
Govind 22.08.2016 86,454 | Purchase 18,91,922 0.24
Keswani- 31.03.2017 25,706 | Purchase 19,17,628 0.25
Chairman & 19,17,628 | 0.25| 31.03.2017
Managing
Director
2 |Mr. Rattan Nil Nil 24.10.2016 | 3,37,270 | Allotment 3,37,270 0.04
Keswani-Deputy
Managing
Director
3,37,270 0.04 31.03.2017
3 | Mr. Ravi Kant Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Jaipuria-
Director
4 | Mr. Niten Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Malhan-
Director
5 | Mr. Sachin Nil Nil Nil | Nil Nil
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Doshi-Director

Mr. Gopal
Sitaram
Jiwarajka-
Director

6,57,270

0.08

01.04.2016

Nil

No
change

6,57,270

0.08

31.03.2017

Mr. Sanjeev
Kaul Duggal-
Director

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Mr. Aditya
Madhav
Keswani-
Director

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Mrs. Ila Dubey-
Director

29,64,292

0.37

01.04.2016

24.10.2016

20,000

Sale

29,44,292

0.36

29,44,292

0.36

31.03.2017

10

Mr. Kapil
Sharma-Chief
Financial
Officer

11,29,864

0.15

01.04.2016

24.10.2016

2,224,150

Allotment

13,54,014

0.17

13,54,014

0.17

31.03.2017

11

Mr. Nikhil
Sethi-Group
Company
Secretary &
GM Legal

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil
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V. INDEBTEDNESS

LEMON TREE HOTELS LIMITED

Particulars Secured Loans Unsecured Deposits | Total
excluding Loans Indebtedness
deposits(Amount
in rupees)
Indebtedness at the beginning of
the financial year
i) Principal Amount 3,44,87,83,201 - 34,47,83,201

ii) Interest due but not paid

iii) Interest accrued but not due

16,41,455

16,41,455

iv) Opening adjustments as per IND-
AS

(3,80,69,007)

(3,80,69,007)

Total (i+ii+iii)

3,41,23,55,649

3,41,23,55,649

Change in Indebtedness during
the financial year

Additions 8,07,14,63,243 - 8,07,14,63,243
Reduction 8,27,72,68,249 - 8,27,72,68,249
Adjustment as per IND-AS (3,25,27,011) (3,25,27,011)
Net Change (23,83,32,017) - |1 (23,83,32,017)

Indebtedness at the end of the
financial year

i) Principal Amount

3,21,04,51,184

3,21,04,51,184

ii) Interest due but not paid

iii) Interest accrued but not due

2,27,193

2,27,193

Total (i+ii+iii)

3,21,06,73,157

3,21,06,73,157
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\4| REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole time director and/or Manager:
Sl. | Particulars of Remuneration Name of the MD/WTD/Manager | Total Amount
No

Mr. Patanjali Mr. Rattan

G. Keswani Keswani

1. Gross salary

(a) | Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the 2,43,21,090 20,222,131 2,63,43,221
Income Tax. 1961.

(b) | Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income tax Act, 46,68,067 - 46,68,067
1961

(c) | Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) of the Income - -
Tax Act, 1961

2 Stock option - 900,000 900,000

w

Sweat Equity - -

4 Commission - -

as % of profit

others (specify)

5 Others# - -

Total (A)## 2,89,89,157 | 29,222,131 3,19,11,288

Ceiling as per the Act#### - - -

#  Others include provision of bonus, wherever applicable.

## Total includes the amount of stock options calculated by multiplying the number of stock options by the face value of the equity shares of the
Company.

### Unlisted companies can pay remuneration to its managerial personnel, in the event of no profit or inadequate profit beyond ceiling specified in
Section 11, Part Il of Schedule V in terms of Rule7(2) of Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel Rules),
2014
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Remuneration to other directors: -- NIL —

LEMON TREE HOTELS LIMITED

Sl. No

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of the
Directors

Amount

Independent Directors

(a) Fee for attending board committee
meetings

(b) Commission

(c ) Others, please specify

Total (1)

Other Non Executive Directors

(a) Fee for attending
board committee meetings

(b) Commission

(c ) Others, please specify.

Total (2)

Total (B)=(1+2)

Total Managerial Remuneration

Overall Ceiling as per the Act.
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C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD
SI. Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
No.
1 Gross Salary CEO CFO Cs* CS** Total
(a) | Salary as per provisions contained in N.A 59,10,466.00 11,39,058.00| 3,55,613.00 74,05,137.00
section 17(1) of the Income Tax Act,
1961
(b) | Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the 21,58,184.00 19,800.00 5,400.00 21,83,384.00
Income Tax Act, 1961
Profits in lieu of salary under section - - - -
17(3) of the Income Tax Act, 1961
2 | Stock Option 18,00,000.00 - - 18,00,000.00
3 | Sweat Equity - - -
4 | Commission - - -
as % of profit
others, specify
5 | Others - - -
Total (c) # 98,68,650.00 11,58,858.00| 3,61,013.00| 1,13,88,521.00

#Total includes the amount of stock options calculated by multiplying the number of stock options by the face value of the
equity shares of the Company.
* Mr. Nikhil Sethi, Group Company Secretary and GM Legal has joined the Company w.e.f 12.12.2016

**Ms. Suman Singh, AGM and Group Company Secretary has resigned from the Company w.e.f 30.06.2016
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VIl. PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES

LEMON TREE HOTELS LIMITED

Type Section Brief Details of Authority Appeal
of the Description| Penalty/Puni | (RD/NCLT/ made if
Compani shment/Com | Court) any (give
es Act pounding details)
fees imposed
A. COMPANY
Penalty N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
Punishment N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
Compounding N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
Punishment N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
Compounding N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
Punishment N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
Compounding N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
Date: 15.06.2017 For Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Place: New Delhi
Sd/s-

65

Patanjali G. Keswani
Chairman & Managing Director



Golf View Corporale Tower - B

S.R. BATL’BO’ & CO. LLP Sec{or-ﬁz, Sector Read

Gurgaon -122 002, Haryana, India
Chartered Accountants

Tei. +91 124 464 4000

Fax: +91 124 464 4050

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Lemon Tree Hotels Limited

Report on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of Lemon Tree Hotels
Limited (“the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017, the Statement of
Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement
of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of ssgmf” cant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under section 133 of the Act., read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial control that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone Ind AS financial statements based on
our audit. We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards
and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules made thereunder, We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements in
accordance with the Standards on Auditing, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India,
as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control
relevant to the Company’s preparation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the
accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the standalone Ind AS financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial
statements,

S.5. Battiboi & Co, LLP, a Limited Liabllity Partnership with LLP identity No.AAB-4294
Regd. Office : 22, Camac Streel, Biock 'C', 3rd Floor, Kelkata-700 016




SRK Banumoi & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants
Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2017, its profit including other
comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies {Auditor’s report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure
1 a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books;

(¢) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash
Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with
the books of accounts;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015;

(e} On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2017, and taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2017,
from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Repott in
“Annexure 2” to this report;

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
standalone Ind AS financial statements — Refer Note 32 to the standalone Ind AS financial
statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

iti. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.




SR Batrior& Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

v.

The Company has provided requisite disclosures in Note 39 to these standalone Ind AS
financial statements as to the holding of Specified Bank Notes on November 8, 2016 and
December 30, 2016 as well as dealings in Specified Bank Notes during the period from
November 8, 2016 to December 30, 2016. Based on our audit procedures and relying on the
management representation regarding the holding and nature of cash transactions, including
Specified Bank Notes, we report that these disclosures are in accordance with the books of
accounts maintained by the Company and as produced to us by the management.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

per Sanjay Vij

Partner

Membership Number: 95169
Place: Gurgaon

Date: 1

N 2017
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date
Re: Lemon Tree Hotels Limited (the Company)

(1)(a)

()(b)

(i)c)

(i)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

All fixed assets have not been physically verified by the management during the year but there
is a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the
size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on
such verification.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the title deeds of
immovable properties included fixed assets are held in the name of the company.

The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals
during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification.

(iii}(a} According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any

(iv)

(v)
v

loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties
covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly,
the provisions of clause 3(iii)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company
and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, provisions of
section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act 2013 in respect of loans to directors including
entities in which they are interested and in respect of loans and advances given, investments
made, guarantees and securities given have been complied with by the Company.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public.

To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not specified the
maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, for the
products/services of the Company.

(vit)(a) Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax,

sales-tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material
statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities though
there has been a slight delay in a few cases.

(vii)(b} According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in

respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, service tax, sales-tax, duty
of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues were
outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.
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(vii)(e) According to the records of the Company, the dues outstanding of income-tax, sales-tax, service

tax, duty of custom, duty of excise , value added tax and cess on account of any dispute, are as
follows:

Name of the | Nature of | Disputed | Amount paid | Period to which Forum where dispute
Statute dues amount under protest | the amount relates | is pending
(Rs. in
lakhs)
Service Tax _Service 70.05 Nil October 2007- Central Excise and
Rule, 1994 Tax March 2009 Service Tax Appellate
tribunal
Maharashtra Luxury Tax 36.00 Nil FY 2010-11 Mumbai Tribunal
Luxury Tax
Act, 1987
Service Tax Service 37.06 Nit FY 2012-13 Central Excise and
Rule, 1994 Tax Service Tax Appellate
tribunal
Service Tax Service 93.67 Nil FY 2013-14 Stay application filed
Rule, 1994 Tax at Central Excise and
Service Tax Appellate
tribunal
(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management,
the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to a financial institution, bank or debenture
holders or government.
(ix)  According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has
utilized the monies raised by way of term loans for the purposes for which they were raised.
Further, according to the information and explanation given by the management, the Company
has not raised any money way of initial public offer / further public offer / debt instruments.
(x)  Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view
of the financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the
management, we report that no fraud by the company or no fraud / material fraud on the
company by the officers and employees of the Company has been noticed or reported during
the year.
(xi) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the managerial
remuneration has been paid/ provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by
the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.
(xii)  In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii)

of the order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.
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(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

{xvi)

According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the
related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as
required by the applicable accounting standards, '

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has
complied with provisions of section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the preferential
allotment or private placement of shares during the year. According to the information and
explanations given by the management, we report that the amounts raised, have been used for
the purposes for which the funds were raised.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred
to in section 192 of Companies Act, 2013,

According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 45-1A of
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

per Sanjay Vij

Partner

Membership Number: 95169

S@

Place: Gurgaon

Date: 15 JUN 2077
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Annexure 2 referred to in paragraph 2 under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date
Re: Lemon Tree Hotels Limited (the Company)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
(“the Company™) as of March 31,2017 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Finaneial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and etrors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on
Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal controf based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting,

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements fm external punposes in accondance w1th genexally accepted accountmg p1 mclples A
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(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31,2017, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co, LLP
Chartered Accountants

per Sanjay Vij
Pattner
Membership Number: 95169
Place: Gurgaon

Date: 15 JUN 2017




Lemon Tree Iotels Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017

Note Asal As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31,2016 April 1, 2015
Rsin lakhs Rs in fakhs Rs in lakhs
ASSETS .
Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 3 43,230.18 45,058.43 42,9299%
(b) Capital work-in-progress 4 S87.23 521.05 1,171.90
(c) Investment property 5 150.10 254.49 258.89
(d) Intangible assels G 51.80 3691 62.85
(e} Intangible assels under development 6 140,40 - -
(f) Financial asszts 7
{i) Investments 69,733.05 69,989.25 68,151.31
{ii) Loars 1,557.44 2,i44.72 2,267.07
(iii) Other non-current financial assets 1,252,6% 1,124.28 1,032.49
() Deferred tax assets (net) 8 - - B
(h) Other non-current assets g 10,119,410 8,177.65 11,383.34
126,922,2% 127,312.78 127,263.84
Current assels
{m) Inventorics 10 202.96 229.14 199,74
{b) Financial assets 11
{i) Trade receivables 1,456,711 1,706.79 1,069.78
(ii} Cash and cash equivalonts 566.38 509.66 42142
(iti} Loans 613.54 L 5606
(iv} Other current financial assets 11.83 13.3¢ 14.29
() Other current assets 12 847.34 1,23502 641.11
3,698.76 3,695.11 2,402.40
Total Assets 130,621.05 131,007.89 129.666.24
EQUITY AND LIABELITIES ‘
Equity
(n) Share capital 13 78,121.30 77,804,11 77,042.58
{b} Other equity 4. 14,601.82 13,604.46 15,118.64
Fotal Equity 92,723.12 91,408.57 92,761.22
Linblities
Non-eutvent Linbilities
{a) Financiul liabilities
(i} Borrowings 15 25,762.06 27,725.98 27,443.90
{b) Long term provisions 16 81.44 78,43 62.65
{c) Other non-current liabilities 17 977.56 831.79 683.50
26,821.0¢ 28,636.20 28,190.05
Current liabities
(=) Financial liabilities 18
{i) Borrowings 4,215.97 4419.18 4,163.66
{ii) Trade payables 3,686.79 3,144.66 2.958.75
(iii) Other financial Jiabilities 2,124,65 2,607.63 1,065.56
(b) Provisions 16 106,23 90.85 69.69
(¢} Current tax liabilities (net) 19 - - 1.07
(d) Other current liabilities 20 843,23 700.78 456.24
£1,076.87 10,963.12 #,714.97
Total Linbilities 37,497.93 39,559.32 36,905.02
Total Equity and Linbilities ! 130,621.05 131,007.89 129,666.24
Summary of significant accounting policies 22
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financiai statcments,
As per our report of even date
For 8.1 Batiboi & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Direclors of
Chartercd Accountants Lewon Trge Hotels Limited
ICAI Firm: Registration No. 301003E/E300063
<
A
per Sanjay Vij = Fatanjali G. Keswani Kapil Sharma

Partner
Membership No. 95169

Place : Gurgaon
Date : June 15,2017

{Chairman & Managing Dircctor)
DIN-00002974

(Group G |:‘ any Secretary & GM Legal}

Place : New Delhi
Date : Jung 13, 2017

(Chief Financial Officer)




Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2017

Note Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Rs in takhs Rs in lakhs

Revenue from operations ) 21 21,842.80 19,328.32
Other income 22 700.48 133.79
Total Inconte (1) 22,543.28 i 19.462.11
Expenses :
Cost of food and beverages consumed 23 1,367.03 1,299.93
Employee benefits expense 24 5,030.33 4,722.14
Other expenses 25 9,480.10 8,979.65
Total expenses (I1I) . ) 15,877.46 15,001.72
Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation ' 6,665,82 4,460.39
(EBITDA)} (I-11) (refer note 2.2 (5))
Finance costs 26 4,125.61 4,257.84
Finance income 27 {369.71) (232.12)
Depreciation and amertization expense 28 2,119.95 2,183.68
Profit/(loss) before tax 789.97 (1,74%.01)
Tax expense:
Current tax (MAT) 122,27 -
Adjustment of tax relating to earlicr periods ) 6.95 10.91

129.22 1091
Profit/ (Loss) for the year 060,75 (1,759.92)
Other comprehensive income

(1) Items that will nat be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans 14.88 5.56
(ii) Income tax effect (3.03} -
11,85 5.56
Total comprehensive income/{(loss) for the year 672,60 (1,754.30)
Earnings per equity share
(1) Basic 29 0.08 0.23)
(2) Diluted 29 0.08 0.23)
Sununary of significant accounting policies 22
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date
For S.R. Batlibeoi & Co. LLP Yor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accouniants Leman Tree Hotels Limited
iCAI Firm Registration No. 301003E/E300005
/ﬁ"f”
S < 4
Fooa ?
‘“pt\—- ouaan
per Sanjay Yij Patanjali G. Keswani Kapil Sharma
Pariner (Chairman & Managing Directer) {Chicf Financial Officer)
DIN-00002974

Membership No. 95169
?_\:‘
NikhH St /

{Group'Cofnpany Secretary & GM Legal)

Place : Gurgaon Place : New Dethi
Date : June 15, 2017 Date: June 15,2017
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Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Cash flow statemont Tor the year ended March 31, 2017

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit/ (Loss) before tax 789.97 (1,74%.01)
Non-cash adjustments to reconcile profit/(loss) before 1ax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and amertisation expenscs 2,119.85 2,183.68
Lease cqualisation reserve 145.77 159.52
Pinance income (including fair value change in financial instruments) (369.71) (232,12}
Finance cosis 3,936.44 4,107,318
Advance written off 1.22 160.51
Provision for gratuity 18.85 2273
Provision for leave encashment 5.41 031
Amortization of prepayment cxpenses 68,76 2195
Share bascd payments to employces 114.13 148.74
Excess provision/ credit balances written back (6.36) (13.76)
Profit on relinguishment of rights {60000} -
Provision for litigation 9.01 19.460
Provision for doubtful debts 11.56 6.71
Net (gain)/ loss on sale of propery plant and equipment 20,16 20,55
Opernting profit before working capital changes: 4,265.16 4,850.65
Movements in working capital:
Clange in trade receivables 238.51 (643.72)
Cliange in loans and advances and other current assels 445,74 (197.96)
Change in inventories 26,19 (29.40)
Change in liabilitics and provisions 428.93 616.73
Cash Generated from Operations 7,404.53 4,662.30
Dircet taxes paid (net of refunds) (219.96) (392.78)
Net cash flow from operating activities (A) 7,185.47 4,209.52
. Cash flows from/ (used in) investing nctivities
Purchase of Proporty, Plant & Equipment including CWIP and capital advances (2,817.92) (465.44)
Proceeds from szle of property plant & equipment 46,28 34.83
Purchase of investment in subsidiary companies {173.29) (1,541.02)
Profit on relinguishment of rights 600.00 -
Loans (given)/ tepaid tof by subsidiaries 157.71 (194.25)
Interest reccived 369.71 232.12
Net Cash flow fram/ (used in) investing activitics (B) (1,717.51) (1,833.76)
Cash flows frony/ (used in) financing activitics
Proceeds from issuance of share capital 527.83 252,97
Proceeds from leng term borrowings 2,240,41 2,321.63
Repayment of leng term borrowings (4,039.83) (909.66)
(Repayment)/ availinent of short tern: borrowings (203.21) 255.51
Interest paid (3,936,44) {4,107.37)
Net Cash flow frem/ (used in) financing activities (C) (5,411.24) (2,187.52)

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2017

For the yesr ended

For the year ended

Mareh 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs

Net increase/(decrense) in cash and cash equivalents (A +B +C), 56,72 88.24
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 509,66 42142
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 566.38 509.66
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 19.35 24,16
Balances with scheduled barks in
- Current accounts 547.03 485.50

566,38 509:66

Tatal cash and cash equivalents

Summary of significant accounting policies ’ 2.2
The accompanying notes arc an integral part of the financial statoments.

As per our report of even date

For S.R, Batliboi & Co. LLP Tor and on behalf of the Board of Divectors of
Chartercd Accountants Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
ICAI Firm Registration No, 301003E/E300005

Lo

per Sanjay Vij
Partner
Membership No. 95169

Patanjali G, Keswani
(Chairman & dManaging Dircctor)
DIN-00002974

Nikhl| Sethi
(Group'tdmpany Secretary & GM Legal)

Place : Gurgaon ' Place : New Delhi
Date ; June L5, 2017 Daie: June 15,2017

Kapil Sharma
(Chief Financial Officer)




Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

1. Corporate Information

Lemon Tree Hotels Limited (the Compay) is a public company domiciled in India and is
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The registered
office of the company is located at Asset No. 6, Aerocity Hospitality District, New Delhi-
110037,

The principal activities of the Company is to carry out business of developing, owning,
acquiring, renovating and prometing hotels, motels, resorts, restaurants, efc. under the brand
name of Lemon Tree Hotel, Lemon Tree Premier and Red Fox Hotel.

The financial statements are approved for issue by the Board of directors on June 15, 2017,

2 Basis of preparation of financial statements and Significant accounting policies
2.1 ‘Basis of preparation and Compliance with Ind AS

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015.

For all periods up to and including the year ended March 31, 2016, the Company prepared its

financial statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under section 133 of the
Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014 (Indian GAAP). These financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 are the
first the Company has prepared in accordance with Ind AS. Refer to note 38 for information
on how the Company adopted Ind AS.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis using historical cost
‘convention and on an accrual method of accounting, except for certain financial assets and
liabilities which are measuared at fair value/ amortised cost (refer note 35 below)

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and all values are rounded to
the nearest lakhs, expect where otherwise indicated.

2.2 Significant accounting policies
(a) ‘Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
~classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

Held primarily for the purpose of trading

Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

Cish or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current,

A liability is current when:

o Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

e It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

o It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or’

e There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
. e e

e e
K\{‘%ﬁ,mum.ﬂ:fﬁ%\
i




Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

(b)

()

meonths after the reporting period
The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its
.operating cycle. :

Foreign currencies
Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company’s entities at their
respective functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for
recognition. However, for practical reasons, the Company uses an average rate if the average
approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in
‘profit or loss

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary
items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the
.change in fair value of the item (i.¢., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or
loss is recognised in OCI or proﬁt or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss,
respectively).

Fair value measurement

‘The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each
balance sheet date. '

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either: :
¢ In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
¢ In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability

“The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that martket
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
-act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling




Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the citeumstances and for
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use. of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
e Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities
e Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable ‘
e Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Company determines the policies and procedures for -both recurring’ fair value
measurement, such as derivative instiuments and unquoted financial assets measured at fair
value. External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets and liabilities. The
‘management selects external valuer on various criteria such as market knowledge, reputation,
independence and whether professional standards are maintained by valuer. The management
decides, after discussions with the Company’s external valuers, which valuation techniques
and inputs to use for each case. ‘

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and
liabilitics which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Company’s
“accounting policies. For this analysis, the management verifies the major inputs applied in the
latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and
other relevant documents,

The management, in conjunction with the Company’s external valuers, also compares the
change in the fair value of each asset and liability'with relevant external sources to determine
whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the C/o_mbany has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the
level of the fair value hierarchy.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are
given in the relevant notes:

‘o Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions (note 30)
* Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (note 35)
e Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) (note 35
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Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to

the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is
being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable,
taking into agcount contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duty. The
Company assesses ils revenue arrangements against specific criteria to determine if it is acting
as principal or agent. The Company has concluded that it is acting as a principal in all of its

revenue arrangements. The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met
before revenue is recognized.

Sales tax/ value added tax (VAT) is not received by the Company on its own account. Rather,
it is tax collected on value added to the commodity by the seller on behalf of the government.
Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.

Rooms, Restaurant, Banguets and Other Services

Income from guest accommodation is recognized on a day to day basis after the guest checks
into the Hotels and are stated net of allowances. Incomes from other services are recognized
as and when services are rendered. Sales are stated exclusive of Service Tax, Value Added
Taxes (VAT) and Luxury Tax. Difference of revenue over the billed as at the year-end is
carried in financial statement as unbilled revenue separately.

Sale of goods

‘Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of
_ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer, sale of food and beverage are recognized at

the points of serving these items to the guests. Sales are stated exclusive of Sales Tax / VAT.

Interest income

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost, interest income is recorded using the

effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash

payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or liability. Interest
income is included in finance income in the income statement.

Dividends

Revenue is recognized when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established, which

‘is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

Management Fee

.Revenue from management services comprises fixed & variable income. Fixed income is

recognised pro-rata over the period of the contract as and when services are rendered.
Variable income is recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with the terms of the relevant

-agreement.
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Taxes

Tax expense represents current income tax and deferred tax.

- Current income tax

‘Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered

from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount
are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where
the Company operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are

trecognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions
where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax

bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial 1ep01t1ng purposes at the

“reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

¢ When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill ot an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

e In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward

-of unused tax credits (including MAT credit) and any unused tax losses, Deferred tax assets

are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:
When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary dszerence arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss
In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be avallable against which the temporary differences can be
utilised

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets (including MAT credit available) is reviewed at

‘each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient

taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to
the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow_the deferred tax
8 Hc;
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asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profif or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
.taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for
‘separate recognition at that date, are recognised subsequently if new information about facts
and circumstances change. Acquired deferred tax benefits recognised within the measurement
period reduce goodwill related to that acquisition if they result from new information obtained
about facts and circumstances existing at the acquisition date.

If the carrying amount of goodwill is zero, any remaining deferred tax benefits are recognised
in OCI/ capital reserve depending on the principle explained for bargain purchase gains. All
-other acquired tax benefits realised are recognised in profit or loss.

Sales/ value added taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales/ value added taxes paid, except:
e When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the
taxation authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition
_ ofthe asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable
* When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as
part of receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

Propérty, plant and equipment

On transition to IND AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all
of its property plant and equipment recognised as at April 1, 2015, measured as per the
previous GAAP, and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of such property plant and
equipment (See Note 38)

Capital work in progress is stated at cost. plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of
.accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the
cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term
construction projects if the recognition criteria are met.

- When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a
major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and
equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and
‘maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is
included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.
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Depreciation on fixed assets -is provided as per Schedule II of Companies Act, 2013 on
Straight Line Method over its economic useful life of fixed assets as follows:

Fixed Assets Useful life considered
' (SLM)

Plant & Machinery - 15 Year
Building* 60 Years
Electrical equipments and fittings 10 Years
Office Equipments 5 Years

Furniture and Fixtures 10 Years
Crockery, cutlery and soft furnishings 3 Years

Vehicles 8 Years
Computers” 3 Years

* Building on leasehold land is depreciated over the primary lease period or useful life

whichever is lower.

The Company, based on management estimates, depreciates certain items of building, plant
and equipment over estimated useful lives which are lower than the useful life prescribed in
Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013. The management believes that these estimated useful
lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets ate likely

to be used.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is
‘derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal, Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
income statement when the asset is derecognized.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed at each financial year end, and adjusted prospectively if appropriate.

Intangible assets

On transition to IND AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all
of its Intangible assets recognised as at April 1, 2015, measured as per the previous GAAP,
and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of such Intangible asset (See Note 38)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of
acquisition, Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated
intangibles, cxcluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related
expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

"The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as 3 years and the same shall be amortised on
Straight line basis over its useful life.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment

"anmually at year end either individually or at the cash generating unit level. The assessment of

indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life_continues to be
' ' & Moo g
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supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective

basis,

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are

recognized in the income statement when the asset is dereco gnized.

(h) Investment properties

On {ransition to IND AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all
of its Investment properties recognised as at April 1, 2015, measured as per the previous
GAAP, and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of such Investment properties (See

Note 38).

‘Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation

and accumulated impairment loss, if any.

The Company depreciates building component of investment property over the remaining
estimated useful life on the date of purchase after considering total economic useful life of 60

years.

Though the Company measures investment property using deemed cost based measurement,
the fair value of investment property is disclosed in the notes. Fair values are determined

based on an evaluation performed by an accredited external independent valuer,

Tnvestment propertics are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they
are permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their
disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the

asset is recognised in profit or loss in the period of derecognition.
()] Borrowing costs

Borrowing cost includes interest expense as per Effective Interest Rate (EIR).

Borrowing costs directly aftributable to the acquisition or construction of an asset that
‘necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are capitalised
as part of the cost of the asset until such time that the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use. Where funds are borrowed specifically to finance a project, the amount
capitalised represents the actul borrowing costs incurred. Where surplus funds are available
out of money borrowed specifically to finance a project, the income generated from such
current investments is deducted from the total capitalized borrowing cost. Where the funds
used to finance a project form part of general borrowings, the amount capitalised is calculated
-using a weighted average of rates applicable to relevant general borrowings of the company
during the year. Capitalisation of bortowing costs is suspended and charged to profit and loss
during the extended periods when the active development on the qualifying assets is

interrupted.

EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the
expected life of the financial liability or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the amortised
cost of a financial liability after considering all the contractual terms of the financial

instrument. : s
' : e Hom

3.

%8

[+




Lemon Tree Hotels Limited .
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

()

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the
substance of the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a
lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and
the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly
specified in an arrangement,

For arrangements entered into prior to April 1, 2015, the Company has determined whether

the arrangement contain lease on the basis of facts and circomstances existing on the date of
transition,

‘Company as a lessee

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that

transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company is
classified as a finance lease.All other leases are classified as operating lease,

Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.
A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no
reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the

asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and losson a
straight-line basis over the lease term unless either:

.(a) Another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern of the user’s benefit

even if the payments to the lessors are not on that basis, or

(b) The payments to the lessor are structured to increase in line with expected general
inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases. If payments
to the lessor vary because of factors other than general inflation, then this condition is not
met.

‘Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating lease is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Operating lease receipt are recogniséd as income in the statement of profit and loss on a

straight-line basis over the lease term unless either:

(a) Another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern of the user’s benefit
even if the receipt from the lessee are not on that basis, or

(b) The receipts from the lessee are structured to increase in line with expected general
inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases. If receipts
from the lessee vary because of factors other than general inflation, then this condition is
not met.

Stamp duties payable to local authorities on registration of lease agreements, are recognised as
prepaid expense and charged off to Statement of Profit and Loss on an equitable basis over the
lease term. '
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hotel purposes, are recognised as prepaid expense and charged off to statement of profit and
loss on an equitable basis over the lease term. -

- Inventories

Stock of food and beverages, stores and operating supplies are valued at lower of cost and net
realisable Value. Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition, Cost is determined on a first in first out
basis Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
estimated cost of completion and estimated costs necessary to make sale.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at cach reporting date whether there is an indication that an assel may
be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is
required, the Company estimates the assel’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of an asse’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair valueless costs of
disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset,

“unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from

other assets or Company of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable
amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the tisks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent
market transactions are taken info account, if available. If no such transactions can be

identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by

valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair
value indicators. )

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations,
which are prepared separately for cach of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets
are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years.

For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash

flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the
most recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget
using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be
justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for

the products, industries, or country m which the entity operates, or for the market in which the
asset is used.

Tmpairment losses including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of

profit and loss.

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication
exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously -

recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions

used to defermine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was
recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed ifs
recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such -
reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.
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an expense in the consolidated statement of profit and loss:

Provisions

General

‘Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive)

as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of
profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

“If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current

pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate the risks specific to the liability. When
discounting is used, the i increasé in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a
finance cost.

Deferred Revenue

The Company operates a loyalty point’s programme, which allows customers to accumulate

points when they obtain services in the Company’s Hotels. The points can be redeemed for

free products/ nights, subject to a minimum number of points being obtained. Consideration
received is allocated between the Room Revenue and the points issued, with the consideration
allocated to the points equal to their fair value. Fair value of the points is determined by
applying a statistical analysis. The fair value of the points issued is deferred and recognised as
revenue when the points are redeemed. '

Retirement and other employee benefits

‘Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The

Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The
Company recognizes coniribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when
an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service
received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit
payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the coniribution already

‘paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before

the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment
will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Retirement benefit in the form of gratuity is a defined benefit scheme, Gratuity liability of
employees is accounted for on the basis of actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method
at the close of the year. Company’s contribution made to Life Insurance Corporation is

.expenses off at the time of payment of p1em1um

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling,
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return
on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit ability),
are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to

‘retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not

reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

‘Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:

s The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
¢ The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or
asset.The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as
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» Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on
curtailments and non-routine settlements; and
e Net interest expense or come

Retirement benefits in the form of Superannuation Fund is a defined contribution scheme and
the contributions are charged to the statement of profit and loss of the year when the
contributions to the respective funds are due. There are no other obligations other than the
contribution payable to the respective trusts. :

The company treats leaves expected to be carried forward for measurement purposes. Such
compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected
unit credit method at the year-end. Remeasurement gains/losses are immediately taken to the

‘statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The company presents the entire leave as a

current liability in the balance sheet, since it does not have an unconditional right to defer its
seitlement for 12 months after the reporting date. Where Company has the unconditional
legal and contractual right to defer the settlement for a period beyond 12 months, the same is
presented as non-current Hability.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a

financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.
Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not

recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place
(regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits
to purchase or sell the asset.

‘Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following

categories:

o Debt instruments at amortised cost

¢ Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

¢ Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL)

e Equity instruments measured at fair value through otlier comprehensive income (FVTOCT)

o Equity instruments in subsidiaries carried at cost

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A debt instrument is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a)  The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting

contractual cash flows, and .
b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

"This category is the most relevant to the Company. The difference between the transaction

amount and amortized cost in case of interest free loan to subsidiaries based on the expected

repayment period is consldewd as ‘deemed investment on account of interest free loan to
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subsidiaries” (Refer Note 7(i)). Afier initial measurement, such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
-and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in
finance income in the profit or loss. If there is any change in estimate for payment of loan
(provided that there was no error in original estimate) , difference in carrying amount and
-repayment has been adjusted as return on capital by the parent, based on condition/ situation
prevailing on that date. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or
loss.

Debt instrument at FVTOCI

A debt instrument is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling the financial assets, and’

b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FYTOCI category are measured initially as well as at
‘each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other
comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes' interest income,
impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On
derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is
reclassified from the equity to P&L. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument
is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Debt instrument at FVTPL

FVTPL is aresidual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet
the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL, In
addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets
amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if
doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as
‘accounting mismatch”).

The Company has designated compulsory redeemable preference shares investments in its
subsidiaries at FVTPL. The difference between the transaction amount and amortized cost is
considered as ‘deemed investment in compulsory redeemable preference shares’ (Refer Note

7(1)).

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
‘changes recognized in the P&L.

Bquity instruments
All equity investments (other than equity.investments in subsidiaries) in scope of Ind AS 109
are measured at fair value. Equity instruments in subsidiaries are carried at cost in separate

financial statements less impairments if any. Equity instruments included within the FVTPL
-category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the P&L.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of
similar financial assets} is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s
consolidated balance sheet) when:
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_» The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed
an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party
under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has {ransferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
‘measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit
risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans,
debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance.

b) Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI,

¢) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on
trade receivables.The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to
track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime
ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

At each reporting date, for recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk
.exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the
credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month
ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased
significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument
improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, then the Company reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-
‘month ECL,

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL
which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all
cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as
income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the
head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for various financial
instruments is described below:
¢ Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and
lease receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the
measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net
carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not
reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount,

 Debt instruments measured at FVTOCT: Since financial assets are already reflected at
fair value, impairment allowance is not further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL
amount is presented as ‘accumulated impairment amount’ in the OCL
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For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines
financial ingtraments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the
objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in
credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI)
financial assets, i.., financial assets which are credit impaired on purchase/
origination.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
_borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafis, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for
trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial liabilitics are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the
purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial
instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in
hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also
classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

“Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit ot loss.

‘Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated as such at the initidl date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are
satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes
in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to
P&L. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All
other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and
Joss.

Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-beating
loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method.
Gains and Josses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well
.as through the EIR amortisation process.
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(@

)

and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as
finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

‘"This category generally applies to botrowings. For more information refer Note 15,

Financial guarantee

Financial guarantees issued by the Company on behalf of group companies are designated as
‘Insurance Contracts’. The Company assess at the end of each reporting period whether its

_recognised insurance liabilities (if any) are adequate, using current estimates of future cash
flows under its insurance contracts. If that assessment shows that the carrying amount of

its insurance liabilities is inadequate in the light of the estimated future cash flows, the entire
deficiency is recognised in profit or loss. -

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or

.cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same

lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

“Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the

consolidated balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the

“recognised amounts and there is an intention to seftle on a net basis, to realise the assets and

settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

‘Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-

term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. : ‘

Share-based payments

Certain employees (including senior exccutives) of the company receive part of their

remuneration in the form of share based payment transactions, whereby employees render

services in exchange for shares or rights over shares (‘equity settled transactions’).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees measured at fair value at the date at
which they are granted using an appropriate valuation model. That cost is recognised,

together with a corresponding increase in share-based payment (SBP) reserves in equity, over

the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employee

‘benefits expense. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settied transactions at each

reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired
and the Company’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest, The statement of profit and loss expense or credit for a period represents the movement
in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period and is recognised
in employee benefits expense. : :

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken info account when determining

the grant date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed

as part of the Company’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
S em S
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ultimately vest.

‘When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognised is
the expense had the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of the award are met,
An additional expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total fair value of
the share-based payment transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured
at the date of modification. Where an award is cancelled by the entity or by the counterparty,
any remaining element of the fair value of the award is expensed immediately through profit

or loss.

(s) Measurement of EBITDA

The Company has elected to present earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and
amortization (EBITDA) as a separate line item on the face of the statement of profit and loss.
The company measures EBITDA on the basis of profit/ (foss) from continuing operations. In
its measurement, the company does not include depreciation and amortization expense,

-interest income, finance costs, and tax expense.
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4. Capital work-in-progress

As at As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Hotel at Shimla
Material 414,00 362.46 319.96
Project staff expenses 60.11 51,60 45.63
Salary wages & bonus 29,73 2972 29.72
Professional charges 80,72 80.60 74,00
Others 2.67 2.67 2.67
587.23 527.05 471.98
Hotel at Gurgaon, Cily Centre
Material - 3,365.00 512.62
Professional charges - 325.57 i17.47
Borrowing cost - 145,33 33,16
Salary, wages & benus - 98.09 29.90
Project staff expenses other than salary - 33.40 13.87
Mise.Gov.expenses/fees - 41,84 8.90
- 4,009.23 71592
L.es3: scrap sale - 10.00 10.490
. - 3,999.23 705.92
Less:- Capitalised during the year - 3,999.23 -
- - 705.92
587.23 527.05 _1,177.56
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g, Investment property

Particulars Total
Rs in lakhs Rs in Jakhs
Cost or valuation ’ .
Deemed Cost as at April 1, 2015 258.89 258.8%
Additions - -
As at March 31, 2016 258.89 258.89
Additions - -
As at March 31, 2017 258.89 258,89
Depreciation and Impairment
As at April 1, 2015 - -
Charge for the year 4.40 4,40
As ot March 31, 2016 4.40 4.40
Charge for the year 4.39 4,39
As at March 31, 2017 8.7% 8.79
Net Bloek
As at March 31, 2017 250.10 250.10
As at Match 31, 2016 254.49 254,49
As at April 1, 2015 258.8% 258.89
Information regarding income and expenditure of Investment property:
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Rs in lakhs Rs in Jakhs
Rental income derived from investment property 14.42 1291
Direct operating expenses (including repairs and maintenance) generating rental income - -
Direct operating cxpenses (including repairs and maintenance) that did not generate rental
income (0.99) (1.13)
Profit arising from investment propertivs before depreciation and indireet expenses 13,43 11.78
Less — Depreciation (4.39 (4.40
Profit arising from investment properties before indirect expenses 9,04 7.38

The Company’s investment propertios consist of & commercial propery in India. The management has determined that the investment

property consist of one ciasses of asset — office space - based on the nature, characteristics and risks of the property.

The Company has no restrictions on the realisability of its investment propertics and no contractual obligations to purchase, construct or

develop investment properties.

As at 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016, the fair values of the property is Rs, 258.89 lacs and Rs. 258,89 lacs respectively.
These valuations are based on valvations performed by an external independent valuer 2t the time of acquisition of property.
The mnagement has considered these valuations on the basis that there is no materfal change in the value of property since acquired.

Description of valuation techniques wsed and key inputs to valuation on jnvestment properties:

Vafuation technique

Significant unobservable Inputs

Sales comparable method

Location

Size of building
Quality of building
Visibility of unit

Furnished/unfurnished
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6. Intangible assets
Rs in lakhs
Particolars Software Total
Cost or valuation
Deemed Cost as at April 1, 2015 62.85 62.85
Additions 13.54 13.54
Disposals - -
As at March 31, 2016 76,39 76,39
Additions 47.61 47.61
Disposals 41,29 41.29
As at March 31, 2017 82,71 82.71
Amortisation and impairment
As at Aprill, 2015 -
Amortisation 3548 3948
Disposals - -
As at March 31, 2016 39.48 39.48
Amortisation 32.72 32,72
Disposzals 41.2% 41.29
As at March 31, 2017 30,51 30,91
Net Block
As at March 31, 2017 51.80 51,80
As ai Mazch 31, 2016 36.91 36.91
As at April 1, 2015 62.85 62,85
Net book value As at Asat Asat
Mareh 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Intangible assets 51.80 36.91 62.85
140.40 - -

Intangible assets under development

(This space has been intentionally left blank}
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7. Financial assets
Asut Asat As al
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs

(1) Investments -
Inyestments at vost
Elngquoted equity shaves of subsidlary companies -
54,374,498 (March 31, 2016: 34,374,498, April |, 2015: 33,745,748) equily shires of Fleur 44,307.20 44,307.20 4325719
Hotels Private Limited of Rs.10 ¢ach fully paid.

2,659.10 2,659.10 2,659.10

8,667,000 (March 31, 2016: 8,667,000, Apr?.i 1, 2015: 8,667,000) equity shares of PSK Resorts
& Hetels Private Limited of Re.§ each filly paid.

5,045,400 (March 31, 2016: 5,945,400, April 1, 2015 5,945,400) equity shares of Canary Hotels 1,824.28 1,824.28 1,824.28
Private Limited of Re.1 each fully paid.
495,000 (March 31, 26162 495,000, April I, 2015; 495,000) equity shares of Sukhsagar 1,524.66 1,524.66 1,524.66
Complexes Pvi Lid of Rs.10 each fully paid.
75,000,009 (March 35, 2016 75,000,000, Apsit 1, 2015: 75,060,000} equity shares of 93140 934.40 931.40
Nightingale Hotels Pvt Ltd of Re. 1 each fully paid.
S71,428 (March 3t, 2016: 571,428, April 1, 2015 574,428) equity shares of Manskin Resorts 390.69 350,69 350.6%
Pyt Lid. of Rs.10 each fully paid.
10,854,592 (March 31, 2016: 10,854,592, April 1,2015; 193,832} equily shares of Begonia 43.86 -~ 48.86 48.86
Hotels Private Limiled of Re.1 each fully paid.
200,048 (March 31, 2016: 200,000, April 1, 2015: 200,000} equily shares af Oriole Dt Fresh 20.02 20,02 20.02
Hotels Pyt Lid of Rs. 10 each futly paid.
* 934,580 (March 31, 2016: 766,060, April {, 2015: 700,000) equity shares of Camation Hotels .35 .00 1.6¢
Private Limited of Re.1 each fully paid.
275,000 (Macch 31, 2016: 375,000, April 1, 2015: 375,000) equity shares of Groy Fo Project .75 3 375
Management Company Private Limited of Re.} each fuity peid.
150,000 (Mazch 31, 2016: 189,000, April 1, 2015: 100,000) equity shares of Pefican Facilities 1.0¢ 169 1.ou
Management Pyt Lid of Re.1 cach fully paid, ,
100,000 (March 31, 2016: 100,000, April 1, 2015: 100,000) equity shares of Dandelion Hotels 1.00 1.00 1.0¢
Private Limited of Re. ! each fally paid. .
350,000 (March 31, 2016: 260,000, Aprit 1, 2015: 100,000) equity shares of Lemon Tree Hotel 3.50 2.00 .00
Company Private Limited of Re.1 each fully paid. .
100,000 (March 31, 2016; 106,000, April 1, 2015; 100,000) equity shares of Red Fox Hotel 100 100 148
Company Private Limited of Re.1 each fully paid.
Unguoted compulsery redectnable preference shares of subsldiary companles at fair value
through Profit and loss
1,790,000 (March 31, 2016: 1,790,000, April 1, 2015: 1,790,000) 5% Redeemable Cumulative
Proference Shares of Oriole Dr. Fresh Hotels Private Limted of Rs.100 cach fully paid.* 516.43 463.00 41511
2,700,000 (March 31, 2616: 2,700,000, April 1, 2615: 2,700,600) 10% Redeemabls Cumulative
Preference shares of Canary Hotels Private Limited of Re 100 ecach fully paid.** . 2,700.00 2,700.00 2,700.00
320,000 (March 31, 2016: 240,000, April 1, 2015: 50,000} 5% Redeemable Non Curnulative
Preference shares of Canary Hotels Private Limited of Re. 100 zach Raly paid.*** 12743 84.63 17.72
350,000 (March 31, 2016 350,000, Aprit 1, 2815: 350,000) 5% Redeemable Non Cumulative
Preference shares of Carnation Hotels Private Linvited of Re.100 gach fully paid.*+* 158,75 139,92 125.70
Preference shates of Grey Fox Project Management Company Private Limited of Re. 100 each
fully paid.¥#*+ 3l8.12 28597 22823
70,000 (March 31, 2016; 680,000, Aprit 1, 2015 430,000) 5% Redeemable Noi Cumulative
Preference shares of Sukhsagar Hotels Private Linited of Re. 100 cach fully paid.*** 12435 25778 154.75
Deemed investment oz account of Interest frec Jonn to sitbsidiaries
Dandelion Hotels Private Limited 1,015.00 315.50 146,02
Meringue Hotels Private Limited 9,552.34 $,552.34 9,532.52
Oriole Dr Fresh Hotels Pyt Lid 839.65 2,108.93 2,108.93
.
Deemed Iavestment In redcemable preference shares recoguiscd at fair value theough
profit and loss
Sukhsagar Complexgs Privale Limited 492 83 439.73 275.25
Oriole Dr Fresh Hotels Pyt Lid : 1,376.68 1,376.68 1,376.67
Canary Hotels Private Limited 204.52 15238 3228
Camation Hetels Private Limited 224.30 224.36 72430
Grey Fox Project Management Company Private Limited 159.58 139.58 141.77
Invesiments at felr value through profit and loss
Others
2,567 (March 31, 2016; 2,567, Aprii 1, 2015: 2,567) equity shares of SEP Energy Private
Limited of Rs.10 gach fully paid. 0.26 0.26 0.26
Other investments at amortised cost
Six Years Natienal Saving Certificales - 0.88 0.85
69,733.05 63,989.25 68,151.31
Aggregale book value of unquoted investments 69,733.05 69,989.25 68,151.31
Total 69,733.05 £9,98%.25 68,151.31

*+The preference shares are lo be redeemed on or after August 1, 2020 but not later than 15 yeats from the dlate of allotment,
++The preference shares are ta be redeomed on October 4, 2027.

+++The preference shares will b redeemed cither at the option of the Company or at the option of the subsidiary at any-time altet (he expiry of ene year or before expiry of ten years.

'
#+++The preference shares will be redeemed either at the option of the Company or 8l the option el the subsidiary at any-time aller the expiry of ene year or before expiry of five years.
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(i) Loans

(unsecured considered good unless othenwise stated)
Loans to subsidiary companies at amortised ¢ost
Loans to employees at amontised cost

{iil) Other non-current financial asseis

Security Deposits (unsecured, considered good)
Interest accrued on deposits with hanks and others
Other bank balances

Asat Asat Asat
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 Aprit 1,2015
Rs inlakhs Rs in jakhs Rs in lekhs
471,84 1,383.09 1,342.53
1,083.60 761.63 924.54
1,557.44 2,144.72 2,267.07
Asat Asat Asat
March 31, 2017 March 31,2016 Aprii 1,2015
Rs In Iakhs Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
87580 77178 701.25
127.7% 99.40 75.07
25310 253.10 256,47
1,252.69 1,124.28 1,032.4%
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8. Deferred tax assets {net)

Asat . Asat As at
March 31, 2017 Marech 31,2016 April 1, 2015
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Property, plant and equipment 3,624,70 3,406.73 3,08049
Deferred tax liability 3,624,70 3,406.73 3,080.49
Impact of expenditure charged to the statement of profit 82.98 293.72 283.37
and loss in the current! earfier period but allowable for tax
purposes on payment basis
Effect of unabsorbed depreciation and business loss 2,640.39 2,341.02 2,137.17
Gratuity X a4 31.09 25.26
Leave compensation 21.67 19.83 19.73
Loyalty program 1.81 2.29 6.18
Provision for contingercy ) 9,68 - -
Provision for slow moving inventory 10.55 - -
fxpense on account of lease cqualization reserve crealed 332,27 28273 228.50
Securily deposiis 47922 425,10 368.13
Loan te employee } 5.84 7.23 11,22
Borrowings ' 2.54 0.65 0.14
Provision for doubtful debis and advances " 531 3.07 0,79
Deferred tax asset 3,624.10 3,406.73 3,080.49

Deferred t-ax asset (net} -

Reconciliation of tax cxpense and the aceaunting profit multiplied by Indin’s domestic tax rate for 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2017:

March 31, 2017

March 31, 2016

Profit/(loss) before lax 789.97 (1,749.01)
Tax rate 33.99% 33,99%
Tax af statatory income tax rate 268.51 (594.49)
Effect of incomes taxable a¢ nillower rate (121.02) -
Effect of non-deductible cxpenses - - 18.30-
Tax Eficet of expenscs/ income not allowed/ required to tax 6,95 1091
under Income tax charge/ {credit) in rospect of earlicr year
Unrecognized tax asscis {nct) (25.22) 576,19
Net 129.22 1091
As per profit and loss account 129.22 1091
9. Other non-current assets
" Asat Asat Asat
March 31,2017 March 31,2016 April 1, 2015
Rs In lakhs Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Ul}securcd; considercd good
Capital advances 2,781.80 819.82 3,996.26
Unsecured, considered good .
Advance Income Tax {nct of provision for taxation) 1,449.22 1,362.42 981.63
Prepaid stamp duty 228,29 211.36 236,93
Prepaid conversion charges 512.55 522.61 532.68
Prepaid expenses 3.82 - -
Prepayments of security deposit ,1435.72 5,261.64 5,635.84
Total 10,11%.40 8,177.65 11,383.34
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10. Inventories
(valued at Jower of cost and net realisable value)

As at

March 31, 2017
Rs in lakhs

~Asat As at
March 31,2016 April 1, 2015
Rsin lakhs Rsin lakhs

Food and beverages (excluding liquor and wine) 49.41 48.03 33.46
Liquor and wine ) 29.14 38.14 27.50
Stores, cutlery, crockery, linen, provisions and others 124.41 142.97 138.78
Total 202.96 229.14 199.74

During the year ended March 31,2017 : Rs. 32.34 lakhs (March 31, 2016: Rs. 18.51 lakhs, April 1, 2015: Rs, 10,40 lakhs) was

recognised as an expense for inventories carried at net realisable vatue

{This space has been intentionally left blank)
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11, Financial assets

Asat Asat As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2013
Rs in lakhs Rs i lakhg Rs in lakhs
(i) Trade receivables
" Trade receivables 1,456.71 1,706.79 1,069.78
1,456.71 1,706.79 1,069.78
Break-up for security details:
Trade receivables
Secured, considered good - - -
Unsecured, considered good 1,458.55 1,706.79 1,069.78
Doubtful 13.78 9.04 232
1,472.33 1,715.83 1,072.10
Tmpairment Allownnce (allowance for bad and doubtful debts)
Unsecured, considered good . 1.84 - -
Doubtful 13.78 9.04 232
- 15.62 8.04 2.32
Total 1,456.71 1,706,79 1,069.78

No trade or other receivable are due from direclors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any olher person. Ner any trade

or other receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.

The interest free credit period given to customers is upto 90 days.

. As At As At As Al
March 31, 2017 March 31,2046 April 1, 2015
s in Inkhs Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
(i} Cash and cash equivalents
Balance with banks
On cutrent & cash credit accounts 547,03 485.50 33191
Cash on hand 19.35 24.16 39.51
566,38 509.66 421.42

At March 31, 2017, the Company had available Rs. Nil (March 31, 2016: Rs. Nil, April 1, 2015: Nil) of undrawn commitied borrowing facilities.

As At As At As At
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Rs in lakhs Rs in fakhs. Rs in lakhs
(iii} Loans
Unseceured, considered good
Loans & advance to subsidiaries 613,54 111 31.06
Loans to employees - - 25.00
613.54 111 56.06
As At As At As At
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Rs in Iakhs Rs in lakhs Rs i lakhs
(iv) Other current financial assets
Unsecured, considered good
Security deposits 11.42 10,51 10.51
11.42 10.51 10.51
Gthers
Commission receivable 0.41 2.88 3.78
11.83 13.39 14.29




Leﬁwn Tree Hotels Limited

Naotes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

12, Other current assets

As At As At As At
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April L, 2015
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs

Unsecured, considered good

Advance to suppliers 114,80 111.86 101.62
Others

Actrued revenue 217.16 530.80 163.31
Balance with statutory/ governmest authorities 303.18 406,12 165.59
Prepaid stamp duty 2551 25,51 24.97
Prepaid conversion charges 10.07 10.67 16.07
Prepaid expenses 176,62 150.66 175.55
Total 847.34 1,235.02 641.11

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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13, Share capital

Authorlsed Share Capital

At1 April 205
Tnereasefidecreasa) during the year
At 3 March 2016
ncrease/{decrease) doring the yea
At 31 March 2017 .

At1 April 2015
Tnereasel{decrense) durlng the year
At ¥ March 2016
Increasef{decrease) durlng 1he year
At 3L March 2017

Terarights attactied to eqisity shares

Equity sharcs

Neo. of shares Ryin fakhs
998,550,00( 99,855,00
. 998,550,0-00 99.855:0[)
998,550,0-00 99.855:00

5% Redeemable Cumutatlve Preference
Shares

No. of shares Ra in [akhs
145,000 145.00
Ils.t;l:lu 115:00
I-IS,[;_DU NS:(IU

The company has only one class of cquily shares having par valoe of Rs. 10 per share. Eack: liolder of equity shares is entitled {0 one vole per share. In the evenl of liquidalion of the
company, Lhe liclders of cquity shares will be entitled 1o receive remaining assets of the company, after distibution of all preferentiat amounts. The distribution wil} be it proportion

to fhe nsmber of equily shares held by the sharcholders.

Tssued cquity capital

Equity shares of Rs 10 ¢ack Issued, subscribed and fully pald No. of shares R in lakhy
At 1 April 2015 TI6425, M0 T7,642.58
Issued during the year - Exercise of ESOP 419,539 41,95
Tssued during 1he year - olher than ESCP 1,195852 119.58
At 3i March 2016* 778,041,131 1780411
Issued during the year « Exercise of ESOP 2,871,902 287.19
Issued dusing the year « other than ESOP 300,080 30.00
At 31 March 20174 181,213,033 78.121.30
# excluding 61,032 equity shares { March 31, 2016: 61,032 shares, April 1, 2015: 61,032 shares) Teld by ESOP 1rust which Tias been lidated in d with 1he foqui of IND AS 102, The movement s
expalined below -
Share capital Shares held by ESOP {rust Sharg capital (nci)
No. of shares Rs in lakbs No. of shares R i Jakhs No. of shares R in fakha
A1 April 2815 776,486,772 77,4648.68 61,032 6.10 TT6,d25, M0 77,642,58
Tssued during the year « Exercise of ESOP 419,539 +41.95 - - 419,519 41,95
Issued during the year - other than ESOP 1,195,852 119.58 - - 1,195,852 119.58
At 31 March 2016 778,102,163 TIRI022 61,032 6,10 778,041,1H 71,804.11
Issued during Ihe year - Exercise of ESCP 2471,502 28719 . - 2,374,902 287.19
Issued during the year - ether than ESOP 300,004 3600 - - 300,000 30.00
At 31 March 2017 781,274,465 T8,127,41 61,632 6.10 781,213,033 78,121.30
Detalls of sharcholders holding more than $% shares [n the company
Asat Asal Asat
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April |, 2015

Namg of the shavekolder: No. of shares % held No, of shares % hetd No. ol'shares Saheld
Equity shares of Its. 18 each fully paid up
Maplewood Investenent Limited 192,998,113 24.69% 192,508,1£8 24.7% 192,908,118 2484%
Spank Management Services Private Limited 180,148,333 23.06% 180,122,627 23.15% 163,266,970 2103%
RJ Corp Eimiled 78,748,368 10.08% 78,743,368 10.12% 78,748,368 10.14%
APG Sirategic Real Estate Pool N.V. 118,730,914 15.20% 118,730,214 15.26% 102,830,914 13.25%
Sharcs reserved for issue under opticns
For details of shares reserved for issue under the employes stock option (ESOP) plan of the company, please refer note 33
Aggregate sumber of bonus share issued, sharc issued for consideration ofher than cash and shares bought back during the period of five years mmediately preccding
the reporting dale

March 31, 2017 March 31, 201G Aprl 1, 2015
No. of shares No. of shares No. of shares
Equily shares alloited as fully paid, presoant o amalgamations 32,486,000 32,486,000 32,486,000
Equily shares allofted as fully paid bonus shares by capilalization of securities prem 646,125,652 646,125,652 646,125,652
In addition, the company has issucd total 4,884,737 shares {March 31, 2016 ; 3,048,468 April E, 2015 : 2,656,166) during the period of five years immediately preceding the
reporling dale on exercise of oplions granted under the employee slock option plan (ESOP) wherein part consideration was rpogived in form ef gmaloyes services,
)
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Lemon Tree Hotels Limited

Nates to {inancinl statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

14. Other equity
Securitles premivm

At April 2015
Premium con issue of shares

Additions an ESOPs excercised (excluding transferred from stock opticns

oulstanding) :
Transferzed from stock oplions outstanding
At 31 March 2016

Premium on issuc of shares

Additions on ESOPs excercised (excluding fransferred from stock options

cutstanding)
Transferred from siock options outstanding
At 31 March 2017

Retained earnings

At 1 April 2015
Profit{less) for the year
At 31 March 2016
Profit/(loss) for the year
At 31 March 2017

General reserve

At 1 April 2015

[ncrease/{decrease) during the year

At 31 March 2016

Increasc/{decroase) during the year .

“Rs in Takhs

$,604.96
71,73

13.71
K|
8,699.91
34.50

176.13
43.83

_ Bes43T

Rs in takhs

3,406.85
1,754.36
1,652.49

672.60
1,315.09

%

‘Rs in lakhs

3,035.24

' 3,035.24

At 31 March 2017 3,035.24

Sharc-based payments Rs in iakks

At 1 April 2015 26,59
Add:- Expensc for the year (Refer note 33) 148,74

Less:- transferred to securitics premium on exercise of stock options 351

At 31 March 2016 171.82
Add:- Expense for the year (Refer nole 33) 114,13

Less:- transferred to seeuritics premium on exercise of stock options 43.83

AL 31 March 2017 242.12

Capital redemption reserve Rs in takhs

At E Apriil 2015 45.00

Increase/{decrease) during the vear -

At 31 March 2016 45.00

Increase/(decrense) duzing the year -

At 31 March 2017 43.00

Asat As at Asat
March 38, 2017 March 31,2016 Aprit 1, 20615
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs

Other reserves ‘

Securities premium . 8,954.37 8,699.9] 8,604,956
Retained eamings 2,325.09 1,652.49 3,406.85
General reserve 3,035.24 3,035.24 3,035.24
Share-based payments 242.12 171,82 26.59
Capital redemption reserve 45,00 45.00 43.00
Totsl 14,601.82 13,604.46 15,118.64




Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

15, Borrowings

As at As at As at
Mareh 31,2017 March 3§, 2016 April 1, 2015
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
MNon-current borrowings
Term Loans
Indian rupee loans from Banks (Seecurcd)
Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited (Refernote 1,2 &3
below)} 1,514.00 2,216.05 746.66
Andhea Bank (Refer note 4 below) 2,171.25 2,409.34 2,647.44
The Ratnakar Bank Limited {Refer note 5 & 6 below) 4,629.47 5,154.08 5,569.84
Yes bank Limited (Refer note 7 below) : . 11,529.97 11,940.05 12,164.81
HDFC Bank Limited( Refer note §0 below) 2,027.38 - -
Vehicle foans (Refer note B below) ’ 98.02 83.04 12745
Rupee term loans fram financial institutions
Tourism Finance Corporation of India Limited (Refer
note I1 below) - - 2,056.91 2,246,03
Aditys Birla Finance Limited (Refer note 9 below} i 3,791.97 3,866.51 3,941.67
"Total nen-current borrowings 25,762.06 27,725.88 27,443.90
Current borrowings
Term Loans
Current matority of long term loans
Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited (Refor note 1,2 & 3 below} 723.04 723,04 200.00
Andhra Bank (Refer note 4 below) 240.00 240,00 150.00
The Ratnakar Bank Limited (Refer note 5 & 6 below) 532,76 423,56 156.00
-Yes bank Limited (Refer note 7 below) 437.50 © 250,00 62.50
HDFC Bank Limited( Refer note 16 below) 42.00 - -
Vehicle loans (Refer note 8 below) ) £1.18 52.79 98.79
Rupee term leans from financlal institutimﬁ
Tourism Finance Corporation of india Limited (Refer
nete 11 below) - 192.60 171.40
Aditya Birla Finance Limited (Refer note 9 below) 100,00 : 80.00 -
Total current borrowings 2,126.48 1,961.9% §32.69
Less: Amount clubbed under “other current liabilitics” (2,126.48) (1,961.99) (832.69)

Net current borrowings - . -
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Lemon Tree Hotels Limited

Notes to financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

16. Provislons

Asat Asat As at
iMarch 31, 2017 March 21, 2016 April 1, 2015
) Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs Rs in Inkhs
Provision for gratuity 95.44 91,48 74.31
Current ' 14.00 13.05 11.66
Non-current 81.44 78.43 62.65
As at As at As af
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Rs in lakhs RS in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Provision for leave benefits 63,75 58.34 58.03 |
Current 63.75 58,34 58,03 o
Non-current - - - ‘ |
As at As al Asat
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2018, April £, 2015
Rs in Jakhs Rs in lakhis R in lakhs
Provisian for litigations 28.48 19.46 -
Curent 28.48 19.46 -
Non-curreat - N N
Total current 106.23 90.85 69.69
Total non-current 81,44 78.43 62,65
17, Other non-current liabilities
) As at Asat As at
Mareh 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 Aprit 1, 2015
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Reserve for lease equalisation 977.56 831.79 672.27
Security deposits - - 1123
Total 977.56 831.79 683.50




Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

18. Financial liabilities

As at Asat Asat
March 31,2017 March 31,2016 April 1, 2015
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
(i} Short term berrowings
Cash ¢redit from banks (Sceured) 321597 441918 4,163.66
Worlking capital loan 1,000.00 - -
: : . 4,215.97 4419.18 4,163.66

The Cash credit facility and working capital loan from Kotak Mahindra Bank is repayable on demand and carries interest rate of 12.00% p.a.
(March 31,2016: 12,90% p.a.)and is sceured by way of; ;

a.) Exclusive charge on all cxisting and future current assets of the borrower's hotels located at Gargaon (city centre new), Aurangabad,
Indore, and Sector-29, Gurgaon.
b.) Subservient charge over all existing and future cusrent assets of the Company cxeept eurrent assets of the company’s hotels Jocated at
Gurgaon {city centre new), Aurangabad, Indore, and Sector-29, Gurgaon on which baak has cxelusivo charge.
¢) Equitable Morigage by way of exclusive charge on the plot of Land at Sector-29, Gurgaon owned by the borrower. Also, exclusive charge
over Moveable Fixed assets of the Hotel Property ai Sectar-29, Gurgaon, '
d.) Personal Guarantec of M. Patanjali G. Keswani.
The Cash credit facility from Yes Bank is repayable on demand and carries interest rate of 10.70% p.a.( March 31, 2016: 12.05% p-a.) and is
secured by way oft
a) First pari passu charge on all jmmovable fixcd assets, movable fixed assets and current asssts (both present and future) including land and
building of Hotel Lemon Tree, Udyog Vihar, Hotel Lemon Tree, Pune, Hotel Lemon Tree, Ahemdabad, Hotel Lemon Tree, Chennai, Hotel
Lemon Tree, Bangalore and Red Fox Hotef, Hyderabad

As at As at As at
March 31,2017 March 31,2016  April 1, 2015
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
(i) Trade payables
Trade Payables
-Micra and smatl enterprises - .87 -
-Other than Micro and small cnterprises . ‘ 3,686.79 3,140.79 2,958.75
3,686.79 3,144.66 2,958.15
As at As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 20156 April 1,2015
Ts in lakhs Rgin takhs Rs in lakhs
(iii) Other financial liabilities
Current maturities of long-term barrowings 2,126.48 1,961.58 832.69
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 2,22 16.41 16.42
Book overdraft - 24831 -
Other payables
-Payable for capital goods ' 95.39% 380.89 151.83
Outstanding dues of other creditors ’ 0.56 0.06 64,62
Total 2,224.65 2,607.65 1,065.56
19, Curreent Tax Liabilities (net)
) Asat As at Asat
March 31,2017 March 31,2616 April 1,2615
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Provision for wealth tax (Net of advance tax) ) . - - 1.07
Total . - - 1.07
20, Other current liabilities
As at Asat Asat .
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
s in takhs Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Advance from customers 549,64 360.14 111.2%
Deferred revenue- loyalty programine 532 6,72 18,19
Statutory dues 288.27 333.92 326.76

Total 843.23 700.78 456,24
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11, Revenue Irom operations

For the year ended

Mareh 31, 2017

For the year ended
March 31, 2016

Rs in fakhs Rs in lakhs

Sale of prodocts and services

- Room rentat 13,121.19 11,808.44
- Food and beverage (excluding liquor and wine) 3,097.87 2.946.56
- Liguor and wine 323.40 29481
- Banquet rentals 43.02 72,59
- Telephone and telex 25.47 34.79
- Other Services (including service charge income) 1,594,58 1,430.40
Other Operating Revenue

- Management fee 3,637.27 2,740,73
Revenue from operations 21,842,80 19,328.32

22, Other Income

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2017 March 33, 2016
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs

Ingome from serve for India scheme 69.69 93.57
Profit on relinquishment of rights (refer note 45} 600.00 -
Rent received 14.42 12.91
Excess provision/ credit balances written back 6,36 13.76
Miscellaneous income 10.01 13.55
Total 70406.48 133,79

23, Cost of food and beverages consumed

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2017 March 31,2016
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
(a) Consumption of feod & beverages excluding lignor & wine .
I[nventory at the beginning of the year 48,03 33.46
Add: Purchases 1,242.43 1,203.92
1,290.46 1,237.38
Less: Inventory at the end of the year 49.41 48,03
Cost of food and beverage consumed 1,241.05 1,189.35
{Iy) Consumption of liquer & wine
Inventory at the beginning of the year 3g.14 27.50
Add: Purchases 116.98 121.21
155.12 148.71
Less: Inventory at the end of the year 29.14 38.13
Cost of liquor and wine consumed 125.98 110.58
Total 1,367.03 1,299.93

14. Employee benefit expense

For the year ¢nded

For the year ended

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
IRtz in lakhs Ry in lukhs
Salaries, wages and bonus 4,101.45 3.861.32
Contribution 1o provident fund and other funds 173.58 161.04
Share based payments to employces 114.13 148.74
Gratuity expense 28.81 28.75
Leave compensation ¢xpenses 14.99 3.95
Staff welfare expenses 597.37 518.34
Total 5,030.33 4,722.14
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25, Other expenses

Tor the year cnded For the year ended
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Rs ln lakhs Rs in lakhs
Consumption of stores, cutlery, crockery, linen, provisions and others 618,17 631.42
Power and fuel 1,799.77 1,704.75
Guest transportation 391.49 423.85
Spa expenses 41.66 30.19
Subscription charges 3586 38.64
Repair and maintenance
- Buildings 285.40 123.97
- Plant and machinery 348.73 297.62
" - Others 298.41 271.50
Rent 1,795.74 1,702.24
Rates and taxes 398.93 423.36
Insurance 51.31 46.61
Communication costs 515.94 532.78
Printing and stationery 115.30 105.62
Traveling and conveyance 94,72 125.21
Vehicle running and maintenance 81,97 95.88
Advertisement and business promoticn 172.98 118.39
Architect and design fee (Also refer Note 47) 1,140.74 997.28
Comnission -other than sole selling agent 23236 197.33
Security and cleaning expenses 401.47 310.42
Membership and subscriptions 3348 27.01
Legal and professional fees 465.84 456.16
Advances written off 1.22 160.51
Freight and cartage 14.96 19.17
Donations 0.33 1.87
Lass on sale of property plant & equipment 20.16 20.55
Provision for doubtful debts 11.56 6.71
Payment to auditor 42,04 47.20
Miscellanecus expenses 68.50 5741
Total 9,480.10 $,979.65
Payment to auditor
Audit fees 34,00 39.50
Other services 6.00 6.00
Reimbursement of expenses 2.04 1,70
42.04 47,20

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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246, Finance costs

For the year cnded For the year ended
Marc¢h 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
" Rsinlakhs Rs in lakhs
Interest
- on term loans from banks 2,974.70 2,825,773
- on loans fron others 472,47 796.42
« on vehicle loans 14,26 19.36
- on other credit facilities from banks 475.01 465.86
- on income tax 0.04 0.15
Prepayment charges 42.23 1,59
Bank charges {including commission on credit card collection) 146,90 148.73
Total ) 4,125.61 4,257.84
27, Finange income
' For the year ended For the year ended
Marck 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Rs in lakhs Rsin lakhs
Interest Income from financiaf assets at amortised cost ;
-Bank Deposits 3132 28.20
Loans
- Interest others 338.39 203.92
Total 369.71 232,12
28, Depreciation and amortization expense
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Depreciation of tangible assets 2,082.84 2,139.80
Amortization of intangible assets 32.72 39,48
Bepreciation on invesiment properties 4.39 4.40
Total 2,119.95 2,183.68

29, Earnings per share (Basic and Diluted)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the yenr attributable fo equity holders of the Company by the weighted
average number of Equity shares outstanding during the vear,

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company (after adjusting for intercst on
the convertible preference shares) by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted
average number of Equity shares.that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shates into Equity shares.

The following reflects-the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EP§ computations:

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Prﬁfit.t'{loss) attributable to equity holders (for basic and diluted) (Rs in lakhs) 660,75 (1,759.92)
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares {for basic and dilutedy* 779,627,116 777,246,165
Basic & Diluted EPS . ) 0.08 : (0.23)

* The weighted average number of shares takes into account? the weighted average effect of changes in share fransactions during the’
year, There have been no other transactions involving Bquity shares or potential Equity shares between the reporting date and the date
of authorisation of these financial statements.
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30.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in

- future periods.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements,
which have the most sighificant effe(_:t'on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Operéting lease commitments — Company as lessee

The Company has taken certain land and land and building .on long term lease basis, The lease agreements
generally have an escalation clause. These leases are generally non-cancellable, The Company has determined,
based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease term not constituting a
major part of the economic life/ remaining economic life of the property and the fair value of the asset, that it
does not have all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these properties and accounts for the
contracts as operating leases.

Further, the Company baséd on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the respective agreements decided
that wherever the escalations (generally 15% every 3 years or 20% every 4 years) are aligned to the average
expected general inflation of the lease term period, operating lease payments are not required to be provided on
a straight-line basis over the lease term as an expense in the statement of profit and loss and in other cases
(including structured payment terms), operating lease payments are expensed on a straight-line basis over the
lease term in the statement of profit and loss. '

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key soutces of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on
parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions
about- future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are
beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of -financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in' the balance sheet cannot be
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using other valuation
techniques. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not
feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of
inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility, Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect
the reported fair value of financial instruments. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the
reported fair value of financial instruments. See Note 35 for further disclosures.

Further, the management has estimated the expected future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset of interest free loans given to subsidiaries which is repayable on demand (generally 30 years-40
years) based on the financial position of the respective Subsidiaries and repayment period of the borrowings
taken by these Subsidiaries.
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Taxes

The management based on its assessment of the industry forecasts and current year profits is hopeful .of
generating future taxable profits to utilize deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unabsorbed
depreciation. However, considering the nature of the Company’s operations and history of past tax losses,
deferred tax assets (including MAT credit) are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be generated in future against which the. deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unabsorbed
depreciation and tax losses can be utilised. Accordingly, it is considered prudent to recognize the deferred tax
assets only to the extent of deferred tax liabilities and the Company has not recognised deferred tax assets on
remaining unused tax losses/credits of Rs 3,043.92 lakhs, Rs 3,023.40 lakhs. and Rs 2,447.21 lakhs as of March
31, 2017, March 31, 2016 and April 1, 2015 respectively.
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31. Gratuity

Rs. In lakhs

March 31, 2017

March 31, 2016

~ April 1,2015

Gratuity plan ) 95.44

91.48

74.31

Total . 7 95.44

91.48

7431

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan (funded). The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity
Act, 1972, Under the act, employee who has completed five years of service is entitled to specific benefit. The level of
benefits provided depends on the member’s length of service and salary at retirement age. The fund has the form of a
trust and it is governed by the Board of Trustees, which consists of an equal number of employer and employee
representatives. The Board of Trustees is responsible for the administration of the plan assets and for the definition of
the investment strategy. The Trust Fund has taken a Scheme of Insurance, whereby these coniributions are transferred
to the insurer. The Company makes provision of such gratuity asset/ liability in the books of accounts on the basis of

actuarial valuation as per the Projected unit credit method.
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The major categories of plan assets of the fair value of the total plan assets are as follows:

March 31, 2017

March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Ungquoted investments: .
Asset invested in insurance scheme with the LIC . 100% 100% 100%
100% 100%

Total : 100%

The priﬁcipal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Company’s plans are shown

March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015

below:

_ March 31, 2017
Discount rate: %
Pension plan 6.50%
Future Salary increases:
Pension plan : , 5.00%
Life expectation for pensioners at the age of 65: Years
Pension plan
Male , 60
Female ‘ 60

% %
7.30% 7.80%
5.00% 5.00%

Years " Years

60 60

60 60

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at March 31, 2017 is as shown below:

India gratuity plan:
March 31, March 31, March 31, " March 31,
‘ 2017 2017 2017 2017
Assumptions Discount rate Future salary increases
Sensitivity Level 1% increase - 1% decrease 1% increase 1% decrease

Impact on defined benefit

obligation 47.43 50.01

50.25

48.54
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March 31, March 31, March 31, . _ - March 31,
. 2016 2016 2016 2016
Assumptions ‘ Discount rate Future salary increases
Sensitivity Level 1% increase 1% decrease 1% increase 1% decrease
Impact on defined benefit

obligation 47,58 | 50.13 50.76 49.05

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on
defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes ih key assumptions occurring at the end of
the reporting period. ' '

The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:

' Rs. in lakhs

Duration {Years) For the year ended For the year ended
| March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016

1 5831 57.47

2 111.87 43.98

3 18.83 81.79

4 15.90 14.72

5 : 13.26 12.29

Above 5 39.33 3892

Total expected payments 257.50 249.19

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 5 years
(March 31, 2016: 5 years).

Commitments and contingencies

a. Leases
Operating lease commitments — Company as lessee

The Company has entered into operating leascs on hotel buildings, with lease terms between twenty
three and twenty five years.

The Compary has recognised the following expenscs as rent in the statement of profit & Joss towards
minimum lease payment. '
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Rs. in lakhs
Particulars .
As at As at ‘ As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015

Lease Rent on Hotel Properties ' 1,493.48 1,412.09 1,255.33
Rent on Office Premises 36.81 ‘ 25.17 20.77
Rent of staff hostel/Others 119.68 10545 72.88

Total _ 1,649.97 1,542,791 . 1,348.98

Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases as at year end arc as follows:

Rs. in lakhs
Particulars
As at March | Asat March 31, | Asat April 1,
31, 2017 2016 2015
Minimum Lease Payments :
Not later than one year ) 1,070.29 - 1,053.05 1,002.86
Later than one ycar but not later than five years 4,565.00 4,374.33 4,280.50
Later than five years 35,709.15 36,966.02 38,092.17
Total - 41,344.44 42,393.40 43,375.53

b. Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for:

Rstimated amount of contracts remaining to be exccuted and not provided for March 31, 2017 Rs,
2,564.29 lakhs (March 31, 2016 Rs. 2,864.92 lakhs, April 1, 2015: Rs. 4,149.04 lakhs.)

¢. Contingent liabilities

Legal claim contingency _ ~ Rs. in lakhs
As at T Asat As at

March 31, 2017 | March 31,2016 ; April 1, 2015
Matter of service tax credit 200.78 200.78 287.20
Luxury tax 36.00 36.00 36.00
Total . 236.78 236.78 323.20

The Company’s pending litigations above pertains to proceedings pending with Service tax and other
authorities. The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately
provided for where provisions are required and disclosed as contingent liabilities where applicable, in its
financial statements. The Company does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a
materially adverse effect on its financial statements. ‘
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During the previous years, the Company had received a show cause notice dated April 25, 2014 from
Collector of Stamps, Dethi (‘Department’), wherein the department was of the view that prima facie the
Company has not paid stamp duty as per Indian Stamp Act, 1899 on right to use the land given by Delhi

International Airport (P) Ltd. (DIAL) under the Development Agreement dated May 25, 2009 (‘DA”). .

The Company contested the matter and the Department pursuant to the response received from all the
developers of area where the Company’s project is located, and arguments thercon, passed a common
order on July 14, 2014 (“Order”) and subsequently, the Company and its directors received show cause
notice dated August 14, 2014 from the Department as to why criminal prosecution for non- payment of
requisite stamp duty should not be initiated against them. The Company along with certain other
developers had filed a writ petition before the Honorable High Court of Delhi (HC) and the HC vide its
order dated August 25, 2014 has granted ex- parte interim stay from all proceedings under the Order
including the said show cause notice dated August 14, 2014. The next date of hearing before the HC is
scheduled for August 28, 2017. The Company, based on advice from legal experts, is of the view that
there is no likelihood of any liability devolving on the Company on this ground and further, any liability
cannot be ascertained at this stage requiring any adjustment in these financial statements.

Financial guarantees

The Company has issued financial guarantees to banks on behalf of and in respect of term loan facilities

availed by its group companies for construction of new hotel project. In accordance with the policy of -

the Company (refer note 2.2(p)) the Company has designated such guarantees as ‘Insurance Contracts’.
The Company has classified financial guarantees as contingent liabilities. Accordingly, there are no
assets and liabilities recognized in the balance sheet under these contracts. Refer below for details of the
financial guarantees issued: '

Rs. in lakhs
As at March 31, | AsatMarch 31, | Asat April 1,
2017 2016 2015

Canary Hotels Private Limited 2,500.00 2,500.00 - 2,500.00
Hyacinth Hotels Private Limited 8,605.00 8,605.00 8,605.00
Sukhsagar Complexes Private Limited 4,500.00 4,500.00 4,500.00
QOriole Dr. Fresh Hotels Private Limited 2,500.00 2,500.00 2,200.00
Nightingale Hotels Private Limited 6,000.00 6,000.00 5,500.00
Fleur Hotels Private Limited 13,500.00 13,500.00 -
Meringue Hotels Private Limited . 22,000.00 - -
Total . '59,605.00 37,605.00 23,305.00




"PAPIO3p se SMPads Funsoa of1oads GorgM 107 7107 ‘T 1udy uo pauers s, JOSH 800°8ZE PUE 6007
Arenuep 77 o poymerd s, JOSH 30§ 140X SWSYDS oY) W PIUPSP S[Npatos Sunsea [e1ousd 1od se pojueid are 9007 Teld JOSH 1opUn S, JOST [V =

%0t %0¢ SqIUoWI g JO wORAYdmod U()
%0¢ %0 SYIUOW 9¢ JO Tona[dmod ug))
%0T %07 SUIUOW $7 JO uona(dmod o))
%01 %0¢ sqyuowI 71 Jo uone[dmiod ug)
» (9007) T weld (5007) T ueld _

AMPAYIS SUNSIA _ 3jep JuEIs 3Y) Wo.aj porrad Jupsap

:3ursea Jo spedq

‘porrdd FumsdA ou) Surmp asudieius "poLrad 3unsaa 91} SULIMp osuIdIo ns
a3 jo Juswidordure oy ur Sururewar ssLopdurg a1 Jo yusuziordiae aq) ur Sururewral sokordumsg suonipuo)) Sumsa A
Bu11594 JO 21Bp 21 TWOT SILAA § BunsaA JO o1ep 1) WOIf SIBdA ¢ polRJ 9SIIaXY
SYITOUI Q47| SHUOWI g4~-71 poLad Jumsap
Aymbyg . Anbyg . T JUSUIS[11RG JO POILA
LOT'TILTT . 00E°L8¢E . pajuess suondo Jo aqumN
0007 "¢z 1sn8ny S007Z ST IDQUIBAON ueld jo Teaordde s 1apjoyareys Jo a1e(]
900C .81 AIng . S00T £z Joquuydeg uerd jo jeaoiddy preog jo ojeq
ST0T 1 Tudy “Z107 T TdV 71107 T
THdY ‘0107 T 2990120 ‘0107 ‘T 11dY ‘6007

‘1 1dY ‘6007 ‘7T Arentef ‘800z ‘1 [udy
'£00T T 1290300 ‘L00T°T THAV 9007 ‘1 2oquaydag | 9007 ‘T 1udY PUe 5007 °S1 10qumiasoN] . 1melsd yo sjeQ

(9007) Z ueld (S007) T weld

‘monersdo Tf 91am SOUISYOS
Jumoroy oM L7107 ‘1€ YoTeN papus 1eof oy Surm(y ‘seafo[dwa sy1 0) sewoTos juowiked Paseq-oIeys SDOLIEA pspiaoxd sey Anedmo)) oyj,

*S00Z ‘T dy Jayye pue uo pajueas suopdo yooig (v

:suelg wondQ 03§ sokodwry “g¢

LI0OT “T€ YOIe N papud 1ed4 3y} 10J SJUIWIIB]S [EIDUBUIJ 0] SJON
‘ P3}IWI] S]9)0H 934, wowa



- - - - reak oy Surmp pajureld suondo jo onjea Irey oFeIsA PAYSIOM
- op¢ " 097 (s1e04 TT) 9J1] [EMIOEIUOO SUTUTEIa) 98RIOAR PIYTIOM
6191 9L¥'689°E Te0t £6S THE'T 1e0A oY) JO PUR aY) J& S](BSIOIaXY
9T 61 VL6'690'TT | £5°0T 8L9'V18'L 1834 9y} JO PUS S} e SWPULISIND
- - - - Ieak o) Surmp pairdxy
P67l 6EC°61Y PL ST T06°TL8'T 129K oy} JULINp PasIoxy
0181 69L°TL1 $8°0T P6E €8¢ 1204 OT) SULMP PA}ISJI0]
0s'1C 000°50T°8 - - Ieak o) SULINp pajuRIL)
i TRTISH'E 9761 PL6'690°TT 1204 57} JO SUTIULSDq 9T} Je SUIPUEISINQ
{-sg)e011g os1IIOXY suondQ | (*SY)ROLIY ISIIIXY smondQ
o8e10AY PAYSIOM JoIaqump | 98BIIAY PANYSPAA | JO JdqUMN
91-G102 LI-9102
100 POZLIETUEINS U2aq ALY (900T) T Weld IopTun AATIOR JO STIRIop oG 1
- - - - IBaA otp) SuInp pajueIs suondo Jo anjea IeJ 95eIAR PAIYSIa M
- 001 - - (s1eak Ur) SJI] [PNIORIUOD SUTUIBTISI 95BI3AE PAIUSIO M
- - - - Ieak 3} JO PUD U} I8 O[qBSIOIoXY
8¢°¢ 000°6 - - Teak o1} JO pu2 31 1B Surpue)sing
: - - - Ieok o) SuLmp pardxyg
- - - - JeaA oy} SULInp posmIaxg
- - 8€°€ 000°6 183K o1y SULIMp PajIofio,]
- - - - Te3Xk o) SULMp PRI
8¢ 000°6 8€°¢ 000°6 Teak o) YO SUIIIIEag 9T} 2 SUIPTRISING
(s9) (s
soud 2510102 suondo aouxd 3staIaxa szonpdo
oSeroAe POISIOp Jo Iaquny | 98BI9AE PIAYSPM JO xoquany]
91-510¢ . L1-910T

M0]2q PRZLIBTIUINS U23q 2ABY (SQ0T) [ UBld JoPUM ALIATIOR JO S[IBIOP YT,

L1I0T ‘I€ UDIEBIAl POPUD JBIA 9Y) X10) S)UAWI)IEB]S [BIDURBUIJ 0} S3)0ON

POIIWIY S[OIOF A, HOWAY



JO aATyROTpUL St swondo 2y JO AI] 9Y3 01 Iefruls potrod 2 10A0 AY[1R]0A [EOLIOISTY U} 1eT) Tonduwnsse o7}
e suaoyjed oSIOI0X2 JO SATIEDIPUT ATIIESS2I9T JOT 1 pue suonjeioadys JUSIING PUE BIEP [EDLIOISTY TO PIse

‘3WI0TINO [eMOE 9Y} 9 AJLIESSIOIT J0U ABUI YOTYA “SPUAI) dIMny
§10001 Ame[oa Paoadxe oYY, “IN020 ALl
q st suondo a1eys 2y} 10 871 papoado oyl

- - - 9JBI PUSPIAID P3oadxy
0466"L - - - 3781 }S2I2JUTL 99IJ-NSUI 5RIAY
- - - - SpUSpIAIp paloadxy
S - - - sIeak w pajueld suondo oY) Jo 1]
%¥e - - - AJITIRIOA
0512 - - - 2011 9ST0IOXY
0591 - - - 2oud areqs oFeIoAs PAUSIOM

9102 L10T 9102 L10T
(9007) T tEld (S007) 1 weld

‘gyndur Surmor[oy 2y SULIIPISTOD STfLA ITE] SFRIAR paSrom oty Sunnduiod 10y pasn

To0q SBY [APOW $3[0T0S Nor[e 9L (8L 1804 SNOTARIY) [IN SY Sea Jeak oy Surmp payners suondo }001s JO anjea I aFeIoAE paISIem Y],
paymeas suondQ Yool
. . o . . : s . ] 950c] 0591 08¢
ue
9¢0¢ 76Tl PLST e e 09°T| TBT9sHE PLE'GO0TT | 8LYFISL 67| -00:01 | -00°0T CUeld
8e€ 8e'¢ - I 1 - 000°6 000°6 - 8E°E 8¢'¢ - TUueld
cior | ooz e | cuozee| SOE| PLOT| HANE h | oregag| ST0Ty otoT) AE
‘1 Tudy qoTely AT 1 ¢ S10T°1 9107 '1¢ PIEN] 1 It | £
i . [udy | gorep | goaey | (udv e sy [ YOI e Sy [udy | yorey | UdIeIAl
'Sy 'Sy jB SY 1B SV
je sy 1’SY | JESY e sy 'Y | JBSY
] (sxead ur) suondo Jo 3L j
(sy) eorxd a ' [en1oeI3Ue) SUTHIBWRI Suipaeysino suondo Jo xoquini s
ASTIAXD 9SBIIAE PIIYSTOAN seoLid 2512.39X3 Jo Isuey
aSex19A® PAIYSIO M : .

:ore 1eak 9T} JO pus ay) 1@ Surpwe)sino suondo }o03s 10 9o1d aSI0ISXS JO STIRIP AL

L107 ‘TE YIIBJAl PAPUd IBA4 9Y) J0J SIUIUWIIE)S

[BIdUBUI] 0} S3ION
PoITWIT S[P30H 394 ], UOWI |



Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

34. Related Party Transactions

a) Names of related parties where control exists irrespective of whether transactions have
occurred or not

Subsidiary Company ' - Begonia Hotels Private Limited

- Carnation Hotels Private Limited
- Celsia Hotels Private Limited
- Fleur Hotels Private Limited
- Dandelion Hotels Private Limited
- Hyacinth Hotels Private Limited
- Lemon Tree Hotel Company Private Limited
- Manakin Resorts Private Limited

, - Meringue Hotels Private Limited

‘ - PSK Resorts & Hotels Private Limited
- Nightingale Hotels Private Limited.
- Oriole Dr. Fresh Hotels Private Limited
- Red Fox Hotel Company Private Limited
- Sukhsagar Complexes Private Limited
- Pelican Facilities Management Private Limited
- Grey Fox Project Management Company
Private Limited

- Canary Hotels Private Limited
- Valerian Management Services Private Limited
- Ophrys Hotels Private Limited
- Iora Hotels Private Limited
- Inovoa Hotels and Resorts Limited
-Bandhav Resorts Private Limited

b) Names of other related partics with whom transactions have taken place during the year

Key Management Personnel - Mr. Patanjali Govind Keswani (Chairman
and Managing Director)
-Mrs. Sharanita Keswani wife of
Mr. Patanjali Govind Keswani- Director (upto
February 19, 2015)
-Mr. Rahul Pandit (President & Executive
Director) upto May 8, 2015
-Mr.Rattan Keswani (Deputy Managing Director)
-Mr, Sanjeev Kaul Duggal( Independent
Director)
- Mr. Gopal Sitaram Jiwarajka (Independent
Director) ‘
-Mr. Ravi Kant Jaipuria( Director)
-Mr. Niten Malhan{Director)
-Mr. Sachin Doshi(Director)
-Ms. Ila Dubey(Director)
-Mr. Aditya Madhav Keswani(Director)




Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Relatives of key management personnel -Mrs. Sharanita Keswani relative of Mr. Aditya
Madhav Keswani

Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by key - Spank Management Services Private Limited
management personnel ot their relatives . ' - Toucan Real Estates Private Limited

- HeadStart Institute Private Limited

- Aster Hotels and Resorts Private Limited

- Buzzard Real Estates Private Limited

- Crow Real Estates Private Limited

- Myna Real Estates Private Limited

- Unistar Hotels Private Limited

- Vulture Management Services Private Limited

- Sparrow Buildwell Private Limited

- Garnet Hotels Private Limited

¢) Additional related parties as per Companies Act 2013 with whom transactions have taken place during

the year:
Chief Financial Officer : Mr. Kapil Sharma
Company Secretary - Mrs. Suman Singh (Upto 30 June 2016)

. Mr. Nikhil Sethi (Wef 12 December 2016)
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Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

Outstanding balances with related parties at the year-end are unsecured and interest free and
settlement occurs in cash. For the year ended March 31, 2017, the Company has not recorded any
impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties (March 31, 2016: RsINR Nil,
April 1, 2015: RsNil). This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the
financial position of the related party and the market in which the related patty operates.

Commitments with related parties

The company has not entered into any commitments with related parties during the year.

35. Fair value measurement

This section gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the company and
provides additional information on the balance sheet. Details of significant accounting policies,
including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and
expenses are rccognised, in respect of each class of financial asset, financial Liability and equity

instrument

a.  Financial Assets (other than equity investment/ deemed investment in subsidiaries

carried at cost)

Rs, inlakhs
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
EVTPL Amortised FVTPL Amortised FVTPL Amortised
Cost Cost Cost

Financial Assets
Trade Receivables | - 1,456.71 - 1,706.79 - 1,069.78
Security Deposits i 871.80 : 77178 : 70125
(non-current) ) ' '
Security Deposits 11.42 i 10.51 i 10.51
(current) ) ) '
Other bank balances - 253,10 - 253.10 - 256,17
Other current '
ﬁnanc‘lal.asset- i 0.41 i 5 88 ) 378
commission
receivable
Cash and Cash i 566.38 : 509.66 : 421.42
Equivalents
Interest accrued on
deposit with banks ) 127.79 - 99.40 - 75.07
Loans (non-current) - 1,557.44 - 2,144,772 - 2,267.07
Loans (current) 613.54 1.11 56.06
Investments 4,142.34 - | 3,931.57 0.88 3,641.77 0.85
Total Financial ’
Assets (other than
equity investment/ 4,142.34 5,458.59 | 3,931.57 5,500.83 |  3,641.77 4,861.96
deemed investment
in subsidiaries
carried at cost)
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Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2817

Note: The financial assets above do not include investments in subsidiaries which are measured at
cost in accordance with Ind AS 101 and Ind AS 27,

b. Financial Liabilities

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
p
FVTPL Amortised FVIPL Amortised | - FVTPL Amortised
Cost Cost Cost
Borrowings (Non- ; 25,762.06 - 27,725.98 - 27,443.90
current)
Borrowings
(Current) 4215.97 4,419.18 4,163.66
Trade Payables - 3,686.79 - 3,144.66 - 2,958.75
Other Current ;
Financial Liabilitics - 2,224.65 - 2,607.65 - 1,065.56
Total Financial
Liabilities 35,889.47 37,897.47 35,631.87

¢. Fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and labilities

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date under curvent market conditions,

The Company categorizes assets and liabilities measured at fair value into one of three levels
depending on the ability to observe inputs employed in their measurement which are described as

follows:

i) Level 1
Inputs are quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

if) Level 2

Inputs are inputs that are observable, either directly or indirectly, other than quoted prices included
within level 1 for the asset or liability.

ifi) Level 3
Inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability reflecting significant modifications to
observable related market data or Company’s assumptions about pricing by market participants.




Lemon Tree Hotels Limited ‘
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s assets and
labilities:

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

Rs. in lakhs
March 31, 2017
- Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial investments as FVTPL - - -
Unquoted equity instruments ) ) 0.26 0.26
Investment in compulsorily
redeemable preference shares of - - 4,142.08 4,142.08
subsidiaries
Total - - 4,142.34 4,142.34
March 31, 2016

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 . Total
Financial investments as FVTPL/
Unquoted equity instrutnents - - 0.26 0.26
Investment in compulsorily
redeemable preference shares of . - 3,931.31 - 3,931.31
subsidiaries
Total . - 3,931.57 3,931.57

April 1, 2615

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial investments as FVTPL
Ungquoted equity instruments . ] 0'2_6 0.26
Investment in compulsorily
redeemable preference shares of - - 3,641.51 3,641.51
subsidiaries
Total - - 3,641,77 3,641.77

The following methods and agsumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of the unquoted equity shares have been estimated using a DCF model. The
valuation requires management to make certain assumptions about the model inputs, inchiding
forecast cash flows, discount rate, credit risk and volatility. The probabilities of the various
estimates within the range can be reasonably assessed and are used in management’s estimate of

fair value for these unquoted equity investments.

The fair values of compulsorily redeemable preference shares of subsidiaries have been estimated
using the fair valuation by independent valuer. The valuation requires management to make
certain assumptions about the interest rate, including forecast cash flows, discount rate, credit
risk and volatility. The probabilities of the various estimates within the range can be reasonably

assessed and are used in management’s estimate of fair value for these un
investments.

quoted equity




Lemon Tree Hotels Limited :
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement categorised within Level 3 of
the fair value hierarchy together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis as at 31 March 2017 and 31
March 2016 are as shown below:

Description of significant unobservable inputs to valuation:

Valuation Significant Range
technique unobservable (weighted average)
inputs
FVTPL fair values of | DCF Discount Rate 31 Mareh 2017: 11.22% - 12.12%
compulsorily method 31 March 2016: 11.22% - 12.12%
tedeemable preference
shares of subsidiaries 31 March 2017: 0% - 5%

Expected dividends

31 March 2016: 0% - 5%




Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

36. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other
payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company's operations and to
support its operations. The Company's financial assets include loans, trade and other receivables, and
cash & cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations. -

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's senior
management oversees the management of these risks. The Company's senior management is
supported by a financial risk committee that advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial
risk governance framework for the Company. This financial risk committee provides assurance to the
Company's senior management that the Company's financial risk activities are governed by
appropriate policies and procedure and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in
accordance with the Company's policies and risk objectives, The Board of Directors reviews and
agrees policies for managing each risk, which are summarised as below:

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrament will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises of interest rate risk. Financial instruments
affected by market risk include loans and borrowings.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes
in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-term debt obligations with floating
interest rates. The Company is carrying its borrowings primarily at variable rate. The Company
expects the variable rate to decline, accordmgly the Company is currently carrying its loans at variable
interest rates.

Rs. Inlakhs
March 31,2017 { March 31,2016 | April 1, 2015
Variable rate borrowings 31,955.33 33,971.31 32,214.02
Fixed rate borrowings 149.20 135.83 226.24

Interest rate sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that
portion of loans and borrowings affected, after the impact of hedge accounting. With all other variables held
constant, the Company’s profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as

follows: .
Particulars Increase/decrease in basis points Effect on profit before tax
Rs. In lakhs

31-Mar-17

Rs 50 147.30

Rs -50 (147.30)
31-Mar-16

Rs 50 160.18

Rs -50 (160.18)

o




Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company has no exposure in foreign currency. '

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities
(primaily trade receivables and deposits to landlords) and from its financing activities, including deposits with
barks and financial institutions and other financial instruments.

(a) Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business location subject to the Company's established policy,
procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management, Credit quality of a customer is assessed
and individual credit limits are defined in accordance with the assessment both in terms of number of days and
amount.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. In
addition, a large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and agsessed for
impairment collectively. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of

each class of financial assets disclosed in Note 11. The Company does not hold collateral as security.

Rs. in lakhs
Ageing 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 01-Apr-15
Not due
0-60 days past due 947.36 1,030.83 612.58
61-120 days past due 192,29 330.91 224.55
121-180 days past due 86.80 193.73 115.32
180-365 days past due 154.20 73.29 100.60
365-730 days past due 54.65 38.29 16.73
more than 730 days 21.40 39.73 -
1,456.70 1,706.78 1,069.78
Provision for doubtful debts (including provision for expected credit loss)

Rs. in lakhs
Ageing 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 01-Apr-15
Not due - - -
0-60 days past due 1.84 - -
61-120 days past due - - -
121-180 days past due - - -
180-365 days past due - - -
more than 365 days 1378 9.03




Lemon Tree Hotels Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Reconciliation of provision for doubtful debts — Trade receivables (including provision for expected

credit loss)

Rs. in lakhs
Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 01-Apr-15
Provision at beginning 5.03 © 232 2.32
Addition during the year 8.62 6.71 -
Reversal during the year 2.03 - -
Utilised during the year - - -
Provision at closing 15.62 9.03 2.32

(b) Financial instruments and cash deposifs

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company's treasury
department in accordance with the Company's policy. Investment of surplus funds are made only with
approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty. The Company's maximum
exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at 31 March 2017, 31 March 2016 and 1 April

2015 is the carrying amount as illustrated in Note 11




Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Liquidity risk

The Company monitors its risk of a shortage of funds by estimating the future cash flows. The
Company's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through
the use of bank overdrafts, cash credit facilities and bank loans. The Company assessed the
concentration of risk with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low. The Company has
access to a sufficient variety of sources of funding and debt maturity within 12 months can be rolled
over with existing lenders. There are no undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting
periods.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on
contractual undiscounted payments.

Rs, in Zakhs
' Less than 3 3to12
On demand months months 1 to 5 years > 5 years Total

Year ended
March 31, 2017
Borrowings ' 4,215.97 262.20 1,864.27 15,597.81 10,164.27 32,104.52
Trade and other 368679 | - ; - : 3,686.79
payables :
Other Financial '
Liabilities 98.18 - - - - 08.18

8000,94 262.20 1,864.27 15,597.81 10,164.27 35,889.49
Year ended
March 31, 2016
Borrowings 4,419.18 305.69 1,656.29 13,795.31 - | 13,930.67 34,107.14
Trade and other 3,144.66 ) ) i ) 3,144 66
payables
Other Financial
Liabilities 645.66 - - . - 645.66

8,209.50 305.69 1,656.29 13,795.31 13,930.67 37,897.46
As at April 1, 2015
Borrowings 4,163.66 140.07 692.62 10,289.02 17,154.89 32,440.26
Trade and other 2.958.75 § ) ) - - 2,058.75
payables :
Financial Liabilities 232.87 - - - - 232.87

7355.28 140.07 692.62 10,289.02 17,154.89 35,631.88




Lemon Tree Hotels Limited _ '
. Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

37. Capital management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share
premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary
objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise the sharcholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic
conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total
capital plus net debt.The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings,
trade payables, less cash and cash equivalents.

Rs. In lakhs

March 31,2617 | March 31,2616 | April 1, 2015
Borrowings (other than preference share) 29,978.05 32,145.16 31,607.57
Trade payables (Note 18) 3,686.79 3,144.66 2,958.75
Less: cash and cash equivalents (Note 11) 560.38 .509.66 421.42
Net debt 33,098.46 34,780.16 34,144.90
Total capital 92,723.11 61,408.58 92,761.22
Capital and net debt 125,821.57 126,188.74 126,906.12
Gearing ratio 26% 28% 27%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things,
aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings
that define capital structure requirements.

Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately' call loans and
borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and
borrowing in the current period.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years
ended 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016.
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38. TFirst-time adoption of Ind AS

These financial statements, for the year ended 31 March 2017, are the first the Company has prepared
in accordance with Ind AS. For periods up to and including the year ended 31 March 2016, the
Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under
section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts).
Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP).

Accordingly, the Company has prepared financial statements which comply with Ind AS applicable
for periods ending on 31 March 2017, together with the comparative period data as at and for the year
ended 31 March 2016, as described in the summary of significant accounting policies. In preparing
these financial statements, the Company’s opening balance sheet was prepared as at 1 April 2015, the
Company’s date of transition to Ind AS. This note explains the principal adjustments made by the
Company in restating its Indian GAAP financial statements, including the balance sheet as at 1 April
2015 and the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2016,

Exeinptions applied

Ind AS 101 allows first-time adopters certain exemptions from the retrospective application of certain

requirements under Ind AS. The Company has applied the following exemptions:

o Property Plant & Equipment, Intangible assets and Investment property - As permitted by IND AS
101, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying values under previous GAAP for all
the items of property, plant & equipment, The Same selection has been made in respect of
Intangibles Assets and investment property. The Carrying value of property plant and equipment as
aforesaid are after making adjustments relating to decommissioning liabilities

¢ Ind AS 102 Share-based Payment has not been applied to equity instruments in share-based
payment transactions that vested before 1 April 2015,

¢ Determining whether an arrangement contain a lease:- Appendix C to Ind AS 17 requires an entity
to assess whether a contract or arrangement contains a lease. In accordance with Ind AS 17, this
assessment should be carried out at the inception of the contract or arrangement. However, the
Company has used Ind AS 101 exemption and assessed all arrangements based for embedded
leases based on conditions in place as at the date of transition.

Estimates

The estimates at 1 April 2015 and at 31 March 2016 are consistent with those made for the same dates
in accordance with Indian GAAT (after adjustments to reflect any differences in accounting policies)
apart from impairment of financial assets based on expected credit loss model where apphcatlon of
Indian GAAP did not require estimation.




7T 999671 {0v"960°1) F9°29L°0¢1 06 L00°TET (16¥11) 1€ LSTTET 51955V €30
0 T0VT 66°0 1 10¥7 11°569°C LY 3£°069°C
17 1%9 (00 I 159 T0°SET T (331)) SECETT 1 §19SSE JUALM) 1230 (2)
90°9% - 90°95 111 - 111 STRO (AT)
6T+1 - 6T%1 6£€1 - 65¢1 §)aSSE [RRURNY ISYIC) (31D
sjuajeamba
Witk 6T1 £1°0TH 99°608 90'5 09°+0S A gse) pue yse (1)
8L'690°1 - 2.°690°T 6L90LT - 6L790LT sa[qeatedar aper] (1)
- s1as5e [RIOUR (q)
¥L 661 - ¥L 661 P1°67T - F1°6TT sauojuaan] (&)
- . - . g1osse JuaIm) | ()
F8E9TLTL (8¢'260°1) £T 196871 6LZIE LTI F1HS1T) £6'959%°4T1
£ ERCTT $8°6£9°C ISLPL'S SOLLL] $9°19T°¢ 00916°C g $1985B JUAMI-TOT 18T (T)
6 TE0°T (88°65L°9) LETOL'L STHTIT (65°9¥59) 8L°0LYL I sjasse [eroUeUly JylQ (1)
LOLOTT (11 19L711) 31°820°F1 (4% 244 (¢6'676°11) SO bLO'ST 0 sueor] (1)
1£151°89 LLLBLTT S E9£°98 ST'686°69 0L¥80°TT SSH06°LS I SpusUIISeAT (1)
- ) sjosse [eroueur] (3)
$8°79 - $8°7Y 069¢ - 06'9¢ sjesse ajqiueiuy (p)
68'857 - 68'857 6% 75T - 67 ST Krodoxg yuaunsaan] (9)
06 LLTT - 067 LLTT SOTLTS - SOLTS ssardord-w-yroa fende)) (q)
quawidmba
66°6T6°T - 66°6T6Th Sy'850°SY (Love) TET80°S I pue jueld “Auodoid (2)
sjasse Juama-uoN | (1)
SLASSV
SV puI sunsulpy AV uerpay SV pul jmeuysnipy dVVD uelpuf
STOTT ady 9T0Z'TE UITEA] $930U300
- Syop sy

(SV pu] 0} wopIsue) o 21ep) STOZ ‘1 1Y pue 9107 ‘L€ YIIBIA I St Anb3 Jo HonBIU0IaY

LI0Z ‘I€ Y21BIA pPopuUa? Ieak ay) J0J S}UHIAWIEIS [BIIUEBUIJ 0) SAJON

P3I)IWITY S[9IOF 204) UOWAT]




£7°999°671 {00°260°T) 00 £9L°0%1 06 LO0TET (10°6v1°1) 06°LS1°TET sapInqery pue Aymbq [e10,
70°506°9¢ (L6'68) 66'76°9¢ TE665°6€ (i 6L) LO6L9°6E SANIMIqer] [FoL

LEFIL'R 90°0 16'%1L8 7179601 90°0 90°£96°01
(3eu)
LO1 - LOT - - - sanyiqer xe1 yuarm) (p)
69°69 - 69769 $8°06 - 5806 suo1stao1g (9)
¥Z'95¥ - vT95Y 8.°00L - 8L°00L SUT[IGRY JULLMD 1573() (9)
956901 90°0 0575901 $9'L09°7 9070 651097 A SIUIIGRI] [BIDURNL LI (11D
SL8567C - $L'8S6°T 99 trIE - 99'¥F1°E satqeAed apesg, (11)
99°¢91" - 99°¢91°% 8I°61+ Y - RT61HY sgumonog (1)
SaNIqeI] [BIOULULT (¥)

sapgiqer Jusxmyy | (7)

5006192 (z0"0%) LO0ET'8T 0T°959°82 (18°6L) 1091482
A STITIqeT]
05°¢89 (st or) F6°€TL 61168 (yL19) £CEL6 Al JULIMI-TOU ISRQ (2)
¥9°29 - 979 €7'8L - V8L suostao1d e} Fuog (q)
16 EP¥LT o ¥ EFF LT 86°STLLT €61 SOHTLLT m s8umonod (1)

- sauI[Iqer| [eroueuyy (&) ‘
sanIqel yua1amd-uoN | (1)
sanIqer]
TTI9L'T6 (85°250°T) 6L°818°C6 35'80%°16 (99'690°1) YU RLY'TE Aynby rEI0L
FO81I°S1 (8F'150°T) ZI0L1°91 LFFO9°ET (95€90°1) T0'399"%1 ATHIT - Aymby om0 (9)
LS TYYLL (o1'9) 89°8F9°LL ITH08°LL (01'9) TTOISLL A [endeo oreqs (2)
Aymby
SY pul ymemmsnlpy dVVD ueipuy SV pul yusansulpy dVVvD uelpuf
S10Z°T (dv 9107 1E YPIEW §9300300Y

LI0Z ‘IE YI1BJA PIPUa I18af 3Y) X0J S)UAMAIIEL)S [RIDUBUIJ 0} SIION
P21 S[3J0H 934, HOWIT]



Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31 2017

Company reconciliation of profit or loss for the year ended March 31, 2016

Rs. in lakhs

Footnotes | Indian GAAP Adjustments Ind AS
Revenue From Operations 19,328.32 - 19,328.32
Other Income © 13379 . - 133.79
Total Income ' 19,462.11 - 19,462.11
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 1,299.93 1,299.93
Employee benefits cxpcmc LVILVII 4,545.43 176,71 4,722.14
Other expenses v 8,788.23 " 19142 8,979.65
Total (IT) 14,633.59 368.13 15,001.72
Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation 4,828.52 (368.13) 4,460.39
and amortisation
(EBITDA) _
Depreciation and amortization expense I 2,183.74 {0.06} 2,183.68
Finance costs I 4,256.34 1.51 4,257.84
‘Finance income II (25.39) (202.74) (232.12)
Loss before tax . {1,582.17) (166.84) (1,749.01)
Tax expense: -
(1) Current tax - - -
(2) Adjustment of tax relating to earlier 10,91 - 10.91
periods
(3) Deferred tax s - - -
Loss for the peried from continuing (1,593.08) (166.84) (1,759.92)
operations
Loss for the period . (1,593.08) (166.84) (1,759.92)
Other comprehensive income -
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans IX - 5.56 5.56
Income tax relating to items that will not be -
reclassified to profit or loss . )
Total Comprehensive Income for the period (1,593.08) (161.28) {1,754.36)
(Comprising Profit (L.ess) and Other
Comprehensive Income for the period)
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Footnotes to the reconciliation of eqﬁity as at April 1, 2015 and March 3 I, 2016 and profit or loss for

the year ended March 31, 2016:

Property, plant and equipments

As per Ind AS 16, certain expenses pelltaining to pre operating period has not been capitalised in
property plant and equipment as compared to IGAAP.

Financial Assets

Based on Ind AS - 109, financial Assets in the form of long term interest free deposits to
landlords, and loans to employees have been accounted at fair value on the date of transition and
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.

Based on Ind AS - 109, financial Assets in the form of long term interest free loans to subsidiaries
have been accounted at fair value on the date of transition and the difference is considered as
deemed investment on account of interest free loan to subsidiaries. Subsequently the loan is
measured at amortized cost usihg the effective interest rate method.

Based on Ind AS - 109, financial Assets in the form of compulsory redeemable preference shares
in subsidiaries is valued at fair value and the difference is considered as deemed investment in
redeemable preference shares. Subsequently the investments are measured at fair value through
profit & Loss.

Under Indian GAAP, the Company had created provision for impairment of receivables consists
only in respect of specific amount for incurred losses. Under Ind AS, impairment allowance has
been determined based on Expected Loss model (ECL).

Financial Liability

Under Indian GAAP, transaction costs incurred in connection with borrowings are amortised
upfront and charged to profit or loss for the period. Under Ind AS, transaction costs are included
in the initial recognition amount of financial liability and charged to profit or loss using the
effective interest method. ' :

Lease equalisation

Under Indian GAAP, operating lease excluding land leases were recognised as an expense in the
statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. As per Ind-AS 17,
Operating lease includes land leases are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and
loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless either (a) another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern of the user’s benefit even if the payments to the lessors are not
on that basis, or (b) the payments to the lessor are structured to increase in line with expected
general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases.

ESOP Trust

Considering the guidance given in Ind AS 110, the ESOP trust has been included as part of

| <3 QW, .
o TN 3

standalone financials statements of the Company.
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Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

VL Deferred tax

Ind AS 12 requires entities to account for deferred taxes using the balance sheet approach, which
focuses on temporary differences between the carrying amount of an asset or liability in the
balance sheet and its tax base. In addition, the various transitional adjustments lead to temporary

differences.
VII. Defined benefit liabilities

Both under Indian GAAP and Ind AS, the Company recognised costs related to its post-
employment defined benefit plan on an actuarial basis. Under Indian GAADP, the entire cost,
including actuarial gains and losses, are charged to profit or loss. Under Ind AS, remeasurements
[comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability] are recognised immediately in
the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCL.

VIII.  Share based payments

Under Indian GAAP, the cost of equity-settled transactions is measured using the intrinsic value
method. Ind AS 102 requires the fair value of the share options to be determined using an
‘appropriate pricing model recognised over the vesting period.

1X.  Other comprehensive income -

Under Indian GAAP, the Company has not presented other comprehensive income (OCI)
separately. Hence, it has reconciled Indian GAAP profit or loss to profit or profit or loss as per
Ind AS.

X Statement of cash flows

The transition from Indian GAAP to Ind AS has not had a material impact on the statement of
cash flows,




Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

39, The details of Specified Bank Notes (SBN) held and transacted during the period from 8th
November, 2016 to 30th December, 2016 are as provided in the Table below:

_ Rs. in lakhs
Particulars SBNs | Other denomination Total
‘ notes
Closing cash in hand as on 08 November 2016 53.93 6.43 60.36
(+) Permitted receipts - 96.03 96.03
(-) Permitted payments - 49.10 49.10
(-) Amount deposited in Banks 53.93 22.06 75.99
Closing cash in hand as on 30 December 2016 - 31.30 31.30

Post demonetization, the management had directed all employees not to.accept/ pay using the SBN's.
Further, in view of the numerous locations where cash is collected the management has obtained
direct confirmations from certain Banks confirming the collection of SBN's during the aforesaid
period. For other banks, the Company has compiled the data on the basis of accounting records, bank
statements and pay in slips for cash deposits during the period.

The aforesaid disclosures of SBN’s have been compiled taking the management stated policy, direct
bank confirmation and compilation of pay in slips.

40. Segment Reporting

The Company is into Hoteliering business. The Board of Directors of the Company, which has been
identified as being the chief operating decision maker (CODM), evaluates the Company performance,
allocate resources based on the analysis of the various performance indicator of the Company as a
single unit. Therefore there is no reportable segment for the Company as per the requirements of Ind
AS 108 — “Operating Segments”.

Information about geographical areas

The Company has only domestic operations and hence no information required for the Company as
per the requirements of Ind AS 108 — “Operating Segments”.

Information about major customers

No customer individually accounted for more than 10% of the revenue
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

41.

42.

43.

44.

45,

The Company in the earlier years paid conversion charges of Rs, 6,03.98 lakhs in respect of land
taken for lease of 60 years for construction of hotel building. The Company has amortized Rs.
10.07 lakhs (Previous year: 31" March 2016 Rs. 10.07 lakhs 1April 2015: Rs. 10.07 lakhs)
during the year in accordance with its accounting policy of amortizing the conversion charges
over the period of lease as mentioned in Note 2.2 (j) above. The balance amount of Rs, 5,12.55
lakhs (Previous years Rs. 31% March 2016 : Rs.5,22.61 lakhs April 1,2015 Rs. 5,32.68 lakhs)
has been shown in Note 9 as 'Prepaid conversion charges.'

During the year, the Company has made preferential allotments of Nil (31% March 2016; Rs, 8.95

lakhs) equity shares to parties and companies covered in the register maintained under section
189 of the Act. The management has confirmed that the shares under preferential allotment are
issued at fair price based on the price as determined by an independent third party valuer and

approved by the shareholders in the meeting dated July 30, 2015,

During an earlier year, the Company had issued equity shares to APG Strategic Real Estate Pool

N.V. (“the investor”) and the investor had also acquired 42.02% (March 31, 2016 42.02%, April
1, 2015: 42.47%) stake of Fleur Hotels Private Limited (a subsidiary Company). As per the
Shareholder's agreement, all new hotel projects will first be offered to the subsidiary, There are
no other significant commitments to the investor.

During the earlier years, the Company had entered into a sub license agreement with M/s
Hyacinth Hotels Private Limited (a subsidiary of the Company) as part of Infrastructure

- development and services agreement entered between M/s Hyacinth Hotels Private Limited and

Delhi International Airport Limited (DIAL) to develop a hotel at Aero City, New Delhi for an
initial term of 27 years, extendable at the option of the Company for an additional period of 30
years provided DIAL gets the extension from Airport Authority of India. DIAL is committed to
take over the building at ‘Book values’, as defined in the aforesaid agreement in case the
agreement is not extended further. Accordingly the building is depreciated over the estimated
useful life of 22 years after reducing the expected residual value as contractually recoverable

_ from DIAL in case the agreement is not extended.

During an earlier year, the Company had entered into an agreement to sell with developer to
purchase certain parts of built-up structure along with proportionate inferest in the land to
establish and operate a four star hotel at Jaipur and had given an advance to developer of Rs.
3,519.39 lakhs (including other expenses of Rs, 375.39 lakhs). Due to the delays in the
construction, the Developel earlier had also agreed to return the aforesaid amount along with

“interest through various communications and receipt of such amount from developer would lead

to the cancellation of agreement to sell

Duwring the earlier year, the Company had entered info a binding agreement (‘consent terms”) to
receive full and final settlement against the aforesaid receivable and had received Rs. 3,360 lakhs
tifl the previous year end. As per the revised consent terms, the developer has agreed to repay the
balance amount and interest for delayed payment by August 31, 2016. The Company had

“accordingly adjusted the amount already received amounting fo Rs. 3,360 lakhs against the

carrying value of advance to developer and has written off the balance amount of other expenses
amounting to Rs. 160.51 lakhs as ‘advances written off” in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

During the year, the company has received Rs. 600 lakhs towards relinquishment of right in the

" said property and recognized the same as other income. The balance amount would be recorded

when the uncertainty of ultimate collectability is settled.
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46.  Details of dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as pexr MSMED Act, 2006.

Rs. In lakhs
March31, | March3l, | Aprill,

2017 2016 2015
the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to - Nil Nil Nil
any supplier as at the end of each accounting. year ‘
the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of Nil Nil Nil
the Micto Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006
along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond
the appointed day during each accounting year
the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in Nil Nil Nil
making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed
day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under
Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006.
the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of Nit 0.05 0.13
each accounting year; and :
the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the Nil Nil Nil
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are
actually paid to the small enterprisefor the purpose of disallowance as
a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro Small and
Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006

47.  During the year, the Company has incurred Rs. 1,140.74 lakhs ( March 31 2016: Rs. 997.28
lakhs April 1 2015 Rs 1426.37 lakhs) on architect and design fees after taking approval from
sharcholders in meeting dated July 24, 2014. The management has confirmed that the same has
been at arm’s length and for business purpose.




Lemon Tree Hotels Limited )
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

As per our report of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLY For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
‘ICAI Firm Registration No. 301003E/E300005 Lemon Tree Hotels Limited

Chartered Accountants
,{""’"
/ .
Qs A\

per Sanjay Vij rﬁatanjali G. Keswani Kapil Sharma

Partner (Chairman & Managing  (Chief financial officer)
S Director)

Membership No. 85169 DlN: 0002974f ]

Place : Gurgaon Place: New Delhi

Date : June 135, 2017 . Date : June 15,2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Report on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements of Lemon Tree Hotels
Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company™) and its subsidiaries (the Holding
Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group™), comprising of the consolidated
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including other
Comprehensive income, consolidated Cash Flow Statement and consolidated Statement of Changes in
Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated Ind AS financial statements™).

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of these consolidated
Ind AS financial statements in terms with the requirement of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial
performance including other comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows and consolidated
changes in equity of the Group in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act., read with
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. The respective Board of
Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial control that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, .
as aforesaid.

Anuditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated Ind AS financial statements based on
our audit. While conducting the audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the
accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder. We conducted our audit of the Ind AS
consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing, issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those
Standards require that we comply with ethical requitements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk asscssments, the anditor considers
internal financial control relevant to the Holding Company’s preparation of the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures thai are
appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Holding Compan

S.R. Batlibai & Co. LLP, a Limited Liability Partnership with Lt.P 'dentity No AAB-42924
Regd. Office : 22. Camar. Streel, Block ‘'C', 3rd Fioor, Kelkata-700 016
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Board of Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated Ind AS financial

statements. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the
othet auditors in terms of their reports referred to in paragraph (a) of the Other Matters below, is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements.

QOpinion

Tn our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group, as at March 31, 2017, their consolidated loss
including other comprehensive income, their consolidated cash flows and consolidated statement of
changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the
other auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial information of subsidiaries as
noted in the ‘other matter’ paragraph, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We / the other auditors whose reports we have relied upon have sought and obtained all the
information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for
the purpose of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements;

(b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidation of the financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination
of those books and reports of the other auditors;

(c) The consolidated Balance Sheet, consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including the
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the consolidated Cash Flow Statement and
consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements,

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

(¢) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as
on March 31, 2017 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the
reports of the auditors who are appointed under Section 139 of the Act, of its subsidiary
companies incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Company and its subsidiary
companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31st March, 2017 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act,

(f) With respect to the adequacy and the operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, incorporated in India,
refer to our separate report in “Annexure 17 to this report;

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:
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ii. The Group did not have any material foresecable losses in long-term contracts including

derivative contracts.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiaries companies incorporated in
India.

iv. The Holding Company and subsidiaries incorporated in India, have provided requisite
disclosures in Note 47 to these consolidated Ind AS financial statements as to the holding of
Specified Bank Notes on November 8, 2016 and December 30, 2016 as well as dealings in
Specified Bank Notes during the period from November 8, 2016 to December 30, 2016. Based
on our audit procedures and relying on the management representation of the Holding
Company regarding the holding and nature of cash transactions, including Specified Bank
Notes and on consideration of reports of the other auditors as noted in the “Other Matters”
paragraph below, we report that these disclosures are in accordance with the books of accounts
maintained by the Group and as produced to us by the Management of the Holding Company.

Other Matter

We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information, in respect of 20 subsidiaries,
whose Ind AS financial statements include total assets of Rs, 97,382.90 lakhs and net assets of Rs.
43,484 .36 lakhs as at March 31, 2017, total revenues of Rs. 12,920.00 [akhs and net cash inflows of Rs.
292.14 lakhs for the year ended on that date. These financial statement and other financial information
have been audited by other auditors, which financial statements, other financial information and
auditor’s reports have been furnished to us by the management. Our opinion on the consolidated Ind
AS financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these
subsidiaries and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates
to the aforesaid subsidiaries, is based solely on the reports of such other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements above, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our
reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the Ind AS financial statements and
other financial information certified by the Management.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co, LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005
S’G { Fé

per Sanjay Vij

Partner

Membership Number: 95169

Place of Signature: Gatgaow

Date: Tuae 1(zo1)
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ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF LEMON TREE HOTELS LIMTED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of Lemon Tree Hotels
Limited as of and for the year ended March 31, 2017, we have audited the internal financial controls
over financial reporting of Lemon Tree Hotels Limited (hercinafter referred to as the “Holding
Company”) and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies, which
are companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on
Auditing, both, issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, and deemed to be prescribed
under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects,

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over
financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, inciuding the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in
India, have, maintained in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2017, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Other Matters

Our report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
‘nternal financial controls over financial reporting of the Holding Company, insofar as it relates to
these 19 subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, is based on the
corresponding reports of the auditors of such subsidiary companies incorporated in India.

For S.R. Batliboi & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

per Sanjay Vij
Partner
Membership Number: 9GRS
Place of Signature: Gurgaon

Date: “Faue \{1 290)
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Consolidated Bal Shkeel as at Mareh 31, 2017

Note Asat Asat Asal
March 31, 2047 March 31, 2¢16 Apdl 1, 2013
Its, Tn Inkhs Rs. Inlakhs Rs, Inlakhs
ASSETS
Non-carrent assels
(a) Property. plant and equipment 3 140,723.07 122,755.15 123,202.81
(b} Capital work-in-progress 4 3454066 25,924.68 16,712.05
{c) Investment Property 5 250,10 254.49 258.89
{d) Intangible assets 6 560,93 133.11 163.14
(e} Intangible assets under developmient 6 140.40 - -
{f) Financial assets 7
(i) Investments 0,26 114 1.1t
(i) Loans 1,085.60 761.62 924.54
(§) Other non- carrent financial assets 3,870.16 3,491.85 2,680.92
(g) Other non-current assets ] 31,162,392 40,052.31 36,152.63
213,133.57 193,374.36 180,086.10
Current assels
(a) Inventories 2 493.67 538.51 480.76
{b) Financial assels 10
{i) Trads receivabies 3,144.53 2,548 54 1,790.54
(i) Cash and Cash equivalents 1,759.21 1,380.65 3,003.67
(i} Investmenis 7 533,89 576.56 3,123.63
{iv} Loans 46,56 64,46 75.67
(v} Other curtent financial assels 31,51 57.84 I3
(¢) Other current assets n 1.930,%6 2,002.78 969.50
8,040.63 706231 9479.09
Total Assets 221,174.20 200,443.67 189,575.19
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
{a) Share capital 12 _18,121.30 7780411 7164237
(b) Other Equity i3 2,735.90 2,980.82 2,742.99
() Nen-controlling interests 4 42,836.25 42,773.46 42,227.10
Total Equity 12369348 123.558.39 122 612.60
Linbilities
No-cwmrrenl liabilities
() Financial liabilities
(i) Borrewings ' 15 69,070, 26 52,372.96 48,659.45
{ii) Other non- current financial liabilistes 4849 144.80 145.78
(b3 Lonyg t2rm provisions 16 135.64 118.54 94.87
(c) Deferred tax linbilitics (net) 17 674,18 638.95 539.11
{d) Other non-current liabilities it 2,082.4 1,433.99 820,29
7201131 54,759.64 50,259.50
Carrent liabilities
{a) Financial liabilities 19
{i) Barrowings 6,745.98 6,949.19 6,693.67
(it) Trade payables 6,064.52 5,171.95 3,39293
(i) Other current financial Habililies 10,583.83 8,53239 5,631.91
{b) Provisicns 16 226,46 17245 110.53
(6} Current tax liabilities {net) 20 - - 1.07
(d) Other current fiabilities 21 1,868.62 1,299.66 $72.92
2546911 22,125.64 16,703.03
Total Liabilities 97,480,72 76,885.28 £6,962.53
Total Equily and Liabitities 221,174.20 200,443 .67 189,575.19
Summaty of significant accounting policies 23

The accompanying toles are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For S.R. Batlihoi & Co, LLP
Chartered Accountants

IC Al Firm Registeation No. 301003E/E300005

per Sanjay Vij
Parimer
Membership No. 95169

Place : Gurgaon |
Dats; June [5, 2017

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

¢ Hotels Limited

pali (f.?(tswnni

(Chairman & Managing Director)
DRfpn07074 i

Nikh¥PSetbi
(GroupnComgany Secretary & GM Legal)

Place : New Delhi
Dats: June 15,2017

Kapil Sharma
{Chief Finangial Officer}
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Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March, 2017

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,
As per our report of even date
For S.R. Batlibei & Co. LLF

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Finn Registration No. 301003E/E300005

For and on behaif of the Board of Directors of
Lemon Tree Hotels Limited

Lk

per Sanjay Vij
Partner
Membership No. 95169

Place - Gurpacn
Date ; June 13, 2017

]

PR

" -
TRl G Keswani

(Chairman & Managing Director}
DIN:Q0002974

DN

NikRil'Seth
(Group\Coppany Secretary & GM Legal)

Place : New Delhi
Date : June 15, 2017

Note Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
s, In lalkhs Rs, In lakhs

Revenue from operations 22 41,208,07 36,795.24
Other Income 23 822,72 218.24
Total Income (I) 42,030.79% 37.013.48
Expesises
Cost of food and beverages consumed 24 3,532,67 3.461.15
Employee benefits expense 25 9,688.92 8,549.10
Other expenses 26 16,339.75 14,837.54
Total Expenses (1T) 29,561.34 26,847.7%
Earnings before intevcst, tax, depreciation and amortisation 12,469.45 10,165.69
{EBITDA) {1-11)
Finance costs 27 7,757.41 7,202.37
Finance jncome 28 (356.25) (37037}
Depreciation and amortization expense 29 5,100.24 5,226.07
Profit/(loss) before tax {32.95) (1,892.38)
Tax expense:
{1) Current tax 170,27 108.72
(2) Minimaum Altemate Tax (MAT) 173.05 156.57
(3) Adjustment of tax reiating to earlier periods (24.65) (1.94)
(4} Deferred tax 160.39 396.11

479.06 659.46
L.oss for the year {512.01) {2,551.82)
Other comprehensive income

(i) Remeasurements of defined benefit plans 10.38 5.77
{if) Income tax effect (2.58) B
7.50 3.77

Total Comprehensive lncome/ {Loss) for the year (504.51) (2,546 .05)
Less for the year {512.01) (2,551.82)
Attributable fo:
Equity holders of the parent (656.58) (2,691.88)
MNon-controlling interests 104.57 140.06
Tutal comprehensive income for the year (504.51) (2,546.05)
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent (624,29) (2,686.52)
Non-controlling interests 119,78 140.47
Eamings per equity share
(1) Basic 30 {0.07) (0.33)
(2) Diluted 30 (.67} (0.33)
Summary of significant accounting policies 23

Kapil Sharmsa
(Chief Financial Officer)
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Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Consolidated Cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2017

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Rs. In lakhs Rs. In lakhs
A. Cash flow from operating activitics
Profit before tax (32,95} {1,892.38)
Non-cash adjustments to reconcile profit/(loss) before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 5,101.24 5,226.67
Lease equalisation reserve 648,73 672.95
Finance income (including fair vaiuc changs in financial instruments) (319.76) (180.30)
Finance costs 6,731.10 6,614.65
Advance written off 5.19 215.67
Provision for gratuity 37.92 33.76
Provision for leave encashment 21.18 10.54
Share based payments to employees 114.13 148.74
Excess provision/ eredit balances written back (57.33) (36.59)
Profit on relinguistinent of rights (600.00) .
Provision for litigations 21.98 4746
Provision for doubtful debts 22,44 12,09
Net (gain)/ loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 21.59 53,47
Net {gain)/ joss ot sale of current investments {26,55) '(170,53)
Operating profit before working capital changes: 11,688.93 10,745.60
Movements in working capital:
(Tncrease) in trade receivables (718.44) (670.09)
(Increase) in Joans and advances and other current assets (921.69) (7,839.34)
Decrease/ (increase) in inventories 44.84 (57.75)
Increase in liabilities and provisions 2,560,64 3,677.03
Cash Generated froni Operations 12,584.28 5,85547
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds) (419,51) 84.41
Net cash flow from operating activities {A) 12,164.77 5,939.88
B. Cash flows used in investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment including CWIP aad capital advances (23,042.89) {12,618.82)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipient 70.66 45.02
Profit on relinguishment of rights 600,00 -
Acquisition of shares in subsidiaries (836.38) -
Proceeds from sale of investments 0.88 (0.03)
(Purchasc¥sale of current investmenis (30.78) 2,717.60
Interest received 319.76 190.30
MNet Cash fowy vsed in investing activities (13) (22,918.75) (9,665.93)
C  Cash flows frem financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of share capital 476.24 28297
Proceeds from Minerity Inierest (issuance of sharc capital by Subsidiaries) - 3,090.00
Progeeds/{Repayment) from long term borrowings 17,590.61 5,419.14
Proceads/{Repayment) of short term borrowings (203.21) 255.51
Interest paid {6,731.10) (6,614.65)
Net Cash from financing activitics (C) 11,132.54 2,103.93

(This spuce has been intentionally left blank)




Lenton Tree Hotels Limited
Consolidated Cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2017

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2017 March 31, 2016
Rs. In lakhs Rs, In lakhs
Net increase/{decrease} in cash and cash equivalents (A + B+ C) 378,56 (1,623.02)
Cash and cash cquivalents at ilie beginning of the year 1,380.65 3,003.67
Cash and ensh equivalents at the end of the year 1,75%.21 1,380.65
Componenis of cash and cash equivalends
Cash on Hand 39.46 65.74
Balances with Scheduled Banks in
- Cumrent accounts 1,718.75 1,314.91
Total cash and cash equivalenis 1,75%.21 1,380.65

Summary of significant accounting policies
As per our report of even date

For S.R, Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firmn Registration No, 301003E/E300005

St

per Sanjay Vij
Pariner
Membership No, 95169

Place : Gurgaon
Date: June 13, 2017

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Lemon Tree Hotels Limited

e
Patanjali G, Keswani
{Chairmar & Managing Director)
DING002974

!
Nikhil Beth

{Group pany Sceretary & GM Legal)

Place : New Dethi
Date : June 15, 2017

Kapit Sharma
{Chief Financial Officer)




Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

1. Corporate Information

Lemon Tree Hotels Limited (the Company) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the Group)is a
public company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of the Companies
Act applicable in India. The registered office of the Company is located at Asset No. 6,
Aerocity Hospitality District, New Delhi-110037.

The principal activities of the Group is to carry out business of developing, owning, acquiring,
renovating and promoting hotels, motels, resorts, restaurants, etc. under the brand name of

Lemon Tree Hotel, Lemon Tree Premier and Red Fox Hotel.

The consolidated financial statements are approved for issue by the Board of directors on June

15, 2017.
2 Basis of preparation of financial statements and Significant accounting policies
2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended.

For all periods up to and including the year ended March 31, 2016, the Group prepared its
consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under
section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP). These consolidated financial statements for the year
ended March 31, 2017 are the first the Group has prepared in accordance with Ind AS. Refer
to note 40 for information on how the Group adopted Ind AS,

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis using
historical cost convention and on an accrual method of accounting, except for certain
financial assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value/ amortised cost (refer note 37).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and all values are
rounded to the nearest lakhs, expect where otherwise indicated.

2.2 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries as at March 31, 2017. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee
if and only if the Group has:

e Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee)
Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and
The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its return

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support
this presumption and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights




Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

of an investee, the Group considers all refevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether
it has power over an investee, including:
o The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee
e Rights arising from other contractual arrangements
o The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights
e The size of the group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of
the holdings of the other voting rights holders

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances
indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation
of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated financial
statements from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like
transactions and other events in similar circumstances. If a member of the group uses
accounting policies other than those adopted in the consolidated financial statements for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that
group member’s financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial statements to
ensure conformity with the group’s accounting policies.

The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to
same reporting date as that of the parent company, i.e., year ended on 31 March. When the
end of the reporting period of the parent is different from that of a subsidiary, the subsidiary
prepares, for consolidation purposes, additional financial information as of the same date as
the financial statements of the parent to enable the parent to consolidate the financial
information of the subsidiary, unless it is impracticable to do so.

Consolidation procedure:

(a)  Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the
parent with those of its subsidiaries. For this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary
are based on the amounts of the assets and liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial
statements at the acquisition date.

(b)  Offsct {eliminate) the carrying amount of the parerit’s investment in each subsidiary and the
parent’s portion of equity of each subsidiary. Business combinations policy explains how to
account for any related goodwill.

(c)  Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between entities of the group (profits or losses resulting from
intragroup transactions that are recognised in assets, such as inventory and fixed assets, are
eliminated in full). Intragroup losses may indicate an impairment that requires recognition in
the consolidated financial statements. Ind AS12 Income Taxes applies to temporary
differences that arise from the elimination of profits and losses resulting from intragroup
transactions.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the
equity holders of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments
are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line
with the Group’s accounting policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.
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Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31,2017

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary (including deemed acquisition/ deemed
disposal), without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction. If the Group
loses control over a subsidiary, it:

Derecognises the assets (including goodwil!) and liabilities of the subsidiary
Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests

Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity

Recognises the fair value of the consideration received

Recognises the fair value of any investment retained

Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss

Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in OCI to profit
or loss or retained earnings, as appropriate, as would be required if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. ‘

2 @ & & & & &

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(a) Business combinations and goodwill

In accordance with Ind AS 101 provisions related to first time adoption, the Group has elected
to apply Ind AS accounting for business combinations prospectively from April I, 2015, As
such, Indian GAAP balances relating to business combinations entered into before that date,
including goodwill, have been carried forward with minimal adjustment.

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an
acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at
acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree. For
ecach business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’sidentifiable net
assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are
recognised at their acquisition date fair values. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed
include contingent liabilities representing present obligation and they are measured at their
acquisition fair values irrespective of the fact that outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits is not probable. However, the following assets and liabilities acquired in a business
combination are measured at the basis indicated below:

¢ Deferred tax assets or liabilities, and the assets or labilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 Income Tax and
Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits respectively.

e Liabilities or equity instruments related to share based payment arrangements of the
acquiree or share — based payments arrangements of the Group entered inio to replace
share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree are measured in accordance with Ind
AS 102 Share-based Payments at the acquisition date.

o Assets (or disposal Groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with Ind AS
105 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in
accordance with that standard.

¢ Reacquired rights are measured at a value determined on the basis of the remaining
contractual term of the related contract. Such valuation does not consider potential renewal
of the reacquired right.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed
for appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes ¢




Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest is re-
measured at its acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit
ot loss or QClI, as appropriate.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at
the acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a
financial instrument and within the scope of Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. If the contingent
consideration is not within the scope of Ind AS 109, it is measured in accordance with the
appropriate Ind AS. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not re-measured at
subsequent reporting dates and subsequent its settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred and the amount recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest
held, over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the
net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the Group re-
assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities
assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts to be recognised at the
acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair value of net assets
acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognised in OCI and
accumulated in equity as capital reserve. However, if there is no clear evidence of bargain
purchase, the entity recognises the gain directly in equity as capital reserve, without routing
the same through OCL '

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is,
from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of
the acquiree are assigned to those units.

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operaticn is included in the
carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill
disposed in these circumstances is measured based on the relative values of the disposed
operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting
period in which the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items
for which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted through
goodwill during the measurement period, or additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to
reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition
date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognized at that date. These
adjustments are called as measurement period adjustments. The measurement period does not
exceed one year from the acquisition date. {?g@




Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

(b)  Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is: :

Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

Held primarily for the purpose of trading

Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A Tliability is current when:

e Tt is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting peried, or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period

. & @

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current,
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Group has identified twelve months as its
operating cycle.

{c) Foreign currencies
Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group’s entitics at their
respective functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for
recognition. However, for practical reasons, the Group uses an average rate if the average
approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary
items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the
change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or
loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss,
respectively).
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Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

(@

e Y. valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and othe

Fair value measurement

The Group measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance
sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:
o Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
« In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
Hability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market partticipant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated

financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,

based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

e Level | — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

e Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the

fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

e Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the

fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in'the consolidated financial statements on a
recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation {based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Group determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement,
such as derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured at fair value. External
valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets and liabilities. The management selects
external valuer on various criteria such as market knowledge, reputation, independence and
whether professional standards are maintained by valuer. The management decides, after
discussions with the Group’s external valuers, which valuation techniques and inputs to use
for each case.

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and
liabilities which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Group’s accounting
policies, For this analysis, the Management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest
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relevant documents.

The management, in conjunction with the Group’s external valuers, also compares the change
in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether
the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the
level of the fair value hierarchy.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are
given in the relevant notes.

« Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions (note 31)
e Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (note 37)
e Financial instruments {including those carried at amortised cost) (note 37

(e) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits wilt flow to
the Group and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being
made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable,
taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duty. The
Group assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria to determine if it is acting as
principal or agent. The Group has concluded that it is acting as a principal in all of its revenue
arrangements, The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before
revenue is recognized.

Sales tax/ value added tax (VAT) is not received by the Group on its own account. Rather, it
s tax collected on value added to the commodity by the seller on behalf of the government.
Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.

Rooms, Restaurant, Banguets and Other Services

Income from guest accommodation is recognized on a day to day basis after the guest checks
into the Hotels and are stated net of allowances. Incomes from other services are recognized
as and when services are rendered. Sales are stated exclusive of Service Tax, Value Added
Taxes (VAT) and Luxury Tax. Difference of revenue over the billed as at the year-end is
carried in financial statement as unbilled revenue separately.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer, sale of food and beverage are recognized at
the points of serving these items to the guests. Sales are stated exclusive of Sales Tax / VAT.

Interest income

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost, interest income is recorded using the
effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or liability. Interest
income is included in finance income in the income statement,

Dividends
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Revenue is recognized when the Group’s right to receive the payment is established, which is
generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

Management Fee

Revenue from management services comprises fixed & variable income. Fixed income is
recognised pro-rata over the period of the contract as and when services are rendered.
Variable income is recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with the terms of the relevant
agreement,

(f) Taxes
Taxexpense represents current income tax and deferred tax.
Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount
are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where
the Group operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss {either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are
recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions
where appropriate.

Deferved tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax
hases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the
reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

e When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a. transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

e In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future '

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward
of unused tax credits (including MAT credit) and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

e  When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference avises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss

e In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,”’
associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only fo th]e £
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extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised '

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets (including MAT credit available) is reviewed at
each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to
the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss (cither in othet comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for
separate recognition at that date, are recognised subsequently if new information about facts
and circumstances change. Acquired deferred tax benefits recognised within the measurement
period reduce goodwill related to that acquisition if they result from new information obtained
about facts and circumstances existing at the acquisition date.

If the carrying amount of goodwill is zero, any remaining deferred tax benefits are recognised
in OCJY/ capital resetve depending on the principle explained for bargain purchase gains. All
other acquired tax benefits realised are recognised in profit or loss.

Sales/ value added taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on INCUFTing expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales/ value added taxes paid, except:
e When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the
taxation authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition
of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable
 When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

The net-amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as
part of receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

(g) Property, plant and equipment

On transition to IND AS, the Group has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its
property plant and equipment recognised as at April 1, 2015, measured as per the previous

 GAAP, and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of such property plant and equipment
(See Note 40) : :

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of

accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the

cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term .

construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. <y s8 ﬁ»;;;‘x
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When significant patts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Group depreciates them separately hased on their specific useful Iives. Likewise, when a
major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and
equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is
included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

Depreciation on fixed assets is provided as per Schedule 11 of Companies Act, 2013 on
Straight Line Method over its economic useful life of fixed assets as follows:

Fixed Assets Useful life considered
(SLM)
Plant & Machinery 15 Year
Building* 60 Years
Electrical installations and fittings 10 Years
Office Equipments 5 Years
Furniture and Fixtures 10 Years
Crockery, cutlery and soft furnishings 3 Years
Vehicles 8 Years
| Computers 3 Years

* Building on leasehold land is depreciated over the primary lease period or useful life
whichever is lower.

The Group, based on management estimates, depreciates certain items of building, plant and
equipment over estimated useful lives which are lower than the useful life prescribed in
Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013. The management believes that these estimated useful
lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely
to be used.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is
derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or-loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
income statement when the asset is derecognized.

‘The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant.and
equipment are reviewed at each financial year end, and adjusted prospectively if appropriate.

(k)  Intangible assets

On transition to IND AS, the Group has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its
Intangible assetsrecognised as at April 1, 2015, measured as per the previous GAAP, and use
that carrying value as the deemed cost of such Intangible asset (See Note 40)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of
acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated
intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related
expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.
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The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as 3 years and the same shall be amortised on
Straight line basis over its useful life.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amottized, but are tested for impairment
annually at each year end either individually or at the cash generating unit level. The
assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life
continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made
on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognized in the income statement when the asset is derecognized.

(i) Investment properties

On transition to IND AS, the Group has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of
its Investment propertiesrecognised as at April I, 2015, measured as per the previous GAAP,
and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of such investment properties (See Note 40).

[nvestment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment loss, if any.

The Group depreciates building component of investment property over 60 years from the
date of original purchase.

Though the Groupmeasures investment property using cost based measurement, the fair value
of investment property is disclosed in the notes. Fair values are determined based on an
annual evaluation performed by an accredited external independent valuer

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they
are permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their
disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset is recognised in profit or loss in the period of derecognition.

) Borrowing costs
Borrowing cost includes interest expense as per Effective Interest Rate (EIR).

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are capitalised
as part of the cost of the asset until such time that the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use. Where funds are borrowed specifically to finance aproject, the amount
capitalised represents the actualborrowing costs incurred. Where surplus funds arcavailable
out of money borrowed specifically to financea project, the income generated from such
currentinvestments is deducted from the total capitalizedborrowing cost. Where the funds
used to finance aproject form part of general borrowings, the amountcapitalised is calculated
using a weighted average ofrates applicable to relevant general borrowings of thecompany
during the year. Capitalisation of borrowingcosts is suspended and charged to profit and loss
duringthe extended periods when the active development onthe qualifying assets is
interrupted.
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EIR s the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the
expectedlife of the financial liability or a shorter period, whereappropriate, to the amortised
cost of a financial liability after considering all the contractual terms of the financial
instrument.

(k) Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is {or contains) a lease is based on the
substance of the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a
lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and
the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly
specified in an arrangement.

For arrangements entered into prior to April 1, 2015, the Group has determined whether the
arrangement contain lease on the basis of facts and circumstances existing on the date of
transition.

Group as a lessee

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Group is
classified as a finance lease.All other leases are classified as operating lease.

Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no
reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the
asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a
straight-line basis over the lease termunless either:

(a) Another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern of the user’s benefit
even if the payments to the lessors are not on that basis, or

(b) The payments to the lessor are structured to increase in line with expected general
inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases. If payments
to the lessor vary because of factors other than general inflation, then this condition is not
met.

Group as a lessor

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Renta! income from operating lease is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Operating lease receipt are recognised as income in the statement of profit and less on a
straight-line basis over the lease termunless either:

(a) Another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern of the user’s benefit
even if the receipt from the lessee are not on that basis, or

(b} The receiptsfrom the lessee are structured to increase in line with expected general
inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases. If receipts
from the lessee vary because of factors other than general inflation, then this condition is
not met.
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Stamp duties payable to local authorities on registration of lease agreements, are recognised as
prepaid expense and charged off to Statement of Profit and Loss on an equitable basis over the
lease term.

Conversion charges payable to local authorities on conversion of use of industrial plot for
hotel purposes, are recognised as prepaid expense and charged off to statement of profit and
foss on an equitable basis over the lease term.

)] Inventories

Stock of food & beverages, stores and operating supplies are valued at lower of cost and net
realisable Value. Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on a first in first out
basis. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
estimated cost of completion and estimated costs necessary to make sale. ‘

(m) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required,
the Group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair valueless costs of disposal and its
value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or
Group of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent market
transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an
appropriate valuation model is used.These calculations are cotroborated by valuation
multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value
indicators.

The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations,
which are prepared separately for each of the Group’s CGUs to which the individual assets
are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years.
For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash
flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the
most recent budgets/forecasts, the Group extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget
using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be
justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for
the products, industries, or country in which the entity operates, or for the market in which the
asset is used.

Impairment losses including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or
have decreased, If such indication exists, the Group estimates the asset’s or CGU’s
recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has
been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the
last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the
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asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

(n) Provisions
(Greneral

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
the obligation. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and
loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a
finance cost. '

(0) Deferred Revenue

The Group operates a loyalty point’s programme, which allows customers to accumulate
points when they obtain services in the Group’s Hotels. The points can be redeemed for free
products/ nights, subject to a minimum number of points being obtained. Consideration
received is allocated between the Room Revenue and the points issued, with the consideration
allocated to the points equal to their fair value. Fair value of the points is determined by
applying a statistical analysis, The fair value of the points issued is deferred and recognised as
revenue when the points are redeemed.

(» Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The group
has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The group
recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an
employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service
received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit
payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already
paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before -
the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment
will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash retund.

Retirement benefit in the form of gratuity is a defined benefit scheme.Gratuity liability of
employees is accounted for on the basis of actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method
at the close of the year. Group’s contribution made to Life Insurance Corporation is expenses
off at the time of payment of premium.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling,
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return
on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability),
are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to
retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not :g&g‘g“;?

reclassified to profit ot loss in subsequent periods. o S z{:;; \
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Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the carlier of:
e The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
e The date that the Group recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount raie to the net defined benefit liability or
asset. The Group recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an
expense in the consolidated statement of profit and loss:
e Service costs comprising curtent service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on
curtailments and non-routine settlements; and
¢ Net interest expense or income

Retirement benefits in the form of Superannuation Fund is a defined contribution scheme and
the contributions are charged to the statement of profit and loss of the year when the
contributions to the respective funds are due. There are no other obligations other than the
contribution payable to the respective trusts.

The Group treats leaves expected to be carried forward for measurement purposes. Such
compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected
unit credit method at the year-end. Remeasurement gains/losscs are immediately taken to the
statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The Group presents the entire leave as a
current liability in the balance sheet, since it does not have an unconditional right to defer its
settlement for 12 months after the reporting date. Where Group has the unconditional legal

and contractual right to defer the settlement for a period beyond 12 months, the same is
presented as non-current liability.

[0)] Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that-gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial lability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assefs
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place
(regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following
categories:

» Debt instruments at amortised cost

e Debt instrumerits at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

e Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL)

Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
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Debt instruments at amortised cost
A debt instrument is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Group.After initial measurement, such financial
assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is
inchuded in finance income in the profit or loss.3 The losses arising from impairment are
recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables
etc. For more information on receivables, refer to Note 7.

Debi instrument at FVTOCI

A debt instrument is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling the financial assets, and

b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPIL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at
cach reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other
comprehensive income {(OCI). However, the Group recognizes interest income, impairment
losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On derecognition of the
asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCL is reclassified from the equity to
P& Interest earned whilst holding FVTOC! debt instrument is reported as interest income
using the EIR method.

Debt instrument at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet
the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOC], is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Group may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets
amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if
doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as
‘accounting mismatch’). The Group has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the P&L.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value, Equity instruments
included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in
the P&L. Equity instruments in subsidiaries are carried at cost in separate consolidated
financial statements less impairments if any.
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Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Group of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Group’s consolidated
balance sheet) when:

e The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

e The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party .
under a ‘pass-through® arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit
risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost ¢.g., loans,
debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

b) Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI

¢) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset

The Group follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on
trade receivables:

e Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and
o All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 17

The application of simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in credit
risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss aliowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Group
determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for
impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL. is used.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resuiting from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a pottion of the lifetime ECL
which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all
cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is
required to consider:

o All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension,
call and similar options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However,
in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated
reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the
financial instrument

e Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms
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ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as
income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the
head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for various financial
instrments is described below:

e TFinancial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and
lease receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the
measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net
cartying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Group does not reduce
impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: Since financial assets are already reflected at fair
value, impairment allowance is not further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL amount is
presented as “accumulated impairment amount” in the OCL

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair valve
through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, ot as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and botrowings
including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequtent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for -
trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the
purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial
instruments entered into by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are
satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes
in own credit risk are recognized in OCL These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to
P&L. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other
changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statermnent of profit or loss. The

Group has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.
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Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Group. After initial recognition, interest-bearing
loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well
as through the EIR amottisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as
finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

This category generaily applies to borrowings. For more information refer Note 15,
Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts that require a payment
to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial
guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability
is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as pet impairment
requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial Hability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetiing of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
consolidated balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

(r) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-
term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

(s} Share-based payments

Certain employees (including senior executives) of the Group receive part of their
remuneration in the form of share based payment transactions, whereby employees render
services in exchange for shares or rights over share (equity-settied transactions).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is determined measured at fair value at
the date at which they are granted using an appropriate valuation model. That cost is
recognised, together with a corresponding increase in share-based payment (SBP) reserves in
equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in




Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31,2017

employee benefits expense. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions
at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has
expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. The statement of profit and loss expense or credit for a period represents the movement
in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period and is recognised
in employee benefits expense.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining
the grant date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed
as part of the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. Market performance conditions are refiected within the grant date fair value. Any other
conditions attached to an award, but without an associated service requirement, are
considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value
of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are also service
and/or performance conditions.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vested irrespective of whether the
market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or
service conditions are satisfied.

When the terms of an equity-settied award are modified, the minimum expense recognised is
the expense had the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of the award are met.
An additional expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total fair value of
the share-based payment transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured
at the date of modification, Where an award is cancelled by the entity or by the counterparty,
any remaining element of the fair value of the award is expensed immediately through profit
or loss.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the
computation of diluted earnings per share.




e

o

* STULWOLIOG, UQ §T ‘O 910 UI PHUISIP U0q DAY GAKAL OF PAICIDI STINOP 3 ‘SHLNO.UOG ISEIEY0 [EILH[0D S8 PTpajd 2t SUIMCnba pun Jumd “Asd00.d UieLia) {n

SION
18'E0TEC] STEGLETT LOETLer] woLudinks pue Alsdold uetd
S0z T Ty 9L0T 1€ PP LI07 LE YU
B SY msy msy anywA He0q PN
18 20T ELL STELY L] £0°665 LEELT TE181T SUL9%y [ ETOLYLE (AR LTCLNRE S10C 1 judy E 5
S1SSLTTL 83°LCE LE'ET1 06'F6E RTLLT L6661 TLisrg £100601 96°60TLT o1 TH6's LTGLORE 9T0L “T¢ YME 18 57
LOETLOFL 96 E8E I61EL [ET 957090 0LETET ITE08'T LTTE0TL 88°'199°9C CEEREES 15°058'08 L10T "TE YT I Sy
HIOIE BN
+1'968'6 PN £6THL 6+'S65 TTL00T LYTL FLLOL £60IET 1HLel't 1L £9'L0S'L - 4107 “TE DI JE 5V
+R9T €009 e +0'1 0L°69 BG'EL 690 £0'¢ 1Tl - - - S|esodsi]
ST €®7e 510 - 6Z'1 o 9¢T - 6171 - mE - (pt 10u 13jo1} AMPrSgRs Aot Jo UOISIOL JO JOMOIT Uy
SCTHO'S LTI 8939 TLELT 29°LH0'] 858 1196 60'559 GERET'T p wiig - uoi oy) 40 o)y
BOTLOU'S FEoL 9Ll [Exy 86'170°1 SL'68 96 TtE {8059 FRRE0L D088 0T 180 - Q10T 1€ YT 3% 5
£8°081 (334 950 - 6L'6F 961 §9°7 FITE L90 - - - FE50aS1] |
SUUSTS et wiL [4.3443 LETLOT 116 19°4FE (33 5) 1876501 959885 0TT8L - N apakog) Jog o3ueyy
- - - - - - - - - - - - s50¢ [ 1y 1 5y
uenepaadag
£ 619051 L6058 TRLZ 807601 6L 99R'E E0°SEE FETEHT HOHTIY $9°6FTTE THIGLALT 90°960°LS 19°058°9¢ L10T F1E YA JE 5
S0°95 066 Fie 01 L6911 or'se o'l [T e - - - Sirsodsiq
9E'PES o8l o - wTl 881 6102 - 34 - Igee ol (p 2100 33701) UICIPISQNS MO JO UQISNTIW WO STONIPY
LLBLETT 19°¢91 PELL 0LE G68TTLE [43hs 3L39 $1°91 SEULT'T - $9°610'01 +ES99R SUOnIpPY
ETTILLTE LR £0°007 TLBIL $9'660°S E0°LLE £EFEIEL 46107 L6886 11 IS96L'LT DEETL'ON LUELO'BT G10T “51E YR JE A
[X:8 41 - - - - - s - - - EE'LFT - 51500 FumoLiog -
15€ 6¥'0 Lo 361 €00 wo w1t socmdadfiict odueyang -
spawsnipe I
FOLVT 16Tt o1 - Ple e 5L 0ger 1T - - - sjesods(
FAR 304 9L LEES 69'611 £9°L59 18'st 6T TFE8T T6TLY 62921 STEITT - SUORIPY
I8'Z0T e STELE QLULET £0°665 68208 LEELT 6151'T STLO8'E FER0IT fxavirrd 0198 2T'6L0'8T SLOE [ Y 11 58 1502 powsg
(swssy opgiduny) sdugsnan] ok pur SIONIRL] snrwdinba Ladurgonyy POT[ PIOYIsEY pany
"oy, SIPMIA saamdwo) ALrapana “LaHd01) PUB DINFUSTF stuawdnba 20130 PNy SuErtY PRI PUE AT 10 TuIp[INg PIOERUF uh S| puT] proyRRI SIEINIT]
$1085 Y AQIIUT],
SHEL ur S

nmurdinba p yawd Muzdeag g

0% "1 YRIRIN PoPED J6oA S1j) 40 STUSURHIEYS [F120TU1] POIERIOSU0.Y OF SAION

PANWIT $PIOH AL VoW




Lemon Tree Hotels Limited

Notes to Censolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

4. Capital work-in-progress

Asat As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2013
(Rs in lakhs) (Rs in lakhs) (Rs in lakhs)
Hotel at Shintla
Material 414,00 362.46 319.96
Project staff expenses 60,11 51.60 45.63
Project staff
-Safary wapes & bonus 2973 29.72 29.72
Professional charges 80.72 80.5% 74.00
Others .67 2.67 2.67
587.23 527.04 471.98
Hotel at Gurgaon, Cify Centre
Material - 3,365,00 512.62
Professional charges - 325.57 117.46
Borrowing cost - 145.33 33.16
Project staff
-Salary wages & bonus - 98.09 29.90
Project staff expenses other than salary - 3340 13.87
Misc.Gov.expenses/fees - 41.84 8.90
- 4,009.23 71591
Less: scrap sale - 10.00 10.00
- 3,999.23 705.91
Less:- Capitalised during the year - 3,99923 .
- - 705.91
Hotel at Garagon Sector 60 {Lemon Tree)
Material 4,125.57 1,368.28 91.63
Professional charges 827.33 162.90 130.84
Borrowing cost 368.10 276.07 -
Project staff
-Satary wapes & bonus 150,78 28.51 3.62
Project staff expenses other then salazy 81.13 816 0.88
Rates and Taxes 477.36 - -
Others 13753 1.64 0.46
6,257.80 1,845.56 227.43
Less Capitalised duriny the year 6,267.80 - -
- 1,845.56 22743
Hotel at Guragon Sector 60 (Red Fox)
Material 1,931.95 906.82 67.07
Professional charges 407.77 111.02 88.22
Bomrowing cost 119.83 - -
Rates and Taxes 393,89 - -
Project staff
-Safary wages & bonus 124,99 25.20 3.87
Project staff expenses other then salary 45,54 - -
Others £28.95 1,08 0.26
3,152.92 1,044,12 159.42
Less Capitalised during the year 3,152,592 - -
- 1,044.12 159.42
Haotel at City Center Pune
Material 4,200.43 2,326.93 849,61
Professional charges 1,242.39 1,079.12 639,04
Borrowing cost 782.00 60245 60245
Project staff
-Salary wages & bonus 129,54 79.89 55.88
Project staff expenses other then salary 47,61 44,50 35.22
Travelling 392 7.09 444
Rates and taxes 57112 30570 274.10
Others 11.10 5.23 2.62
6,993.11 4.450,91 2,467.36
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Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

As at March 31,2017 As atiarch 31, As atAprit 1, 2015(Rs in
{Rs in lakhs) 2016(Rs in lakhs) lakhs)
Hotel at Mumbat
Material 6,347.79 391711 3,906.91
Professional charges 1,541.80 817.80 795,06
Borrowing cost 131.29 145,15 183.50
Project staff
-Salary wages & bonus 186.94 168.37 84.12
Project staff expenses other then salary 226.31 192.94 161.48
Travelling 36.28 3247 28.93
Rates and taxes 4,274.86 425007 4,218.88
Stock in Hand " 7278 12,77
Others 181.85 139.01 130,99
13,027.12 9,755.70 9,582.64
Hotel at Gachibowli, Hyderabad
Material - - 8,044.69
Professional charges - - 1,065.25
Borrowing cost - - 495,08
Project staft
-Salary wages & bonus . - 87.13
Project staff expenses other then salary - - 84,86
Travelling B - 2731
Rates and taxes - - 35.89
Others - - 156.70
Total - - 10,036.91
Less:- Capitalised during the year - - 10,036.91
ilotel at Udaipur
Material 5,268.15 333248 1,080.75
Professional charges 936.02 486.62 376.37
Borrowing cost 240,72 - -
Project staff
-Salary wages & bonus 85.47 40.53 14.77
Project staff expenscs other then salary 28.14 17.69 10.19
Travelling 12,22 9,03 5.10
Rates and taxes 30.55 25.00 3175
Others 0.26 0.26 -
6,601.53 3911.61 1,518.93
Hotel at Kolkata
Material 1,293.55 98.26 373
Professional charges 522,39 435.44 405.68
Borrowing cost 34,10 - -
Project staff
-Salary wages & bonus 52.28 i2.19 -
Project staff expenses other then salary 39.22 5.27 0.03
Travelling 4,20 1.74 097
Others 1.06 LOo 1.06
1,945.80 553.96 41147
Hotel at MIAL Acrocity, Mumbai
Material 4,12 2.62 1.89
Professional charges 2,436,97 2,049.60 670,96
Lease rent 2,723.29 1.420.16 174,96
Project staft
-Salary wapes & bonus 5.97 1.99 -
Project staff expenses other then safary 4.14 0.78 0.1¢
Travelling 16.22 14.50 2.89
Rates and faxes 345.83 32831 304.99
Others 24.4% 17.82 1113
5,561.03 3,835,78 1,166.92
Hotel at Bandhavgarh, Madhya Pradesh
Material 206,53 - -
Professional charges 2.28 - -
Project staff -
-Salary wages & bonus 8.46 - -
Project staff expenses ofher than salary 003 - -
Travelling 338 - -
Rates and taxes 0.66 - -
Others 2.48 - -
223.84 - -
34,940,66 25,924.68 16,712.06
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Notes to Conselidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017
5. Investment Property

Rs. In lakhs

Particulars Total
Cost or valuation
Deemed Cost as at April 1, 2015 258.8%
Additions -
As at March 31, 2016 258.89
Additions -
As at March 31, 2017 258.89
Depreciation and Impairment
As at April 1, 2015 -
Charge for the year 4.40
As at March 31, 2016 4,40
Charge for the year 4.39
As at March 31, 2017 8.79
Net Block
As at March 31, 2017 250.10
As at March 31, 2016 254.49
Asat April 1, 2015 258.89
Information regarding income and expenditure of Investment property:

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016

Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs

Rental income dérived from investment propetty 14.42 12.91
Direct operating expenses (including repairs and maintenance) generating
rental income - j
Direct operating expenses (including repairs and maintenance) that did (1.13)
not generate rental income (0.99) '
Profit arising from investment properties before depreciation and indiy 13.43 11.78
Less — Depreciation {4.39} (4.40)
Profit arising from investment properties before indirect expenses 9.04 7.38

The Group's investment properties consist of a commercial property in India. The management has determined that the investment property consist of one
classes of asset — office space — based on the nature, characteristics and risks of the property. The Group has no resirictions on the realisability of its
investment properties and no contractual obligations to purchase, construct or develop investment properties,

As at 31 March 207 and 31 March 2016, the fair values of the property is Rs. 258.89 facs and Rs. 258.89 lacs respectively. These valuations are based on
valuations performed by an external independent valuer at the time of acquisition of property. The management has considered these valuations on the
basis that there is no material change in the value of property since acquired.

Description of valuation technigues used and key inputs to valuation on investment properties:

Significant unobservable
Valuation technique Inputs

Sales comparable method Location

Size of building
Quality of building
Visibility of unit
Furnished/unfurnished T
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Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

6. Intangible Assets

Rs. In lakhs
Particulars Software Goodwill Total
Cost or valuation '
Deemed Cost as at April 1, 2015 163.14 - i63.14
Additions 35.12 - 3512
Disposals - - -
As at March 31, 2016 198.26 - 198,26
Additions (refer note 44) 109.76 673.42 783.18
Disposals 41.29 - 41.2939
As at March 31,2017 266.73 673.42 940.15
Amortisation and impairment
As at April 1, 2015 - -
Amortisation 65.15 - 65.15
Disposals - - -
As at March 31, 2016 65.15 - 65,15
Amortisation 55.37 - 55.37
Disposals 41,30 - 41.30
As at March 31,2017 79.22 - 79.22
Net Block
As at March 31, 2017 187.51 673.42 860.93
As at March 31, 2016 133.11 - 133.11
Asat April 1,20135 163.14 - 163.14
Net bool value As at As at As at

March 31, 2017 March 31,2016 April 1, 2015

Intangible assets 260.93 133.11 163.14
Intangible assets under development 140.40 - -
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7 Financial assets Asat Asat As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April |, 2015
Rs, In [akbs Rs. In lakhs Rs. in lakhs

(1) Tnvestments

Government Sccurities at amertised cost
Six Years Mational Saving Cerlificates - 0.88 0.85

TInvestments at fair vatue throwgh Profit & Loss
Muetun! finds

10,422 (March 31, 2816: 13,299, Aprit 1, 2015: Nif) units of Reliance Money Manager Fand-Direct Plan-Growth 237.26 282.21 -
Option

11,016,835 (March 31, 2016: Nil, April |, 2015: Nil) Units of Reliance Money Manager Fund-Direct Growth Plan 250.80 - -
Growth Option

Nil (March 31, 2016: 393,973, Aprit 1, 2015: Nif) units of Reliance Quarter Interval Fund-Series IT - 81.74 -
5648 (March 31, 2016: 6,777, Aprl 1, 2015: 14,671} anits of Reliance liquid fund ireasury plan 128,59 196.55 50047
703 (March 31, 2016: 703, April 1, 2615:27,517) units of Reliance liguid fund direct plan 17.24 16.06 38024
Nif (Miarch 31, 2016: Nil, April 1, 2015: 203,809) anits of ICICL Prudential Liquid Direct Plan Growth - - 422.09
Nil (Mareh 31, 2016: Nil, Aprit 1, 2015: 180,312) uaits of Birla Sun Life Cash Plus Growth Dircct Plaa - - 404.97
Nil (March 31, 2016: Nil, April 1, 2015: 8,432) units of Axis Liquid Fund - - 130.78
Nit {March 31, 2016 Nil, April 1, 2015 14,895) units of Principal Cash Management Fand-Regular Plan Growth - - 202.33
Nil (March 31, 2086: Nil, April 1, 2015: 803,737) unils of DWS Insta Cash Plus Fund - Bonus plan - - 232.72

Other investments at Fair value through Profit and Loss
2,567 (March 21, 2016; 2,567, Apiil 1, 2015: 2,567) equity shares of SEP Energy Private Limited of Rs.10 each

Fully paid. 0.26 0.26 0.26
634.15 571.70 3,124.74
Aggregate book value of qucted investments 63339 576.56 3,123.63
Aggregate market vatue of quoted investments 633.89 576.56 3,123.63
Aggregale amount of impairement in vatue of investments - - -
Current 633.89 576.56 3,123.63
Nan-Current 0.26 1.14 Lil
634,15 57170 3,124.74
Asat Asal Asat
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Rs. In Inkhs Rs. In lakhs Rs. In lakhs
(i) Loans
Unsecured, considered good
Loans to employees at amnortised cost 1,085.60 761.63 52454
1,085.60 761.62 924,54
Asat Asat Asat
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Rs. In lakhs Rs. In lakhs Rs. In lakhs

(i} Other Non- current finaneiad assets
Unsecured, considered good

Security Deposits 2,904.65 2,503.64 1,785.56
Tnterest accrued on deposits with banks and others 276,58 216,18 153,08
Other bank balaaces 788,93 71203 14227

3,970.16 3,491.85 2,680.92




Lemeon Tree Hotels Limited
Notes to Consolidated finanecial statements for the ycar ended March 31, 2017

8 Other noo-current assets

Unsecured, considered good
Capital Advances

Unsecured, considered good

Balance with statutory/ government authorities
Advance Income Tax (net of provision for taxation)

Prepaid stamp duty

Prepaid conversion charges (Also refer note 42)

Prepaid expenses

Advances recoverable in cash or kind or for value to be received

Prepayments of security deposit

Total

As at Asat As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Rs. In lakhs Rs, In lakhs Rs. [n lakhs
6,968.13 16,086.01 17,737.96
66,83 66,83 18.74
2,1010.78 1,950.26 1,592.51
228.29 211.16 236.93
512,55 522,61 532.68
304.46 - 2829
- - 13.47
20,981,35 21 215.44 15,992.05
24,194.26 23,966.30 18,414.67
31,162.39 40,052.31 36,152.63
<188 Mo
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9 Inventories Asat As at As at

(Valued at lower of cost or net reafisable valac) March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Rs. In lakhs Rs. In lakhs Rs. In lakhs

(valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)

Food and beverages (exciuding liquor and wine) 102.47 100.07 77.17

Liquor and wine 111.86 115.86 77.49

Stores, cutlery, crockery, linen, provisions and others 279.34 322.58 326.10

Total : 493.67 538.51 480.76

During the year ended March 31, 2017: Rs. 44.50 lakhs, (March 31, 2016; Rs. 27.78 lakhs, March 31, 2015: Rs. 10.40 lakhs) was recognised as an

expense for inventories carried at net realisable value

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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10 Financial assets

(i) Trade receivables

Trade receivables

Break-up for security details:
Trade receivables

Secured, considered good
Secured, considered donbtful
Unsecured, considered good
Unsecured, considered doubtful

Impairment Allowance (sllowance for bad and doubtful debts)

Secured, censidered doubtfisl
Unsecured, considered doubtful

Total Trade receivables

As af As at As at
March 31, 2087 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Rs, In lakhs Rs. In lakhs Rs. In lakhs
3,144.53 2.448.54 1,790.54
3,144.53 2,448.54 1,790.54
118 1.05 -
1.18 5.53 -
3,143.35 244748 £,790.54
35,47 25,57 33.60
3,181.18 2,479.63 1,824, 14
1.18 553 B
35.47 - 25.57 33.60
36,65 3110 33.60
3,144.53 2,448.54 1,790.54

No trade or other receivable are due from directors of other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any wade or other receivable are
due from firms of private companies respectively in which any director is a pariner, a director or 4 member.
Trade reccivables are non-interest bearing and are generally ot tenms of 30 to 90 days.

{ii} Cash and cash equivalenis

Balance with banks

On current & cash credit accounts

Cagh on hand

As At As At As At
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 Aprii 1, 2015
Rs. In fakhs Rs. [n lakhs Rs. In lakhs
1,7119.75 1,314.91 2,936.34
3%.46 65,74 67.33
1,759.21 i,380.65 3,003.67

At Mareh 31, 2017, the Group had available Rs. 25,900 lakhs (March 31, 2016: Rs. 2,480 Takhs, April 1, 2015: Nil) of undrawn commitied borrowing facilities.

(i} Other current financial assets

Other bank balances
Secnrity deposits

Others
Comrmission receivable

‘ {iv) Loans

Loans & advances to director
Loans to employecs

As At As At As At
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 Aprdl 1, 2015
Rs, In lakhs Rs. In lakhs Rs, In jukhs
2,00 - -
29,10 54,92 27.54
0.41 2.92 3.78
31.51 57.84 3152
As At As At As At
March 31,2017 March 31, 2016 Apdl 1, 2015
Rs. In lakhs Rs. In lakhs Rs. In lakhs
46.86 64.46 34.67
- - 25.00
46.86 64.46 79.67
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11 Other current assets

Advances recoverable in cash or kind
- Employee Advance
- Others

Provision for doubtful advances

Accrued revenue

Balance with statutory/ govermmnent authorities
Prepaid stamp duty

Prepaid conversion charges (Also sefer note 42)
Prepaid Expenses

Tetal

As At As At As At
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 Aprl 1, 2013
Rs. In lakhs Rs. In lakhs Rs. in lakhs

1.77 0.50 0.6040
375,63 591,72 112,41
377.40 59222 113.0%

8.75 - -
368.65 592,22 113.01
308.49 380.08 21249
653.41 730.23 278.30
25,51 25.5¢% 24,97
.07 10.07 10.07
564.83 344.64 330.66
1,930,%6 2,002.75 969,50

(tliis space has been intentionaily left biank}
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32 Shsre capital

Authoriscd Share Capitak

At 1 April 205
Inencase/(decrease) during the year
At 31 March 2016
Increasef{decrease) during the year
At 3 March 2047

At 1 April 2015
Increasef(decrease) during the year
At 31 March 2016
Increasef{dectense} during the year
At 31 March 2017

Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The company has only one class of equity shares having par valug of Rs. 10 per shar. Fach holde
the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled 1o reccive remaining assets of the company,

praportion te the munber of equity shares held by the sharcholders.

Issued equity eaplial

Equity shares of INR 10 ench issued, subscribed and fully paid

A1 April 2045

Tssucd duriag tha year - Fxersise of ESOP
Issued during the year - ether than ESOP
At 31 March 2016+

Issued during the year - Exercise of ESOP
issned during the year - other than ESOP
At 31 March 2007%

* excluding 61,032 equity shares { Marcl 31, 2016: 61,032 shares, March 31, 2015: 61,032 shares} held by ESOP trust which has been co

movement is explained below -

At 1 April 2045

Issued during the year - Exercise of ESOP
Issued during the year - other than ESOP
At 31 March 2016+

Tsswed during the year - Excreise of ESOP
Issucd during the year - other than ESOP
At 31 March 2007

Details of shareholders hotding more than 5% shares in the company

Hquity shares of Rs, 10 cach fully paid up
Maplewood Investment Limited

Spank Management Services Private Limited
RJ Corp Limited

APG Strategic Real Estate Pool N.V.

Shares reserved for issue under apiions

ts for the year ended March 31, 2017

Equity shares

Mo, of shages Rs. Ia lakhs
998,550,000 99,855.00
993,550.600 99,855:00
993,550,(;00 99,855-.00

594 Redeemable Cumulative Preference Shares

No. of shares Rs. In lakhs

145,000 145.00
145,000 145.00
145,000 145,00

No, of shares Rs. In iakhs

776,425,140 THE42ET
419,539 4195
1,195,852 118,50
778,041,131 77,804.11
2,871,902 27.19
300,000 30.00
181,213,033 78,121.30

¢ of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. 5t the event of liguidation of
after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in

&

fidated in accord: with the

of IndAS 102. The

Share capital

Shares held by ESOP trust

Share capital (net)

No. of shares Rs. In lakhs No. of shaves Rs. InInkhs __ No. of shares  Rs. In fakhs

776,486,772 77,648.68 61,032 6,10 776,425,740 7T,642.57

419,339 31.95 - - 419,539 41.95

1,195,852 119.59 0 - 1,193.852 119.39

778,102,163 77,810.22 61,032 6.10 778,041,131 77,804,111

2,871,902 287.19 - - 2,871,902 287.19

300,000 30.00 - - 300,000 30.00

781,274,065 78,127.41 61,032 6.10 781,213,033 78,121.30

Asat Asat As at
Maceh 31, 2057 March 31, 2016 _April 1, 2015
No. of shares %o held No. of shares % held No. of shares held

192,908,118 2468% 192,908,118 24.79% 192,908,118 24.84%
180,122,627 23.06% 180,122,627 23.15% 163,266,870 21.03%
78,748,368 10.08% 78,748,368 10.12% 78,748,368 10.14%
118,730,914 15.20% 113,730,914 1526%  102,880.914 13.25%

For details of shates reserved for issue under the employee stock option (ESOT) plan of the company, please refer note 33

Aggregate number of bonus share issued, share issued for cansideration other than ca

preceding the reporting date

Equity sharcs allotted as fully paid, purswant te amatgamations

Equily shares alletted as fully paid bonus shares by capitalization of sccurities premium

and eapital redemption reserve

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Na, of shares No. of shares
32,486,000 32,486,000
646,125,652 646,125,652

sh and shares bought back during the period of five years immediately

[n addition, the company has issued fotal 4,884,737 sharcs (March 31, 2016 : 3,048,468, April 1, 20t5; 2,656,166) during the period of five years immediately preceding the
reporting date on exercise of options granted under the employee stock option plan (ESOF) wherein part consideration was reecived in form of gmployee services.




Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Notes to Consalidated financial

far the year ended March 3£, 2017

13 Other cquily

Securities Premium Ry, 1n lakhs

At I April 2015 8,604,96
Add: On issue of shares AR
Add: additions on ESOPs excercised {excluding transferred from stock options 3.7
outstanding)

Add: transferred from stock options outstanding 151
At 31 March 2016 8,699.91
Add: premium on issuc of shares 3450
Add: additions on ESODs excercised {excluding transferred from stock options 176.13
outstanding}

Add: teansferred from stock options outstanding. 43.83

At 31 March 2017

Retained Earnings

8,954.37

Rs, In [akhs

At 1 April 2015 (14,430.22)
Profit/(less) for the year 2.686.52)
At 31 March 2016 {17416.74)
Profit/(loss) for the year (624.29)
At 31 March 2017 (17,741.03)
Capital Reserve Rs. In Inkhs
At April 2018 546142
Add: Gain on deemed disposal of subsidiary (Alse refor Note 43) 2,696.35
Less; Proportionate reduction in Goodwill on deemed disposal (Alse refer Note 43) {12.18)
At 31 March 2016 8,145.59
Increase/{decrease) during the year 3461
At 31 March 2017 8,200.20
General Reserve Rs. Inlakhs
At 1 Aprii 2018 3,035.24
Increasef{decreasc) during the year -
At 31 March 2016 ) 3.035.24
Inereasef{decrease) during the year -
At 31 March 2017 3,035.24
Share-based payments Rs. In |nkhs
At 1 April 2015 26.59
Add:- Expense for the year {Refer nots 33) 14874
Liess:- transferred 1o seeurities premitn on exercise of stock opticns (3351
At 31 March 2016 171.82
Add:- Expense for the year (Refer note 33) i4.12
Less - transferred to scourities premium on exercise of stock options (43.83)
At 31 March 2047 242,12
Capital redemption reserve Rs. in inkhs
At 1 April 2018 4500
ncreasef(deerease) during the year -
At 31 March 2016 45,00
Increase/(decrease) durime the vear -
At 31 March 2017 45.00
Asat Asat Asal
March 31, 2617 March 31, 2016 Apil 1, 2015
Rs. In lakhs Rs. [a Jakhs Rs. In lakhs
Other resecves
Securities Premiwm 8,954.37 8.699.91 8.604.96
Retained Eamings (17,741.03) (17,116.74 (L5,430.22}
Capital Reserve 3,200,120 8,145.39 5463142
General Reserve 3,035.24 3,035.24 3,035.24
Share-based payments 242.12 171.82 26.3%
Capital redezaption reserve 4500 45.00 45.00
2,735,540 2.980.82 274299
Asat Asat Asal
March 31,2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Rs. In lalfs Rs. In lakhs Rs. In lakhs
14 Non-controlling interest
Mon-centrolling interest 42,336.28 42,713 .46 42,227.10




Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2007

15 Borrowings Asat As at Asat
March 31,2017 Marclk 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Rs. In lakhs Rs. [ lakhs Rs. In lakhs

Non-current borrowings

Term Loans

Tndian rupee loans from Banks (Secured)

Punjab National Bank (Refer note 1 below) - - 5,466.45
Axis Bank Limited (Refer note 15 below) 6,414.37 1,233.33 1.913.23
Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited {Refer note 3,4, 5 & 6 below) 6,647.53 3,931.46 79228
Andhra Bank (Refer note 4 below) 2,171.25 240934 2,647.44
The Ratnakar Bank Limited (Refer note 5, 6 & 7 below) 10,593.45 11,593.67 12,353.60
Yes bank Limited (Refer note 18 below) 31,966.34 15,762.41 i2,164.81
Hdfc Bank Limited (Refer note 12 below) 2,027.38 - -
Vehicle loans (Refer note 9 below) 159,95 11591 17144

Rupee term loans from financial institutions

Tourisi Finance Corporaticn of India Limited (Refer note 13 & 4 below) - 2,056.1 3,208.53
Aditya Birla Finance Limited (Refer note 10 & 11 below) 9,189,99 9,269.93 3,941.67
Fotal non-current borrowings 69,070,26 5237296 48 659,45

Current borrowings

Term Loans
Current maturity of long terim loans )
Punjab National Bank (Refer note 1 below) - - 13.75
Axis Bank Limited {Refer note 15 below) 720,00 660.00 452.00
Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited {Refer note 3, 4, 5 & 6 below) 1,218,96 834.8% 210,08
Andhra Bank (Refer note 4 below) ' 240.00 246.00 150,00
The Ratnakar Bank Limited (Refer note 5, 6 & 7 below) 1,023.76 772.56 290.00
Yes bank Limited (Refer note 18 below) 544,00 250.08 62.50
Hdfc Bank Limited (Refer note 12 below) 42,00 - -

Vehicle loans (Refer note 9 below) 13.86 83,319 126.96

Rupee ternt loans from financial institutions

Tourism Finance Corporation of India Limited (Refer note 13 & 14 below) - 192.60 446.40

Aditya Birla Firance Limited (Refer note 10 & 11 below) 188.00 124.00 -
Total current horrawings 4,050.58 3,157.24 1,751.61
Less: Amount clubbed under “other current liabilitics” . (4,050.58) {3,157.24) (1,751.61)

Net current borrowings - - .

73,120.54 55.530.20 50411.06
As at As at As at
March 31, 2017 Match 31,2016 April 1, 2015
Rs, In lakhs Rs. In lakhs Rs. In Iakhs
(i) Other financial lHabilities
Security deposits 48.49 144.80 145,78

48.49 144.80 145,78




L#mion Tree Hatels Limited
Anneare ¥ Noles to restated copsotidated Ananclal information

Footnotes to Note 15

Rs in miiflon

Note Lender

Anount Sanclioned

Carrying eate of Tntrzest & at
March 31,2017

Carrying rate of Inferest s al
Mareh 3%, 2016

Repayment/ ModiBeation of tremis

Stcurity? Principal frems and conditians

1 [Punjab Hatienal Bank

330.00

il

Hil

Loan

s repayablo in 3% Quaterty ballooning Mstaliments paysble back

First charge of all movaies jocluding fived assels, curmen] assets, capital goodsicaper goads and mertgage by way

ended and commzneing from 31012016 afler ollowing mosatoriom pesiod.

of depesit cf tile deeds of its pruperty of Gacki bowl, Hyderabad, Andhua Pradesh bs crsated in favrwr of Puajab
Natinnal Ran to sccure the sredit fucilitics.

Horak Mohindra Bon) [imited

7500

11.95%

11954

along

The loan is repayable in 60 monthly fostallments of Bs 1,666,667 cach

with imterest subseguently after disbursement beginning from

ApriT2013.

The Term Laan 12 secursd by vy of

a) Exiclusive chargs on all existing and Fuatura current assets of the bormwer s hotels located af Gurgaoa (¢ity
contins new), Auringabad, Indore, snd Sector-29, Gurgson.

) Subservient chargs over alb oxisting and falure curnt assets of the Campany except curent nssets of tha
company”s hotels lactated at Gurgaon (sity eentrs new), Aurmgabad, Indore, aad Sector-29, Gargaon an which.
bank has exelusive charge.

1 Equitable Mongage by way of exclusive tharge of the plat of Land at Sertor-29, Guigaon oanad by tha
bormuver. Also, exclusive tharge over Moveable Fixed nssets of the Hotel Prperty o Sector-29, Gargaon.

Kotak Mahindr Bank Limited

200,00

11.95%;

11.55%

The toan fs repayabis in 20 quarterly srstallments post e cnd of the

tetiod,

d) Personal Guaranteo of Mr. Patanjali G, Keswani,

Andhra Bank

300.00

S rlo @ base rae -

intere
30% (Cumently 11.50%)

3.3

interest rale @ baserats +
2.50% {Currently

The loar is repayable in scatered quarterty installment beginning fron
areh 2014, Tnterestis payable momthly a5 aad whea duc,

T4 3s seetned by

() First pasi-passu charge o all the Project's immanable propentics (evrept Tand}, present ond fulure.

(i3 Firs! pasi-passu charge by way of hypethecativn of of] the project’s movables, including movakls plant &
machinery, rachinery spares, toals & peeessaties, fumiture, fixtures, vehicles and alf other movable asseis,
present and fisture,

(i) First pack passu charge m the project’s book debls, npcrmting cash flona, reseivables, conmissions, bank
accounis {nhecever held), revenues of whatever nsture and wherever arising, prescat aod futues subjest to pror
<hargo of hankers on specified eutrent assets for securing working capita] failifics & subfect to prine approval of
the bank.

{iv) First charge by way of assignment or creation of charge in favor of thoTeader ol

fa) Al the right. fitl, infentsL, beuckits, claims and demands whattver of the barrer in ogreements
agrecment, contrugt), duly acknowledged and consenled b by

aptecment,
the counter party:

(b} All the rights, titke, interes), benefits, chims and demands whatsozver of the borower in cleatances;

(<) AlL the rights. itla, interest, beaefits, claims and demands whatsoaver of the ‘Bormower in any leiter of credit,
ausranics, periiratanco bond prosidad by sny party to the preject documents ond .

{d) Al insupince contmets insuranes proceeds;
¢v) Pari-passu chargo along with the other lendess on the leter ol cradit! escrow accolmt, trusl and retention
acoount, debl sechics rescrve accuunt and other resenves and any other bank accounts of the <ompany whererer
mainteined;
(xi) Right of substitution und other rights under the substitution agrecment, o pari-rassu basis with other lendezs.

The Ratnakor Bank |mmited

Interes) raie @F base rate
+2.75% {Currenify 11.50%)

interest mle G bust rato
+27

The Joan i3 repayable in scaltered quanasly instaflment beginning frmm
December 2013

It is secured by ©

() First charge on ol the Praject’s immesable propenties (exsept Land), present and future subject ta prior
confirmation From pasel advocates Legal Departmeat ol the Baak

(it & Birst chargo by way of hypothecation of ail the projest’s movabes including mavable plant & machinery,
machinery spares, tools nnd ccessorics, famitute, fxtures, vebicles and all other mosable sssets, present and
Funure,

(i) A Litst charge or the project’s book: debts, aperating cash fows, receisables, sommissions, bank accounts
{(nherever held), revenues of nhateier nstuze snd wherees arising, present ardd fsture sabject o prior chatge of
hankers on spesifiat cunent assets for sacuting working capita] fcilities,

(iv) First charge by way of sssignment of sreation of charge in Tavour of the feader off

. Al the right, itke. tnlerestbenefits, cloiins ané demands whatsoever of the boirawer in agreemeats

e, ogrezment, tracth, duly acknowledged and conseated (@

by the counter party,

- All 3he rights,ttle, inercstbenelits, clsims and demands shatseiee of tho boqmuwer i clearanees;

- Altthe rights.titlo, interestbenefits, claims snd demands whatsoovet of the barmuer in any letier of credit,
gunrepice, priormance bond provided by any paity W0 the project documents

- Alf insuranco contrclsinsurande poceods:

(v} Charges ot thie letter of credt! cscrow aecount, trust and reteation ageeunt, debt senice sesenve account and
niher reservies and any ather hank scconnts of the company wheeever mainzined;

(v} Right of substiution and other rights under the Substitaitivn Agreemeal

Tho Ratnakar Bsak Limited

G0

Taterest rme G base rate
LS54 Currently 12.30%)

interest e @ hase rate
+1.33% (Carrently 12.20%%)

2016,

Tha tasn is repavable i scatiered quartedy cstaflment beginning from June

Tnterest is paynble monthly as and whea due

Tt 45 secured by s

5} First pari passe charge on the current assets, entire movable fived nssels and inmeyable ossets of the Hote!
1emion Treo, Udyog Vihar Hotel Lenwon Tree, Punc. Hotei Lemon Tres. Ahemdabad; Hotel Lemen Teee, Chennai;
Hutel Lemon Tree, Dangalore and Red Fox Hotel, lyderabad,

The Rotnakar Bank Linited

A5UM)

1220%%

[253%)

The L.

aan & repayable in 32 quarterly mstadments sarting fom DecL5.

The Loan is secured by o exclusive charge on all the movable fixed assets of the company sifuated al et EDM
mall, Fast Dedhi, built an Flot 10, 1, Kavshambi, {Ghazishad. exclusive charge on the current assels of Company’s
hatel including ook debts, operating cash itons, imagiblé reies both present and Sifurs ond exchusivs charge
by way of squitable morigage over lind and building of conmpany's botel ( cross ised with the exp
granted t Sukhsagar Complexcs Pyt Ltd ) and exslusive charge on the propecty of ot Khasm No 102/103433,
illsge Jhalana, JLN, Marg, Jaipus ( crom callateratised with the cxposuse granted to Sukhssgar Complexes
i, Lig ). Furthet it i3 secured by Coporate Guamniee of pareat company.

Yes Bank Limited

1250,k

Tatereat 1316 @ base Fale
+0 2B {Correnily 10.78%5)

interest mate i base mte
+1.80% (Cutrently 12.05%4)

Agit

The loa s cepayable in scatlered quarterly instoiinient beginping fom

7.

) Excitsive charge on all impioveabls fived nssets of Lemaa teee botels Premicr, 1y derabad,
b) Fxclusive charge on afl moscable fxed ausets and currenl assits both presenl ond future of TTH, Hydaabsd,
o) Corporate asrantcs ol the Company

Vehicle loan (diifesen tanks)

Rate of interest of these Toans
ranges from 900 ¥ ta .00 '3

Rate of interest o these boans
ranges from 9.00 % 1o 14.08 %

These loams are fepaid on agresd monthly installments.

Aditya Dirfa Finsnee Limited

.00

futerest rate 4 beachmark ele
+ 2 30% (Currently 11.55%)

intesest rare @ benchmaik mie
» 2.30% (Currently 11.80%5)

The lnais is repayable i scattened quanterdy installment Beginning fram
December 2016, Interest is payable monthly 03 and when due

W is secuced by ©

0 First pari passtt charge on ofl immivable feed assets, mosable fived assets and cument assets (buth present and
futuro) inctuding bnd and building uf the Hotet 1.emon Fres, Udyog Vihae, Hotel Lemon Tree, Pune, Hotet Lemon
Trec. Aherdabad, Hotel Leman Tree, Chennai, Hotel Lemon Tres, Rangalore, Red Fox Hotel, Hyderabad

Adityz Birla Finance Limited

550.00

Dasc Rate Plus 2.15%

Basc Rote Phus 2.15%

o

Te Loan s repayablo (n 56 Stractured Guanerly fnstallmeats paysble afler

orivm period of 12 manths fron the date of first disbursement.

2) Brst chusive chargs of al mmovables Fvad ausets thath present and fimure] of the LTH Gachibonlt
hyderabad hotel

b first exchusite ¢hargs oo all the movabli Bxad assets (both preseat and furore) ol LT Gachitowli hyderabad
hotel.

2 first exclusive chargs un #sctow sccaunl uf entite cash fTow of LT Gachibon i hydernbad hotel.

d) Comomte ‘thie Company.

BOFC Bank Limited

210440

Tmlerest 1oto 4D or first year
{(MCLH for 3 yzars + 0.65 basis
points} &

F1.25% fior remaing tenura ol
Joan (MCLR for 3 years + L0
hasts points)

({Curzenty 2.70%3)

Hit

The foan 5 repayablc in 40 skp-up quartedly mstallmeats,

T is secticed By ¢

afFirst charge on of] the Fised assels, buth presenl and fature, ofthe hatel “Leman Tiee™ at Flot No. 3 MW, Phase-
1. Tdostrial Area, Chandigarh, ncluding by pothecatian of all movables and mortgase of keasehald rights on land
admeasutig 0,46 neres aud buitdling thereon.

by A fiest & exelusive churga on Projects (Lemon Tree® at Flot No. 3 MW, Phase-, Industrial Arz. Chandigarh)
mencambered-bouk debes, operating eash fowa receitables comlssions, banks accennts twhenster beld) if any-
preseat & furare 2l revenwes

) Mostgage of leasehold rigiws of the projouts (Lemon Tree” 3t Plot o, 3 MW, Phase-l, Industial Area,
Chandigarh) land aduweasuring .16 ace 1223138 59 vrd) and buiding theresn.

Tourism Finance Cotporation of India

12000

prime kending mle = 0.50%
{ourmmthy 13045}

prime Jending rate - 0,504
tctareatly 13.0%3

The foan is sepayable ir quanialy installment of 4,285,006 each aluag with
inlerest beginning fom Apri2010.

23 first eharge by way o bypothecation of all the movables (save and exvept book debts) of the Company 28

| Aurangabad Hats! subjecl 1o pria charge of bankers on sp2cified movabh ot securing werking capite]
facilities.

b) Corporaiz Gusmatee of Meringos Hotels Private Limited and Persanal Guarantos of br. Patanjali U, Keswont

‘Tovrism Finance Corporation of India
Limited .

21044

]

interest iz @ THRHD. 7RG A
(Cormently L3004}

“The toan was taken over by HOFC Bank with effect from 34.05 2016,

Belaw memtioncd chargs was sstistiod an repymieal of lean:

aiFirst charge or alf the fixed assets, both preseut and fitace, of tho hotel “Lemon Teee™ ot Plat No. 3 MW, Phaso-

1, Industrisl Arca, Chendigarh, including hypothesation of all miovabies and mortgage of leaschold rights on tand
ina €46 arres and buildling therson.

Ao Nank Limited

Fase rate + 323% (Currendly
11.85%}

base rate + 3.25% {Curreally
13250

The Loan i3 repayable in 40 quanterly rastalotents with first instafimeat
Falling du¢ aficr a period of 3 yearm from lind disbursement

Tt is secured by way of {a) A first pari passu charge on the Bocrower's properties & asscis, buth preseat & futore,
pertaining to the Lemon Tree Fotel project of the Company at Deibi Acrocity Hospitnlity Mstrict (Excent Project
Land). (b} A lirst pasi passa cherge on Company's bank accounts and lf revedues of the Company. (¢} Right of
subsitution provided by DIAL under ipartite pgreemiéns with the Campany and $B] asleader's agent. ) Pledge
f $1% cquity shares of the Comipany held by tha Hulding Compsny. (#) Curporate guarantea of the Company.

() The Company has got defaulied T the repayment of toans and terest as al Balance Sheet date.
(it) Bank loans availed by the Company are subject o certain covenants relating to interest caveraga ratio, deblserice eovernge ratia, capital geasin,
(i) The Company hus conplid with the cavenants as per the teims of the loan agroement.

18 retio.




Lemon Tree Hotels Limited

Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

16 Provisions

Provision for gratuity
Current
Non-current

Provision for leave benefits
Cusrent
MNon-current

Provision for litigations
Current
Non-current

Total current
Total non-current

As at As at As at
March 31,2017 March 3%, 2016 Aprl 1, 2015
Rs. In lakhs Rs. In lakhs Rs. In lakhs
171.54 143.99 116,00
35.90 25.05 2113
135.64 1i8.94 94.87
Asat As at Asat
March 31,2017 March 31, 2016 Aprl 1, 2015
Rs, In lakhs Rs. Inn lakhs Rs. in lakhs
121,12 99,94 39.40
121,12 99.94 89.40
As at Asai Asal
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1,2015
Rs. I lalihs Rs. In jakhs Rs. [n lakhs
69.45 47.46 -
69.45 4748 -
226,46 172.45 110.53
135.64 118.94 94.87

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Notes ta Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2817

17 Deferred tax liability (net)

Property, plant and equipments
Fair value of investments
Revaluation of land

Deferred tax liability

Impact of expenditure charged to the statement of profit and loss in
the current/ earlier period but atllowable for tax purposes on
payment basis

Effect of unabsorbed depreciation and business loss
Provision for gratuity

Provision for leave compengation

loyalty program

Provision for litigation

Provision for slow moving inventory

Expense on account of lease equalization reserve created
Security deposits

Loan to ¢employee recozded at amortized cost

Borrowings

Prepaid expenses

Provision for expected credit losses

MAT credit entitlement receivable

Deferred tax asset

Deferred tax liability (net)

As at Asat Asat
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1,2015
" Rs. In lakhs Rs, [n lakhs Rs. In lakhs

5,545.46 5,296.36 4,832.55

0.60 1.16 -
£01.77 436.61 481,74
5,947.83 5,734.13 5,314.29
120.15 311.98 65.61
3,125.40 3,03545 4,043.45
3570 3445 28.26
26.43 23.78 22.57
1.81 229 6,18

9.68 - -

10.55 - -
3327 282.72 228.50
222.98 196,57 174,12
5.84 7.23 1122
0,40 0.10 0.14

1.85 - -
5.67 3.40 Q.79
1,374.92 1,147.21 194.34
5,273.65 5,045.18 4,775.18
674.18 658.95 536.11

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for 31 March 2016 and 31

March 2017:

Profit/(loss) before tax

Tax rate

Tax at statutory income tax rate

Eftect of incomes taxable at nil/lower rate

Effect of non-deductible expenses

Tax Effect of expenses/ income not allowed/ required to tax undes
Income tax charge/ {credit} in respect of earlier year

Unrecognized tax assets (net)
Net
As per profit and loss account

(g
&

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

/k’ﬁmﬂ

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
(32.95) (1,892.38)
33.99% 33.99%
(11.20) (643.22)
(161.86) (82.22)
(100.08) 54.39
(24.63) 2.91
776.86 1,337.60
479.06 659.46
479.06 659,46

A:g:@f‘ H ‘f’cjg
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Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Noies to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

18 Othier Non-current linbilities As at Asat Asat
March 31, 2017 Masch 31,2016 April 1,2013
Rs. In lakhs Rs. In lakhs Rs. In lakhs
Reserve for lease equalisation 2,082.74 1,433.99 761.04
Security deposits - - 11.23
Advance from customers (eamest advance) - - 48,02
1,082.74 1,433.59 §20.29

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Notes to Consolidnted financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

19 Financial liabifitics As at Asat As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2013
Rs. In lakhs Rs. In lakhs Rs, In lakhs

{i) Borrowings

Cash credit from banks (Secured) 3,215,97 4,419.18 4,163,66

Working capital loan (Secured) £,000,00 - -
0% loan from shareholders and directors repayable on demand {Unsecured) 2,530,01 2,536.01 2,530.01
6,745.98 6,949.19 6,693.67

A ‘The Cash credit fzcility and working capital foan from Kotak Mahindra Bank is repayable on demand and carrics interest rate of 12.00% p.a. (March 31,
2016: 12.90% p.a.) and is secured by way of: .

) Exclusive charge on all existing and future current assets of the borrower's hotels located at Gurgaon (city centre new), Aurangabad, Indore, and Sector-
29, Gurgaon.
b.) Subservient charge over afl existing and future current assets of the Company except current assets of the company’s hotels located at Gurgaon (city
centre new), Aurangabad, Indore, and Sector-29, Gurgaon on which bank has exclusive charge.
<) Equitable Mortgage by way of exciusive charge on the plot of L.and at Sector-29, Gurgaon awned by the borrower. Alse, exclusive charge over
Moveable Fixed assets of the Hote? Property at Sector-29, Gurgaon.
d.) Personal Guarantee of Mr, Patanjali G. Keswani.

B The Cash credit facitity from Yes Bank is repayable on demand and carries interest rate of 10.70% p.a.( March 31, 2016 12.05% p.a.) and is secured by
way oft
a) First pari passu charge on all immovable fixed assets, imovable fixed assets and current assets (both present and fiture) inclading land and building of
Hotel Lemon Tree, Udyog Vihar, Hotel Lemon Tree, Pune, Hotel Lemon Tree, Ahemdabad, Hotel Lemon Tree, Chennai, Hotel Lemon Tree, Bangalore
and Red Fox Hotel, Hyderabad .

As at Asat Asat
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Rs, In Inkhs Rs, In lakhs Rs. In lakhs
(ii) Trade payables
Tzade Payables
-Micro and small enterprises - 3.87 -
~Other than Micro and small enterprises 6,044.52 3,168.08 3,392.93
6,044.52 5,171.95 3,392.93
As at Asat Asat
March 3%, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Rs. In lakhs Rs. In fakhs Rs. In lakhs
(i} Other financial liabilities
Current maturitics of long-tenn bomrowings 4,050,58 3,157.24 1,751.61
Taterest accrued but not due on borrowings 41.39 39.29 2438
Retention Money Payable - 110.84 161.44
Bock overdraft 468.65 619.73 47.32
Other payables )
-Payable for capital goods 2,013.57 1,284,89 613.88
-Sundry Deposits 0,75 2325 21,16
-Payable to employees 15.10 13.69 12.16
Outstanding dues of other creditors 3,993.79 3,283.40 2,999.56
10,583,583 8,532.3% 5.631.91
20 Current Tax Liabilities (net) . As at As at . As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 Aprii §, 2015
Qs In Iakhs Rs, In lakhs Rs. In lakhs
Provision for wealth tax (Net of advance tax) - - 1.07
- - 1.07
21 Other current liabilifies As at As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April I, 2015
Rs, In lakhs Rs, In fakhs Rs. [n lakhs
Advance from custemers 949.97 537.53 235.34
Deferred revenue- loyalty programme 532 6.73 18.19
Statutory Dues 913.33 655,40 £19.39
1,868.62 1,299.06 872.92
y“"'omww
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Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2017

22 Revenue From Operations

Revenue from operations
Sate of products and services

-Room rental

- Food and beverage {excluding liquor and wine)

- Liguor and wine

- Banquet rentals

- Telephone and telex

. Other Services (including service charge income)

Other Operating Revenue
- Management fee

- Commission income
Revenue from operations

23 Other income

Income from serve for India scheme

Profit on relinquishment of rights {refer note 46)
Rent received

Excess provision/ credit batances written back
Exchange difference (net)

Miscellaneous income

24 Cost of food and beverages consumed

(a) Consumption of food & beverages excluding liquor & wine
[nventory at the beginning of the year
Add: Purchases

Less: Inventory at the end of the year
Cost of food and beverage consumed

{b) Consumption of liquor & wine
Inventory at the beginning of the year
Add: Purchases

Less: Inventory at the end of the year
Cost of liquor and wine constemed J

25 Employee Benefit Expense

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident fund and other funds
Share based payments to employees

Gratuity expense

Leave compensation expenscs

Staff welfare expenses

Total

March 31, 2017

March 31, 2016

Rs, In lakhs Rs. In lakhs
27,168.83 24,111.83
7,856.93 7.431.15
966.30 887.62
168,32 111.19
103.14 72.62
4,395,57 4.077.57
543.76 9568
5.22 7.28
41,208.07 36,795.24
March 31, 2817 March 31, 2016
Rs. In lalths Rs. In lakhs
73.93 97.67
600,00 -
54.31 51.29
5733 36.59
0.60 -
36,55 32.69
822.72 218.24
March 31, 2017 March 31,2016
Rs. In lakhs Rs. In lakhs
100,07 7717
3,188.02 © 3,173.32
3,288.09 3,250.49
102.47 100,07
3,185.62 3,150.42
115.86 77.49
343.05 349.10
458.91 426.59
111.86 115.86
347.05 310.73
3,532.67 346115
March 31, 2017 March 31,2016
Rs. In lakhs Rs. In lakhs
7,998,47 7,121.83
322.28 296.15
11413 148.74
50.24 43,55
3517 17.68
1,168.63 921.15
9,688.92 8,549.10
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26 Other Expenses

27

28

Consumption of stores, cutlery, crockery, linen, provisions and others

Lease rent

License fee

Power and fiuel

Linen & uniform washing and laundry expenses
Guest transportationt

Spa expenses

Subscription charges

Repair and maintenance

- Buildings

- Plant and machinery

- Others

Rates and iaxes

Insurance

Communication costs

Printing and stationery

Traveling and conveyance

Vehicle running and maintenance
Advertisement and business promotion
Commission -other than sole selling agent
Security and cleaning expenses
Membership and subscripiions

Legal and professional fees

Advances written off

Freight and cartage

Exchange difference {net)

Donations

Loss on sale of property, plant & equipment (net)
Provision for doubtful debts

Payment to auditor

Miscellancous expenses

Payment fo anditor
Audit fee

Other services
Reimbursement of expenses

Finance Costs

Interest

- on term loans from banks

- on lpans from financiat institutions
- on loans from others

- on vehicie loans

- om other credit facilities from banks
- on in¢ome tax

- on others

Prepayment charges

Bank charges (including commission on credit cazrd collection)

Finance income

Profit on sale of investment
[nterest Income on :

-Bank Deposiis

'h(%rest on income tax refund

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Rs. In lakhs Rs, In lakhs
1,048.37 1,013.11
2,346.60 1,648.51
403.97 38291
3,840.87 3,702.18
252.17 224.21
882,20 891.41
151,51 128.12
99.52 92.69
633.68 535.88
648.19 578.4%
719.30 552.24
87130 924,72
96.63 92.46
828.71 867.65
220,49 20092
206.41 243.56
172,23 176.43
302.45 281.59
556.89 370,21
717.24 587.56
41,70 33,20
857.91 630.49
519 215.67
1535 19.89
- 0.31
893 15.37
21.58 5347
2244 12.09
83.90 85.66
284.02 226.54
16,339.75 14,837.54
56.90 61.25
24,00 22,00
3.00 241
§3.90 85.66
March 3%, 2017 March 31, 2016
Rs, Tt Inkhs Rs, In fakhs
6,223.17 5,324,101
639.33 252,79
7.81 766.55
21.03 25.24
475,01 465.86
298 1.96
4,08 2.89
£223 1.56
341.80 331.38
7.757.41 7,202,37
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Rts. En lakhs Rs. In lakhs
26.55 170.53
81.98 79.14
0.68 3.63



Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

-Others 237.81 111.16
Fair value loss on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 9,25 5.91

356.25 370.37

29 Depreciation and Amortization Expense March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Rs. In lakhs Rs. In lakhs

Depreciation of tangible assets 5,041,49 5,156.52
Amortization of intangible assets 55.36 65,15
Depreciation on invesiment properties 4.39 440
Total 5,101.24 5.226.07

30 Earnings per share (Basic and Diluted)

Basic EPS amouns are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent by the weighted average number of
Equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the parent {after adjusting for interest on the convertible
preference shares) by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity
shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive patential Equity shares into Equity shares.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Profit/ (loss) attributabe (o equity holders (for basic and dilated) (512.01) (2,551.82)
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares (for basic and diluted)* 781,213,033 778,041,131
Basic & Diluted EPS (0.07) {0.33)

* The weighted average number of shares takes into account the weighted average effect of changes in share {ransactions during the year. There
have been no other transactions involving Equity shares or potential Equity shares between the reporting date and the date of authorisation of
these financial stalements.
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Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

31.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or
liabilitiesaffected in future periods.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessee

The Group has taken certain land and land and building on long term lease basis. The lease agreements generally
have an escalation clause. These leases are generally non-cancellable. The Group has determined, based on an
evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease term not constituting a major part
of the economic life/ remaining economic life of the property and the fair value of the asset, that it does not have
all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these properties and accounts for the contracts as operating
leases.

Further, the Group based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the respective agreements decided that
wherever the escalations (generally 15% every 3 years or 20% every 4 years) are aligned to the average
expected general inflation of the lease term period, operating lease payments are not required to be provided on
a straight-line basis over the lease term as an expense in the statement of profit and loss and in other cases
(including structured payment terms), operating lease payments are expensed on a straight-line basis over the
lease term in the statement of profit and loss.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below. The Group based its assumptions and estimates on
parameters available when the consolidated consolidated financial statements were prepared. Existing
circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or
circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions
when they occur,
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Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured
based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using other valuation techniques. The inputs to
these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of
judgement is required in establishing fair, values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk,
credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial
instruments.Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.
See Note 35 for further disclosures. ‘

Faxes

The management based on its assessment of the industry forecasts and current year profits is hopeful of generating
future taxable profits to utilize deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unabsorbed depreciation.
However, considering the nature of the Group’s operations and history of past tax losses, deferred tax assets
(including MAT credit) are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be generated in future
against which the deductible temporary differences, catry forward of unabsorbed depreciation and tax losses can be
utilised. Accordingly, it is considered prudent to recognize the deferred tax assets only to the extent of deferred tax
liabilitiesand the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets on remaining unused tax losses/credits of Rs
3,043.92 lakhs, Rs3,023.40 lakhs. andRs2,447.21 lakhs as of March 31, 2017, March 31, 2016 and April 1, 2015
respectively.
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32. Group information
The consolidated financial statements of the Group include subsidiaries listed in the table below:

a) Subsidiaries under Direct Control

Principal Country of % of equity interest
S. No. | Name of the Company activities Incorporation March 31, March 31, April 1,
2017 2016 2015
1, Begonia Hotels Private Limited Hotel Business India 74.11% 74.11% 100%
2. Carnation Hotels Private Hotel Business
Limited India 100% 74.90% 74.90%
3. Fleur Hotels Private Limited Hotel Business India 57.98% 57.98% 57.53%
4 Dandelion Hotels Private Hotel Business
Limited India 100% 100% 100%
5. Lemon Tree Hotel Company Hotet Business India 100% 100% 100%
Private Limited
6. PSK Resorts & Hotels Private Hotel Business India 100% 100% - 106%
Limited
7. Canary Hotels Private Limited Hotel Business India 100% 100% 100%
8. Grey Fox Project Management Project India 74.90% 74.90% 80%
Company Private Limited management
services
9. Nightingale Hotels Private Hotel Business India 57.53% 57.53% 57.53%
Limited
10. Oriole Dr Fresh Hotels Private Hotel Business India 100% 160% 100%
Limited
11 Red Fox Hotel Company Private Hotel Business India 100% 100% 100%
Limited
12. Sukhsagar Complexes Private Hotel Business India 100% 100% 100%
Limited
13. Manakin Resorts Private Hotel Business India 10% 10% 10%
Limited (Subsidiary of PSK
Resorts & Hotels Private
Limited)}
14. Pelican Facilities Management Hotel Business India 100% 100% 100%
Private Limited
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b) Subsidiaries under Indirect Control

S. No.

Name of the Company

Principal activities

Country of
Incorporation

% of equity interest

March 31,
2017

March 31,
2016

April 1,
2015

Manakin Resorts Private Limited

{Subsidiary of PSK Resorts & Hotels

Private Limited)

Hotel Business

India

20%

90%

90%

Celsia Hotels Private Limited
(Subsidiary of Fleur Hotels Private
Limited)

Hotel Business

india

57.98%

57.98% °

57.53%

Inovoa Hotels & Resorts Limited
(Subsidiary of Fleur Hotels Private
Limited)

Hotel Business

India

57.98%

57.98%

57.53%

[ORA Hotels Private

Limited{Subsidiary of Fleur Hotels

Private Limited)

Hotel Business

India

57.98%

57.98%

57.53%

Hyacinth Hotels Private Limited
(Subsidiary of Fleur Hotels Private
Limited)}

Hotel Business

India

57.98%

57.98%

57.53%

Bandhav Resorts Private Limited
{Subsidiaty of Fleur Hotels Private
Limited))

Hotel Business

India

57.98%

Ophrys Hotels Private
Limited(Subsidiary of Fleur Hotels
Private Limited)

Hotel Business

India

57.98%

57.98%

57.53%

Valerian Management Services
Private Limited (Subsidiary of Grey
Fox Project Management Company
Private Limited)

Hotel Business

India

74.90%

74.90%

80%

Meringue Hotels Private Limited
{(Subsidiary of Dandelion Hotels
Private Limited)

Hotel Business

India

80%

30%

80%

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

33, Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans

Rs. In lakhs
March 31,2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Gratuity plan 171.54 143.99 116.00
Total 171.54 i43.99 116.00

The Group has a defined benefit gratuity plan (funded). The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act,
1972. Under the act, employee who has completed five years of service is entitled to specific benefit. The level of
benefits provided depends on the member’s length of service and salary at retirement age. The fund has the form of a
trust and it is governed by the Board of Trustecs, which consists of an equal number of employer and employee
representatives. The Board of Trustees is responsible for the administration of the plan assets and for the definition of
the investment strategy. The Trust Fund has taken a Scheme of Insurance, whereby these contributions are transferred to
the insurer. The Group makes provision of such gratuity asset/ liability in the books of accounts on the basis of actuarial

valuation as per the projected unit credit method.
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Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

The major categories of plan assets of the fair value of the total plan assets are as Jollows:

Ma;ﬂ“;‘fl’ M”'z"{;’;‘;l’ April 1, 2015
Unquoted investments:
Asset invested in insurance scheme with the LIC 100% 100% 100%
Total 100% 100% 100%

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Group’s plans are shown below:

March 31,

2017 March 31, 2016 April 1,2015
Discount rate: % Yo %o
Pension plan 6.50 730 7.80
Future salary increases: _
Pension plan 5.00 5.00 5.00
Life expectation for pensioners at the age of 65: Years Years Years
Pension plan
Male 60 60 60
Female 60 60 60

A quant'itative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at March 31, 2017 is as shown below:

India gratuity plan:
Rs. In lakhs
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2017 ‘ 2017 2017 2017
Assumptions Discount rate Future salary increases
Sensitivity Level 1% increase 1% decrease 1% increase 1% decrease
Impact on defined benefit
. 6.88 7.28 7.31 7.11
obligation :
March 31, . March 31, March 31, March 31,
2016 2016 2016 2016
Assumptions Discount rate Future salary increases
Sensitivity Level 1% increase 1% decrease 1% increase 1% decrease
Impact on defined benefit
pact on €elitie : 6.35 6.60 6.88 6.62

obligation




Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined
benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.

The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:

Rs. in lakhs
Duration (Years) For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016

1 82.48 71.88
2 127.83 58.66
3 32,29 91.04
4 28.07 22.88
5 22.52 19.20
Above 5 68.20 61.04
Total expected payments 361.40 324.71

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 5 years {March 31,
2016: 5 years).

34. Commitments and contingencies

a. Leases
Operating lease commitments — Group as lessee

The Group has taken office premises and hotel properties under operating lease agreements. These are generally
cancellable and are renewable by mutual consent on mutually agreed terms except for few properties (including
hotel property at Indore, Aurangabad, Gurgaon, New Delhi and Chandigarh). The lease for hotel property at
Indore, Aurangabad, Gurgaon, New Delhi and Chandigarh are non-cancellable for a period of twenty-nine, twenty-
two, thirty and sixty years respectively.

The Group has recognised the following expenses as rent in the statement of Profit & Loss towards minimum lease
payment.

Rs. in lakhs
Particulars
As at As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015

Lease Rent on Hotel Properties 2,117.62 1,701.39 1,518.26
Rent on Office Premises 36.81 25.17 20.77
Rent of staff hostel/Others 119.68 105.45 72.88
Total ©2,274.11 1,832.01 1,611.91




Lemon Tree Hotels Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases as at year end are, as follows:

Rs. in lakhs
Particulars
As at March 31, | Asat March 31, As at April 1,
2017 2015 2015
Minimum Lease Payments :
Not later than one year 3,016.37 1,655.36 1,574.77
Later than one year but not later than five years 12,963.98 7,121.42 6,888.84
Later than five years 106,574.21 63,298.77 65,165.97
Total 122,554.56 72,075.55 73,629.58

b. Commitments

Fstimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for:

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed and not provided for March 31, 2017 Rs.22,092.12 lakhs
(March 31,2016 Rs. 11,090.84 lakhs, April 1,2015: Rs. 14,900.25 lakhs.)

c. Contingent liabilities

(i} Legal claim contingency

Property Tax Case 2010-11

Rs. in lakhs
As at March 31, | As at March 31, As at April 1,
2017 2016 2015
Counter Guarantees given in respect of guarantees 1,759.67 1,759.67 1,645.02
issued by Company’s Bankers
Differential amount of custom duty including interest 74.79 91.23 91.23
on goods imported under EPCG Scheme
Service Tax Demand 113.94 113.94 102.38
Matter of service tax credit 200.78 200.78 287.20
Luxury tax 36.00 36.00 36.00
Vat Demands 51.40 51.40 45.49
Income tax Case AY 2011-12 7.19 7.19 7.19
Demand for entry tax 2010-11 - - 2.50
Matters pending with consumer court 22.75 22.75 22.75
69.34 - -

The Group’s pending litigations above pertains to proceedings pending with Income Tax, Excise, Custom,
Sales/VAT tax and other authorities. The Group has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedingsand has
adequately provided for where provisions are required and disclosed as contingent liabilities where applicable, in

oo




Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

its financial statements. The Group does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a materially adverse
effect on its financial statements,

(i} During the previous years, the Company had received a show cause notice dated April 25, 2014 from Collector of
Stamps, Delhi (‘Department’), wherein the department was of the view that prima facie the Company has not paid
stamp duty as per Indian Stamp Act, 1899 on right to use the land given by Delhi International Airport (P) Lid.
(DIAL) under the Development Agreement dated May 25, 2009 (‘DA’). The Company confested the matter and
the Department pursuant to the response received from all the developers of arca where the Company’s project is
located, and arguments thereon, passed a common order on July 14, 2014 (“Order”) and subsequently, the
Company and its directors received show cause notice dated August 14, 2014 from the Department as to why
criminal prosecution for non- payment of requisite stamp duty should not be initiated against them. The Company
along with certain other developers had filed a writ petition before the Honorable High Court of Delhi (HC) and
the HC vide its order dated August 25, 2014 has granted ex- parte interim stay from all proceedings under the
Order including the said show cause notice dated August {4, 2014. The next date of hearing before the HC is
scheduled for August 28, 2017. The Company, based on advice from legal experts, is of the view that there is no
likelihood of any liability devolving on the Company on this ground and further, any liability cannot be ascertained
at this stage requiring any adjustment in these consolidated financial statements.

(iii) One of the Subsidiary Company has received a demand from South Delhi Municipal Corporation {‘the Authority’)
wherein the Authority has called upon the Subsidiary Company to pay an amount of Rs. 68.20 lakhs (for the
financial Years 2010-11 to financial years 2013-2014) towards annual value in respect of the hotel property
situated in Hospitality District, Aerocity. The Subsidiary Company filed a writ petition in the high court against the
said order. Pending adjudication, the High Court had given interim stay directing the Subsidiary Company to
deposit Rs 25 lakhs. The management based upon its assessment and expert’s advice believes that any further
liability against the aforesaid demand (including the demand for any subsequent year) is improbable to crystallize.
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Lemon Tree Hotels Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March

31, 2017

36. Related Party Transactions

a) Names of related parties where control exists irrespective of whether transactions have

oceurred or not

a) Names of other related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year

Key Management Personnel

Key Management Personnel/Individuals having
significant influence and their relatives (in
Subsidiaries)

- Mr, PatanjaliGovindKeswani (Chairman

and Managing Director)

-Mrs. SharanitaKeswani relative of Mr.
AdityaMadhavKeswani- Director (upto
February 19, 2015)

- Rahul Pandit -President & Executive

Director{Upto May 8, 2015)

- Rattan Keswani (Deputy Managing Director)

- Mr. Sanjeev Kaul Duggal( Independent

Director)

- Mr. Gopal SitaramJiwarajka (Independent

Director)

-Mr. Ravi Kant Jaipuria{ Director)

-Mr. NitenMalhan(Director)

-Mr, SachinDaoshi{Director)

-Ms. Ila Dubey(Director)

-Mr. AdityaMadhavKeswani(Director)

~Bhushan Arora (Director of Oriole Dr. Fresh
Hotels Private Limited) (up to August 19,
2014)

- Rattan Keswani (Whole Time Director of
Carnation Hotels Private Limited) (From July
1,2015)

- J. K. Chawla (Individual having significant
influence in Grey Fox Project Management
Company Private Limited)

- Mr. AlokRanjan (Director of Valerian
Management Services Private Limited)

- Mr. Rajesh Kumar (Whole Time Director of
Canary Hotels Private Limited)(From June 1,
2015)

- Mr. SumantJaidka (Whole Time Director of
Inovoa Hotels & Resorts Limited){ From June
1,2015)

- Mr. Rajeev Janveja (Whole Time Director of
Nightingale Hotels Private Limited(From
November 5,2015)

- Mr. TarunLakhanpal (Whole Time Director of
Oriole Dr. Fresh Hotels Private Limited)
{Upto July 17,2015)

- Ms. Natasha Yashpal (Whole Time Director
of Oriole Dr, Fresh Hotels Private
Limited(From January 1,2016)




Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March

31, 2017
Relatives of key management personnel -Mrs. SharanitaKeswani relative of Mr.
AdityaMadhavKeswani
Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by key - Buzzard Real Estates Private Limited
management personnel or their relatives - Crow Real Estates Private Limited

- Myna Real Estates Private Limited

- Unistar Hotels Private Limited _

- Vulture Management Services Private Limited
- Sparrow Buildwell Private Limited

~ Garnet Hotels Private Limited

- Pony Tale Hotels Private Limited

- Spank Management Services Private Limited
- Toucan Real Estates Private Limited

- Headstart Institute Private Limited

- Aster Hotels and Resorts Private Limited

c) Additional related parties as per Companies Act 2013 with whom transactions have taken place during
the year:

Chief Financial Officer : Mr. Kapil Sharma
Company Secretary : Mrs. Suman Singh(Upto 30 June 2016)
: Mr, Nikhil Sethi{W.e.f 12 December 2016)
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Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31,
2017 ‘

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

Outstanding balances with related parties at the year-end are unsecured and interest free and
seftlement occurs in cash. For the year ended March 31, 2017, the Company has not recorded any
impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties (March 31, 2016: Rs Nil, April
f, 2015: RsNil). This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial
position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates.

Commitments with related parties

The Group has not entered into any commitments with related parties during the year.

37. Fair value measurement

a. Financial assets

Rs. in lakhs
March 31, 2017 Mareh 31,2016 April 1, 2015
FVTPL | Amortised Cost FVTPL Amottised Cost | FVTPL Amé’;;‘f‘*d
Financial Assets
Trade Receivables - 3,144.53 - 2,448.54 - 1,790.54
Investmenis 634.15 - 57770 - 3,124.74
Security Deposits - 2.933.75 - 2,558.57 - 1,813.10
Other bank balances - 790.93 . 772.03 - 742.27
Cash and Cash ; 1,759.21 - 1,380.65 ; 3.003.67
Equivalents ‘
Interest accrued on
deposit with banks - 276.58 - 144.38 - 153.09
Loans - 1,132.46 - 897.89 1,004.21
Other amount - 0.41 : 288 : 17.24
recoverable
Total Financial 634.15 10,037.86 577.70 8,204.93 3,124.74 8,524.13
Assets
March 31,2617 March 31,2016 April 1, 2015
FVTPL Amortised FYTPL Amortised EVTPL Amortised
Cost Cost Cost

Financial .

Liabilities

Borrowings . 75,816.24 - 50,322.14 - 55,353.13

Trade Payables - 6,044.49 - 5,171.93 - 3,392.93

Other Financial ] 10,632.32 i 8.677.19 . 5.777.69

Liabilities

Total Financial ; 92,493.05 ) 73,171.27 ; 64,523.74

Liabilities




Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31,
2017

Note: The financial assets above do not include investments in subsidiaries which are measured at
cost in accordance with Ind AS 101, Ind AS 27 and Ind AS 28.

b. Fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date under current market conditions.

The Group categorizes assets and liabilities measured at fair value into one of three levels depending
on the ability to observe inputs employed in their measurement which are described as follows:

i) Levell

Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

ii) Level 2

Inputs are inputs that are observable, either directly or indirectly, other than quoted prices included
within level [ for the asset or liability.

i) Level 3

Inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or lability reflecting significant modifications to
observable related market data or Group’s assumptions about pricing by market participants.

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group’s assets and
liabilities:

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

Rs. in lakhs
March 31, 2017
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Financial investments as FVYTPL
Unguoted equity instruments 633.89 0.26 634.15
March 31, 2016
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Financial investments as FVTPL
Unquoted equity instruments 576.57 - 0.26 576.83
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Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31,
2017

April 1,2015
Level | Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Financial investments as FVTPL
Unquoted equity instruments 3,123.64 ) 0.26 3,123.90

The management assessed that fair values of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade
payables, bank overdrafts, Interest accrued on bank deposits with banks, other current financial assets
and other current financial liabilities approximates their carrying amounts largely due to the short-
term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of loans, security deposits, borrowings and other financial assets and liabilities are
considered to be the same as their fair values, as there is an immaterial change in the lending rates.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

e The fair values of the unquoted equity shares have been estimated using a DCF model. The
valuation requires management to make certain assumptions about the model inputs,
including forecast cash flows, discount rate, credit risk and volatility. The probabilities of the
various estimates within the range can be reasonably assessed and are used in management’s
estimate of fair value for these unquoted equity investments.

e The fair values of the investment in mutual funds have been estimated based on NAV of the
assets at each reporting date

38. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables.
The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Group's opetations and to suppott its
operations. The Group's financial assets include loans, trade and other receivables, and cash & cash
equivalents that derive directly from its operations.

The Group is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's senior management
oversees the management of these risks. The Group's senior management is supported by a financial
risk comtnittee that advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework
for the Group. This financial risk committee provides assurance to the Group's senior management
that the Group's financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedure and that
financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Group's policies and risk
objectives. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each risk, which are
summarised as below:

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate

because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises of® interest rate risk. Financial
instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings.




Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 3%,
2017

[nterest rate risk

Tnterest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in
market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s long-term debt obligations with floating interest
rates. The Group is carrying its borr owmgs primarily at variable rate. The Group expects the variable
rate to decline, accordingly the Group is currently carrying its loans at variable interest rates.

Rs. In lakhs

March 31,2017 | March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015

Variable rate borrowings 72,887.04 55,331.10 50,112.66

Fixed rate borrowings 6,979.78 . 7,148.29 6,992.07

Interest ratc sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that
portion of loans and borrowings affected, after the impact of hedge accounting. With all other variables held
constant, the Group’s profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Increase/decrease in basis Effect on profit
points before tax
Rs. In lakhs
31-Mar-17
INR 50 324.77
INR -50 (324.77)
31-Mar-16 '
INR 50 285,57
INR -50 (285.57)

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group has no exposure in foreign currency.




Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Notes to consclidated financial statements for the year ended March 31,

2017

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily
trade receivables and deposits to landlords) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks
and financial institutions, and other financial instruments.

(a) Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business location subject to the Group's established policy,
procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a customer is
assessed and individual credit limits are defined in accordance with the assessment both in terms of

number of days and amount.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. In
addition, a large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for
impairment coflectively. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying
value of each class of financial assets disclosed in Note 10. The Group does not hold collateral as

security.

Rs. in lakhs
Ageing 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 01-Apr-15
Not due 44.18 47.17 30.85
0-60 days past due 2,103.89 1,325.09 1,074.56
61-120 days past due '397.34 518.14 324.01
121-180 days past due 170.15 256.43 185.94
180-365 days past due 278.25 173.08 136.84
365-730 days past due 112.16 82.03 27.46
more than 730 days 38.56 46.60 10.87
Provision for doubtful debts (including provision for expected credit loss)
Rs. Int lakhs
Ageing 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 01-Apr-15
Not due - - -

0-60 days past due 10.66 7.26 5.08
61-120 days past due - - -
121-180 days past due - - -
180-365 days past due 4.94 - 232

More than 365 days 21.05 23.84 26.19




Lemon Tree Hotels Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31,

2017

Reconciliation of provision for doubtful debts - Trade receivables (including provision for

expected credit loss)

31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 0f-Apr-15
Provision at beginning 31.10 33.60 28.52
Addition during the year 11.69 14,39 5.08
Reversal during the year 2.04 - -
Utilised during the year 4.11 16.89 -
Provision at closing 36.65 3L10 33.60
Reconciliation of provision for doubtful debts - Loans and deposits
31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 01-Apr-15

Provision at beginning

Addition during the year

Reversal during the year

Utitised during the year

Provision at closing

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk of a shortage of funds by estimating the future cash flows. The Group's
objective is fo maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
bank overdrafts, cash credit facilities and bank loans. The Group assessed the concentration of risk
with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low. The Group has access to a sufficient
variety of sources of funding and debt maturity within 12 months can be rolled over with existing
lenders.




Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the vear ended March 31,
2017

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities based on
contractual undiscounted payments.

Rs. inlakhs
Less than 3 3to 12
>
On demand months months i to 5 years S years Total

Year ended
March 31,2017
Borrowings {other :
than convertible 6,745.98 420.45 3,538.38 33,123.14 36,038.88 79,866.82
preference shares)
Trade and other 6,044.49 : . - : 6,044.49
payables
Other Financial
Liabilities 6,581.74 - - - - 6,581.74

19,372.21 420.45 3,538.38 33,123.14 36,038.88 92,493.05
Year ended
March 31, 2016
Borrowings (other
than convertible 6,949.19 403.93 2,876.16 24,838.74 27411.37 62,479.39
preference shares)
Trade and other 5.171.93 i ) ) ) 5.171.93
payables
Other Financial
Liabilities 5,519.95 - - - - 5,519.95

17,641.07 403.93 2,876.16 24,838.74 27,411.37 73,171.27
As at April 1, 2015
Botrowings (other than ~ 6,693.67 192.53 [,558.68 19,097.47 29,562.39 57,104.73
convertible preference
shares)
Trade and other 3.392.93 i ) ) ) 3.392.93
payables _
Other Financial
Liabilities 4,026.08 - - - - 4,026.08

14,112.68 192.53 1,558.68 19,097.47 29,562.39 64,523.74

39. Capital management

For the purpose of the Group’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share
premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Group. The primary
objective of the Group’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic
conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to sharcholders or issue
new shares. The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total
{rade




Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Notes to conscolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31,

2017

payables, less cash and cash equivalents.

Rs. In lakhs
31 March 31 March 1 April
2017 2016 2015
Borrowings {other than preference share) - 75,816.24 59,322.14 55,353 13
Trade payables (Note 19) 6,044.49 5,171.93 3,392.93
Less: cash and cash equivalents {Note 10) 1,759.21 1,380.65 3,003.07
Net debt 80,101.52 63,113.42 55,742.38
Total capitat 123,010.17 123,548.53 123,036.72
Capital and net debt 203,111.69 186,661.95 178,779.09
Gearing ratio 39% 34% 31%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Group’s capital management, amongst other things, aims
to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that
define capital structure requirements.

Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and
borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and
borrowing in the current period.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years
ended 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016.

40. First-time adoption of Ind AS

These consolidated financial statements, for the year ended 31 March 2017, are the first the Group has
prepared in accordance with Ind AS. For periods up to and including the year ended 31 March 2016,
the Group prepared its consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting standards
notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP).

Accordingly, the Group has prepared consolidated financial statements which comply with Ind AS
applicable for periods ending on 31 March 2017, together with the comparative period data as at and
for the year ended 31 March 2016, as described in the summary of significant accounting policies. In
preparing these consolidated financial statements, the Group’s opening balance sheet was prepared as
at 1 April 2015, the Group’s date of transition to Ind AS, This note explains the principal adjustments
made by the Group in restating its Indian GAAP consolidated financial statements, including the
balance sheet as at 1 April 2015 and the consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended
31 March 2016.

Exemptions applied

Ind AS 101 allows first-time adopters certain exemptions from the retrospective application of certain

requirements under Ind AS. The Group has applied the following exemptions:

e Property Plant & Equipment, Intangible assets and Investment property - As permitted by IND AS
101, the Group has elected to continue with the carrying values under previous GAAP for all the
items of property, plant & equipment. The Same selection has been made in respect of Intangibles
Assets and investment property. The Carrying value of property plant and equipment as aforesaid
are after making adjustments relating to decommissioning liabilities

¢ Ind AS 102 Share-based Payment has not been applied to equity instruments in share-based
payment transactions that vested before 1 April 2015,




Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31,
2017 '

+ Determining whether an arrangement contain a lease:- Appendix C to Ind AS 17 requires an entity
to assess whether a contract or arrangement contains a lease. In accordance with Ind AS 17, this
assessment should be carried out at the inception of the contract or arrangement. However, the
Group has used Ind AS 101 exemption and assessed all arrangements based for embedded leases
based on conditions in place as at the date of transition.

Estimates

The estimates at 1 April 2015 and at 31 March 2016 are consistent with those made for the same dates
in accordance with Indian GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any differences in accounting policies)
apart from impairment of financial assets based on expected credit loss model where application of
Indian GAAP did not require estimation.




Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
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2017
Reconciliation of equity as at March 31, 2016 and April 1, 2015 (date of transition to Ind AS)
Rs. in lakhs
31-Mar-16 01-Apr-15
Indian Adjustment Ind AS Indian GAAP | Adjustmen Ind AS
Note No, GAAP t
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 123,033.71 (278.56) 122,755.15 123,461.70 (258.89) 123,202.81
(b) Capital wofk-in-progress 24,778,717 1,14591 25,924 .68 16,572,63 139.43 16,712.06
(¢ Yinvestment Property - 254.49 254.49 - 258.89 258.89
(c)Intangible assets 133.11 - 133.11 163.14 - 163.14
(e )Intangible assets under
development
(d) Financial assets
(i) Investments 1 0.81 0.33 1.14 0.81 0.30 1.1l
(ii) Loans I 907.30 (145.67) 761.63 1,218.51 (293.97) 924,54
(iii)} Other financial assets 1 26,534.76 (23,042.91) 3,491.85 19,826.07 (17,143.15) 2,680.92
(iii} Dués from Related Parties
(g) Deferred tax assets {net)
(h) Other non-current assets 18,939.24 21,113.07 40,052.31 19,945.19 16,207 .44 36,152.63
194,327.70 (953.34) 193,374.36 181,188.05 (1,091.95) 180,096.10
Current asscts
{a) Inventories 538.51 - 538.51 480.76 - 480,76
(b) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 2,434.65 13.89 2,448.54 1,782.63 7.89 1,790.54
(ii) Cash and Cash equivalents v 1,375.59 5.06 1,380.65 3,003.55 0.12 3,003.67
(iii) Investments 568.90 7.66 576.36 2,983.07 140.56 3,123.63
(iv) Other financial assets 166.35 {108.51) 57.84 171.40 (140.08) 31.32
(iv) Loans 70.50 (6.04} 64.46 64.00 15.67 79.67
(v) Dues from related parties
(¢ YOther current assets 2,067.55 {64.80) 2,002,775 £,089.86 (120.36) 969.50
. 7,222.05 (152.74) 7,069.31 9,575.29 (96.20) 9,479.09
Total Assets 201,549.75 (1,106.08) | 200,443.67 190,763.34 (1,188.15) 189,575.19
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Rs. in lakhs
31-Mar-16 01-Apr-15
Indian Adjustment Ind AS Indian GAAP | Adjustment Ind AS
Note No. GAAP
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share capitai v 77.810.22 6.11) 77,804.11 77,648.68 (6.11) 77,642,57
(b} Other Equity 5,027.45 (2,046.63) 2,980.82 4,537.27 (1,794.28) 2,742.99
Equity attributable to equity holders of 82,837.67 (2,052.74) 80,784.93 82,185.94 (1,800.38) 80,385.56
the parent
Non-controlling interests 43,392.43 (618.97) 42,773.46 42,763.54 {536.44) 42,227.10
Total Equity 126,230.10 (2,671.71) 123,558.39 124,949.48 {2,336.82) 122,612.66
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings i 55,084.26 {(2,711.30) 52,372.96 51,268.13 (2,608.70} 48,659.45
{ii) Other financial liabilities 144.80 - 144.80 145.78 - 145,78
Long term provisions 118.94 - 118.94 94.87 - 94,87
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 260.14 428.81 688.95 67.24 471.87 539,11
Deferred revenue
Other non-current liabilities I 115.88 1,318.11 1,433.99 64.80 755,49 820.29
55,724.02 (904.38) 54,759.64 51,640.84 (1,381.34) 50,259.50
Current liabilities
{a) Financial [iabilities
(i) Borrowings 441918 2,530.01 6,949.19 4,163.66 2,530.01 6,693.67
(ii) Trade payables 5,171.95 - 5,171.95 3,392.93 - 3,392.93
(iii) Other financial liabilities 8,532.39 - 8,532.39 5.631.91 - 5,631.91
(1) Other current liabilities 1,292.93 6.73 1,299.66 854.73 18.19 872,92
(¢ ) Provisions 179.18 (6.73) 172.45 128.72 (18.19) 110.53
(d) Current tax liabilities (net) - - - 1.07 - 1.07
19,395.63 2,530.01 22,125.64 14,173.02 2,530,01 16,703.03
Total Liabilities 75,319.65 1,565.63 76,885.28 65,813.86 1,148.67 66,962.53
Total Equity and Liabilities 201,549.75 (1,106.08) 200,443.67 190,763.34 (1,188.15) 189,575.19




Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31,
2017

Group reconciliation of profit or loss for the year ended March 31, 2016

Rs. in lakhs

Particulars Indian Adjustments Ind AS

GAAP

Rs. Rs. Rs.

Revenue From Operations 316,786.10 9.15 36,795.24
Other Income 529.88 (311.64) 218.24
Total Income 37,315.98 (302.49) 37,013.49
Expenses :
Cost of materials consumed 3,461.15 - 3,461.15
Employee benefits expense 842541 123.69 8,549.10
Other expenses 14,434.58 402.96 14,837.54
Total expenses 26,321.14 526.65 26,847.79
Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and 10,994.84 (829.14) 10,165.70
amortisation
{(EBITDA)
Finance costs 7,222.65 (20.28) 7,202.37
Finance income (97.17) (273.21) (370.37)
Prepreciation and amortization expense 5,226.13 (0.06) 5,226.07
Profit/(loss) before tax (1,356.77) (535.59) {1,892.37)
Tax expense:
(1) Current tax (MAT) 510.97 (402,24 108.72
(2) Minimnum Alternate tax (MAT) (375.13) 531.70 156.57
(3) Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods {577.46) 575.52 (1.94)
(4) Deferred tax 1,146.82 (750.71) 396.11

705.20 (45.73) 659,46
Profit/ (loss) for the period (2,061.96) (489.85) (2,551.82)
Other comprehensive income
Ttems that will not be reclassitied to profit or loss
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans - 5797 577
Total Comprehensive Income for the year (2,061.96) (484.08) (2,546.05)
Profit/ (loss) for the year (2,061.97) (489.86) (2,551.82)
Attributable to: - - -
Equity holders of the parent (2,290.64) (401.24) {2,691.88)
Non-controlling interests 228.67 {88.62) 140.06
Total comprehensive income for the year (2,061.97) (484.09) (2,546.05)
Attributable to: - - -
Equity holders of the parent (2,290.64) {395.88) (2,686.52)
Non-controlling interests 228.67 (88.21) 140.47
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Footnotes to the reconciliation of equity as at April 1, 2015 and March 31, 2016 and profit or loss for
the year ended March 31, 2016

L Financial Assets

e Based on Ind AS - 109, financial Assets in the form of long term interest free deposits to
landlords and loans to employees have been accounted at fair value on the date of transition and
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.

o Under Indian GAAP, the Company had created provision for impairment of receivables consists
only in respect of specific amount for incurred losses. Under Ind AS, impairment allowance has
been determined based on Expected Loss model (ECL).

II.  Financial Liabitity

e Under Tndian GAAP, transaction costs incurred in connection with borrowings are amortised
upfront and charged to profit or loss for the period. Under Ind AS, transaction costs are included
in the initial recognition amount of financial liability and charged to profit or loss using the
effective interest method.

I  Lease equalisation

As per Ind-AS 17, Operating lease includes fand leases and are recognised as an expense in the
statement of profit and loss on a straighi-line basis over the lease term unless either (a) Another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern of the user’s benefit even if the
payments to the lessors are not on that basis, or (b) The payments to the lessor are structured to
increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected
inflationary cost increases.

1V. ESOP Trust

Considering the guidance given in Ind AS 110, the ESOP trust has been included as part of
standalone financials statements of the Company.

V. Deferred tax

Ind AS 12 requires entities to account for deferred taxes using the balance sheet approach, which
focuses on temporary differences between the carrying amount of an asset or liability in the
balance sheet and its tax base. In addition, the various transitional adjustments lead to temporary
differences.

YL Defined benefit liabilities

Both under Indian GAAP and Ind AS, the Company recognised costs related to its post-
employment defined benefit plan on an actuarial basis. Under Indian GAAP, the entire cost,
including actuarial gains and losses, are charged to profit or loss. Under Ind AS, remeasurements
[comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets excluding
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amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability] are recognised immediately in
the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCL

Share based payments

Under Indian GAAP, the cost of equity-settled transactions is measured using the intrinsic value
method. Ind AS 102 requires the fair value of the share options to be determined using an
appropriate pricing model recognised over the vesting period.

Other comprehensive income

Under Indian GAAP, the Company has not presented other comprehensive income (OCI)
separately. Hence, it has reconciled Indian GAAP profit or loss to profit or profit or loss as per
Ind AS.

Statement of cash flows

The transition from Indian GAAP to Ind AS has not had a material impact on the statement of
cash flows.

41. Segment Reporting

The Group is into Hoteliering business. The Board of Directors of the Company, which has been
identified as being the chief operating decision maker (CODM), evaluates the Company
performance, allocate resources based on the analysis of the various performance indicaior of the
Company as a single unit. Therefore there is no reportable segment for the Company as per the
requirements of Ind AS 108 - “Operating Segments”.

Information about geographical areas

The Company has only domestic operations and hence no information required for the Company
as per the requirements of Ind AS 108 — “Operating Segments”.

Information about major customers

No customer individually accounted for more than 10% of the revenue

42, The Group in the earlier years paid conversion charges of Rs. 603.98 lakhs in respect of land taken

for lease of 60 years for construction of hotel building. The Company has amortized Rs. 10.07 lakhs
(Previous year Rs. 10.07 lakhs) during the year in accordance with its accounting policy of
amortizing the conversion charges over the peried of lease as mentioned in Note 2.1 (k) above. The
balance amount of Rs. 512.55 lakhs (March 31, 2016: Rs. 522.61 lakhs) has been shown in Note 8
&11 as 'Prepaid conversion charges.'
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43.a During the previous year, the shareholding of M/s APG Strategic Real Estate Pool N.V. (‘the
investor’) in Fleur Hotels Private Limited (along with its subsidiaries) were reduced to 42.02% from
carlier 42.47%and the Company had recognized deemed disposal gain of Rs. 407.35 lakhs (net of
proportionate reduction in goodwill on deemed disposal of Rs. 12.18 lakhs) of the aforesaid change in
shareholding as an equity transaction. As per the Shareholder's agreement, all new hotel projects will
first be offered to Fleur Hotels Private Limited. There are no other significant commitments to the
investor.

b. During the Previous year, the above said investor had also acquired 25.89% stake of Begonia Hotels
Private Limited (another subsidiary Company). The Company had recognized deemed disposal gain
of Rs. 2,278.73 lakhs as an equity transaction due to change in shareholding in subsidiary without
loss of control.

¢. During theyear, the Company has acquired 25.10% additional stake of Carnation Hotels Private
Limited (a subsidiary Company). The Company had recognized gain of Rs. 54.61 lakhs as an equity
transaction due to change in shareholding in existing subsidiary.

44. Business combination

During the year, on 13" May, 2016, one of the subsidiary Company, M/s. Fleur Hotels Private
Limited purchased 23,110 shares of Bandhav Resorts Private Limited, constituting 100% stake, from
its previous owners. On acquisition of Bandhav hotels, the Group has recognized Rs. 673.42 lakhs
being the excess of amount paid for the transfer amounting to Rs. 834.04 lakhs and net assets taken
over amounting to INR 160.62 lakhs as Goodwill under Intangible assets.

The fair value of assets and liabilities of Bandhav Resorts Private Limited taken over as at the date of
business combination were as follows:

Fair value of assets and
Particulars liabilities (Rs. In lakhs)
Property plant & equipment 522,90
Other Non-current assels 18.01
Other non-financial assets 0.71
Cash and short term deposits 2.69
Total assets (A) 544.32
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 364.86
Other non-financial liabilities 18.84
Total liabilities (B) 383.70
Net asset taken over (A-B) 160.62
Amount paid 834.04
Goodwill 673.42
Cash acquired on acquisition 2.69
Cash paid $34.04
Net cash on acquisition 831.35
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45. Duri‘ng the earlier years, one of the subsidiary had entered into an Infrastructure development and
services agreement with Delhi International Airport Limited to develop two hotels at Aero City, New
Delhi for an initial term of 27 years, extendable at the option of the subsidiary for an additional period
of 30 years provided DIAL gets the extension from Airport Authority of India. DIAL is committed to
take over the building at ‘Book values’, as defined in the aforesaid agreement in case the agreement is
not extended further. Accordingly the building is depreciated over the estimated useful life of 22
years after reducing the expected residual value as contractually recoverable from DIAL in case the
agreement is not extended.

46.During an earlier year, the Company had entered into an agreement to sell with developer to purchase
certain parts of built-up structure along with proportionate interest in the land to establish and operate
a four star hotel at Jaipur and had given an advance to developer of Rs. 3519.39 lakhs (including
other expenses of Rs. Rs. 3519.39 lakhs). Due to the delays in the construction, the Developer earlier
had also agreed to return the aforesaid amount along with interest through various communications
and receipt of such amount from developer would lead to the cancellation of agreement to sell.

During the earlier year, the Company has entered into a binding agreement (‘consent terms’) to
receive full and final settlement against the aforesaid receivable and has already received Rs. 3,360
lakhs till the year end. As per the revised consent terms, the developer has agreed to repay the balance
amount and interest for delayed payment by August 31, 2016. The Company has accordingly
adjusted the amount already received amounting to Rs. 3,360 lakhs against the carrying value of
advance to developer and has written off the balance amount of other expenses amounting to Rs.
160.51 lakhs as ‘advances written off’ in the Statement of Profit & Loss. The balance amount would
be recorded when the uncertainty of ultimate collectability is setiled.

During the vear, the company has received Rs. 600 lakhs towards relinquishment of right in the said

property

47. The details of Specified Bank Notes (SBN) held and transacted during the period from 8th
November, 2016 to 30ith December, 2016 are as provided in the Table below:

Rs. Inlakhs
SBNs Other denomination Total
notes
Closing cash in hand as on 08 November
2016 109.65 14.98 124.63
(+) Permitted receipts - 212.36 212.36
(-} Permitted payments - 106.98 106.98
(-) Amount deposited in Banks 109.65 38.14 147.79
Closing cash in hand as on 30 December
2016 - 82,22 82.22

Post demonetization, the management had directed all employees not to accept/ pay using the
SBN's. Further, in view of the numerous locations where cash is collected the management has
obtained direct confirmations from certain Banks confirming the collection of SBN's during the
aforesaid period. For other banks, the Group has compiled the data on the basis of accounting
records, bank statements and pay in slips for cash deposits during the period.

The aforesaid disclosures of SBN’s have been compiled taking the management stated policy,
direct bank confirmation and compilation of pay in slips.




Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31,
2017

48. Details of dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006.

Rs. In lakhs
March31, | March31, | Aprill,
2017 2016 2015
the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to Nil Nil Nil
any supplier as at the end of each accounting year
the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of] Nil Nil Nil
the Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006
along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond
the appointed day during each accounting year
the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in Nil Nil Nit
making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed
day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under
Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006.
the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of Nil 0.05 0.13
each accounting year; and
the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the Nil Nil Nil
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are
actually paid to the small enterprisefor the purpose of disallowance as
a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro Small and
Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006
As per our report of even date
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